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Metallic Print Inner Carton
Enhances aesthetic appeal, improves carton durability
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LLDPE Sachet
AQUADRY pearl gold yellow film coating Linear low-density polyethylene, or LLDPE,
adds an exquisite touch of elegance, protects tablet from moisture, is one of the strongest and most flexible films
protects drug in stomach and controls release profile provide an extra layer of protection

Indications:

Prevention and treatment of vitamin
mineral and trace element deficiencies.

Supports energy, immunity,
metabolism and whole body health.
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oOCLetter of TransmittaDOO

To

Honorable Shareholders;

Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC);
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms of Bangladesh (RJSC);
Dhaka Stock Exchange PLC (DSE);

Chittagong Stock Exchange PLC (CSE) and

Other Stakeholders of Silva Pharmaceutical Limited.

Subject: Disposal of Annual Report for the year ended 30 June, 2024.

Dear Sir(s),

We are pleased to enclose a copy of the Annual Report containing Directors’ Report, Auditors’
Report along with Audited Financial Statements including Statement of Financial Position as at
June 30, 2024, Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income, Changes in Equity
and Cash Flows for the year ended June 30, 2024 along with notes thereon of Silva Pharmaceu-
ticals Limited for your kind information and record.

The Report is also available in the Company Website at: www.silvapharma.com

Thank You.
Yours Sincerely,

(Md. Igbal Hossain)
Company Secretary
Dated, Dhaka

28 October, 2024
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Notice of the 234 Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given to all shareholders of Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited (SPL) that the 23 Annual General

Meeting (AGM) of the shareholders of the company will be held at 10.30 A.M. (Bangladesh Standard Time) on

30% December 2024, Monday by Hybrid System in combination of both online (virtual/digital platform link

https://silvaphlagm2024.digitalagmbd.net) and physical presence at Suchona Community Center, Ring Road, near

Krishi Market Dhaka-1207 to transact the following businesses:

AGENDA

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the company for the year ended 30 June,
2024 together with the Auditors’ Report and Directors’ Report thereon;

2. To approve proposed dividend for the financial year ended 30 June, 2024 as recommended by the Board of
Directors;

3. To elect/re-elect Directors (including the change in ICB nominated Directors) as per the relevant provisions of

Articles of Association of the company;

4. To approve the resignation of the Managing Directors and appoint a CEO in place of Managing Director for
the remaining interim period;

5. To appoint Statutory Auditors’ for the financial year 2024-2025 and to fix-up their remuneration;

o

To appoint Compliance Auditors’ for the financial year 2024-2025 and to fix-up their remuneration;

7. To approve using the interest amount of Un-utilized IPO subscription money for filling up the
emergency working capital needs;

By Order of the Board,

K
Ve
(Md. Igbal Hossain)
Company Secretary

Dated: 26 November, 2024
Notes:

i.  The Shareholders, whose names will appear in the Share Register of the Company or Depository Register (CDBL) on the “Record
Date” i.e. Sunday, 01 December 2024 respectively are eligible to attend/participate and vote in the Annual General Meeting (AGM)
through Hybrid System and entitled to the dividend.

ii. A Members entitled to attend and vote in the Annual General Meeting, may appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her stead. The
proxy Form must be affixed with requisite revenue stamp of Tk. 20.00 and be sent through email to Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited’s
Registered Office at share@silvapharma.com at least 48 hours before the schedule time of the meeting.

iii.  Pursuant to the BSEC Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/208/Admin/81 dated June 20, 2018 soft copy of the Annual
Report 2023-2024 will be sent to the Shareholder’s respective e-mail addresses as available with us. The Annual Report 2023-2024
will also be available in the company’s website at www.silvapharma.com. AGM joining procedure will be notified later through
e-mail /SMS /website of the company in due course.

iv. The Members will be able to submit their questions/comments through virtual link/e-mail share@silvapharma.com 24 hours before
commencement of the AGM and during the AGM. For logging into the system, the members need to put their 16-digit Beneficiary
Owner (BO) ID/Folio number and other credentials as proof of their identity by visiting the link
https://silvaphlagm2024.digitalagmbd.net.

v.  Shareholders are requested to login to the system prior to starting of the meeting at 10.30 a.m. on Monday, 30 December 2024.
The webcast will start at 10.15 AM. Please contact at 01812781390 for any queries in accessing the virtual meeting.

vi. The Members are requested to update their respective BO Accounts with 12 Digit e-TIN, Bank Account, Mailing Address and Contact
Number through their respective Depository Participant (DP).

vii. The concerned Brokerage Houses/DP’s are requested to provide us a statement with the details (Shareholders’ Names, BO ID
Numbers, Client-wise shareholding position, Gross Dividend Receivables, applicable tax rate and Net Dividend Receivables) of their
Margin Loan Holders who hold Company’s share, as on the ‘Record Date’ along with the name of the Contact Person in this
connection, to the Company’s Share Office on or before 20 December, 2024. The Merchant Banks and Depository Participants (DP)
are also requested to provide us with their Bank Names, Account Numbers and Routing Numbers etc.

viii. The concerned trusty board of approved superannuation fund or pension fund or gratuity fund or recognize provided fund or workers
participation fund are requested to provide us update tax rebate certificate on or before 20 December, 2024.

N.B.: in compliance with the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s circular no. SEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/154 dated
October 24, 2013 and The Listing Regulations of Stock Exchanges, no gift/gift coupon/food box/benefit in cash or in kind shall be
distributed/paid to the shareholders for attending the ensuing 23rd Annual General Meeting.
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We continually strive to improve our
core capabilities to address the
unmet medical needs of the
patients and to deliver outstand-
ing results for our shareholders.

We are committed to enhancing

human health and well-being by
providing contemporary and afford-
able medicines, manufactured in
full compliance with global quali-

ty standards.

Quality

Creativity

Trust

Social Responsibility
Team Work

Growth
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Name of the Company

Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited (SILVAPHL)

Logo

r(_ Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited
/) et TS Gsiey NG e

Legal Position

Public Limited Company

Date of Incorporation

April 24, 2001

Company Registration No.

CH-42959(2318)/2001

Commencement of
Commercial Operations

1st July, 2003

Converted into Public Ltd.
Company

April 22,2014

Subscription
IPO

Opened on

29 July, 2018

Subscription Closed

05 August, 2018

Listed in DSE & CSE

DSE: 23 September, 2018 and CSE: 16 September, 2018

Trading started on DSE &
CSE

10 October, 2018

Registered as Depository
Participant of CDBL

24 September, 2018

Market Category “B”
Electronic Shares Yes
Face Value Tk. 10.00

Authorized Capital

Tk. 1,500,000,000 divided into 150,000,000 Ordinary Share of Tk. 10.00 each.

Paid up Capital

Tk. 1,365,000,000 divided into 136,500,000 Ordinary Share of Tk. 10.00 each.

Obtained Certification of
Membership from BAPLC

27 October, 2019 (Renewed upto 31 December, 2024)

Registered, Corporate &
Share Office

House # 65 (Ground Floor), Road # 8/A (New), Dhanmondi, Dhaka-1209.

Tel: 880-2-55000692; +880-2-8191336

Fax: +880-2-55000693

Email: share@silvapharma.com;

Web: www.silvapharma.com

Factory

Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited, 137, Joykrisnnopur, Main Road, Maijdee
Court, Noakhali.

Tel: +880-321-63301

Board of Directors

8 (Eight) Directors.

Auditors’

M/s. M. Z. Islam & Co., Chartered Accountants
Eastern View, 10th Floor, 50, DIT Extension Road,
Naya Paltan, Dhaka-1000.

Tel: +880-02-48310365

E-mail: mzislam.ca@gmail.com;

Compliance Auditors’

Mollah Quadir Yusuf & Co., Chartered Accountants,

House # 63/F (3rd floor), Dolphin Goli, Lake Circus, Kalabagan,
Dhanmondi, Dhaka-1209.

Tel: 01819-547366

E-mail: mgy ca@yahoo.com
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(a) Board of Directors:

Management Apparatus

Mrs. Silvana Mirza : Chairman

Dr. Saira Khan, MBBS, DCH, FCPS, : Director & Managing Director
Mrs. Samina Mirza : Director

Mrs. Farhana Mirza : Director

Mr. A.K.M. Nuruzzaman (Nominated by ICB) : Director

Mr. Monsur Rahman (Nominated by Adarsha Fisheries & Poultry Farm Ltd.) : Director

Mr. AT.M. Sarrowar Kamal Chowdhury
Mr. Muhammad Moniruzzaman, FCA

(b) Audit Committee:

: Independent Director
: Independent Director

Mr. AT.M. Sarrowar Kamal Chowdhury, Independent Director : Chairman
Mrs. Samina Mirza, Director : Member
Mr. Monsur Rahman (Nominated by Adarsha Fisheries & Poultry : Member

Farm Ltd.), Director

Mr. Md. Igbal Hossain, Company Secretary

: Member Secretary

()  Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):

Mr. Muhammad Moniruzzaman, FCA, Independent Director : Chairman
Mrs. Farhana Mirza, Director . Member
Mr. Monsur Rahman (Nominated by Adarsha Fisheries & Poultry . Member

Farm Ltd.), Director

Mr. Md. Igbal Hossain, Company Secretary

(d) Management Committee:
Dr. Saira Khan, MBBS, DCH, FCPS.
Mr. Mohammad Enayet Ullah
Mr. A. R. Hassan Mirza
Mr. Md. Igbal Hossain
Mr. Md. Abul Kasem
Mr. Khurshid Ahmmed Siddique
Mr. Md. Ziaul Hoque
Mr. Salim Ullah Chowdhury
Mr. Abdul Kader Chowdhury
Mr. Adiluzzaman
Mr. Mohammad Reaz Uddin
Mr. Md. Nazmul Haque

(e) Bankers:
Al-Arafah Islami Bank Limited;
Dutch Bangla Bank Limited;
National Bank Limited.
Shahjalal Islami Bank Limited
Jamuna Bank Limited.
Sonali Bank Limited.

(f)  Insurers:
Agrani Insurance Co. Ltd.

: Member Secretary

: Managing Director

: Chief Executive Officer(c.c.)
: Executive Director

: Company Secretary

: Chief Financial officer (CFO)
: Head of Internal Audit and Compliance
: Head of Procurement

: Head of Sales

: Head of PMD

: Plant In-Charge

: Head of Quality Control

: Head of HRD
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Mrs. Silvana Mirza
Chairman

Mrs. Silvana Mirza was born at Noakhali in Bangladesh in the year 1978. She was graduated in
Islamic Studies from Asian University of Bangladesh.

She has been a Director of the company since 2001 and was unanimously appointed as the
Chairman of the Board in 2017. She is also one of the sponsors of the Company.

She does not hold membership in any sub-committee of the Board.

Currently, she is also the director of S.R. Fisheries and Dairy Farm Ltd., Al-Amin Agro Fisheries
Complex Ltd. and Adarsha Fisheries and Poultry Farm Ltd.

She oversees the business with inception of the company as director Operation. Her interper-
sonal skills, leadership behavior, high analytical ability in business and very hard working
nature made her worth as director.
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Dr. Saira Khan, MBBS, DCH, FCPS.

Director & Managing Director

Dr. Saira Khan, MBBS, DCH, FCPS. was born at Dhaka in Bangladesh in the year 1981. She is a
daughter of Lt. Gen. (Retd.) M. Nooruddin Khan ex. Army Chief. She is a medical graduate from
the Armed Forces Medical College, Dhaka with an MBBS in 2004, she has completed Diplomain
Child health (DCH) in July, 2009 and FCPS (Paediatrics) in July, 2016.

She began her career as Honorary Medical Officer with Shaheed Suhrawardy Hospital in the
year 2006. In the year 2010 she joined BIRDEM General Hospital as Medical Officer, then she
joined Dhaka Ahsania Mission as Specialist physician (Paediatrics) in the year 2013 and she
joined Marks Medical College and Hospital as Assistant Professor (Paediatrics) in the year 2016.

She has been serving as the Director of the Board since 2017 and was appionted as the Manag-
ing Director of the Company in 2017.

She does not hold membership in any sub-committee of the Board.
Currently, She is also the director of ARK Hospital Ltd. and AGI Flour Mills Ltd.

She has strong insights and research skills and a deep understanding of customer and consum-
er strategy. Apart from her active involvement in the management and executive decision
making of the company, she is the leading force of the Marketing Department and has taken
the responisbilty to revolutionalize it. SPL continues to move forward with her expertise in
strategic marketing and brand development. She believes in utilizing & fostering the talent,
integrity, creativity and teamwork of people in achieving sustainable business results. She is
oversees the management of Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited as the Managing Director with her
professional, creative and result-driven approach. Her interpersonal skills, leadership behavior,
high analytical ability in business and very hard working nature made her worth as director.
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Mrs. Samina Mirza
Director

Mrs. Samina Mirza was born at Noakhali in Bangladesh in the year 1985. She was graduated
from United Kingdom.

She has been a Director of the company since 2001. She is also one of the sponsors of the Com-
pany.

She is the member of the Audit Committee since 2017.
Currently, she is not involved with other organization.
She is a visionary, dynamic and ingenious entrepreneur in Bangladesh. Her acumen in business

and flexible manner in terms of public relations made her a role model in developing the
culture of the organization.
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Mrs. Farhana Mirza
Director

Mrs. Farhana Mirza was born at Noakhali in Bangladesh in the year 1986. She was graduated in
Islamic Studies from Asian University of Bangladesh.

She has been a Director of the company since 2001. She is also one of the sponsors of the Com-
pany.

She is the member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee since 2018.
Currently, she is not involved with other organization.

She is a visionary, dynamic and ingenious entrepreneur in Bangladesh. She is doing her job
nicely with adding value by creative and innovative ideas to the Board.

1"
ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024




Mr. Monsur Rahman
Director (Nominee Director of Adarsha fisheries & Poultry Farm Ltd.)

Mr. Monsur Rahman was born at Dhaka in Bangladesh in the year 1985. He was graduated in
Electronic and Telecommunication Engineering (ETE) in the year 2009 from North South
University, Bangladesh.

He holds the position of the Nominated Director of Adarsha Fisheries and Poultry Farm Limited
in the Board of Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited since 2017.

He is the member of the Audit Committee since 2017 and the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee since 2018.

Currently He is not involved with other organization.

He is a visionary, dynamic and ingenious businessman in Bangladesh. He is doing his job nicely
with adding value by creative and innovative ideas to the Board.
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Mr. A.K.M. Nuruzzaman
Director [Nominee Director of Investment Corporation of Bangladesh (ICB)]

Mr. A.K.M. Nuruzzaman was born in an illustrious family at Pirojpur in Bangladesh in the year
1970. He completed his graduation and post-graduation in Accounting from the University of
Dhaka.

He holds the position of the Nominated Director of Investment Corporation of Bangladesh (ICB)
in the Board of Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited since 12 November, 2024. He has joined ICB in
1997 and is currently serving as the Deputy General Manager of the Investment Corporation of
Bangladesh (ICB).

He does not hold membership in any sub-committee of the Board.

Currently, he is the director of Bangladesh Welding Electrodes Ltd. as nominated director of
Investment Corporation of Bangladesh (ICB).

He is visionary, dynamic and doing his job nicely with adding value by creative and innovative
ideas. He is a social worker as well.
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Muhammad Moniruzzaman, FCA
Independent Director

Mr. Muhammad Moniruzzaman, FCA was born in an illustrious family at Faridpur in the year
1976. He took Masters of Commerce from Dhaka College under National University and quali-
fied as Chartered Accountant in June 2012 from the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ban-
gladesh (ICAB).

He was appointed as an Independent Director of the company in 2020 by the Board of Silva
Pharmaceuticals Limited and was re-appointed in the last AGM.

He is the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) since 2020.
Currently He does not hold any directorship in any other company.

He is expert in the field of Accounting, Auditing, Secretarial Practice, Income Tax and other
financial and management consultancy. Formerly he was an Independent Director of Sandhani
Life Insurance Company Limited from 2012 to 2016. He is a social worker as well.
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A.T.M. Sarrowar Kamal Chowdhury

Independent Director

Mr. A.T.M. Sarrowar Kamal Chowdhury was born on 1967 in a noble Muslim family at Chotto-
gram district in Bangladesh. He obtained Masters of Commerce in Accounting from University
of Chittagong in 1993 and Studying in CA —Advance Stage from the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB). He is a knowledgeable individual with integrity who is able
to ensure compliance with financial laws, regulatory requirements and corporate laws and can
make meaningful contribution to the business. He has experienced in the field of Accounting,
Audit & Assurance, Income Tax, VAT, IAS/IFRS, and Corporate Reporting etc.

He served in Sea Pearl Beach Resort & SPA Limited (a listed company) as Financial Controller
from January 2018 to March 2019 and also served in Sena Hotel Development Ltd., an unlisted
public limited company having paid-up capital of Tk. 1,200.00 million (Owner of Radisson Blue
Dhaka/Chittagong) as Financial Controller from February 2007 to November 2017. Now, he has
been serving with M/s. BizzCorp International (a consulting firm) as Director, Finance.

He was appointed as an Independent Director of the company from July 2023 by the Board of
Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing AGM.

He is also work as the Chairman of the Audit Committee since July 2023.
Currently He does not hold any directorship in any other company.
He is expert in the field of Accounting, Auditing, Secretarial Practice, Income Tax and other
financial and management consultancy. He is a social worker as well.
15
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Mr. Mohammad Enayet Ullah
Chief Executive Officer, Current Charge (CEOQ, c.c.)

Mr. Mohammad Enayet Ullah, a distinguished professional, was born in 1974 in Noakhali, Ban-
gladesh. He holds a Master’s degree in Management from National University. He began his
career in 2001 as an Assistant Manager in Sales & Marketing at S.R. Trading, a concern of
Al-Amin Group. There, he played a pivotal role in importing, marketing, selling, and distributing
raw materials, machinery, and foreign pharmaceutical and cosmetics brands.

Through his dedication and exceptional performance, he advanced his career within Al-Amin
Group, taking on roles such as Deputy Manager in Procurement and Manager of Corporate
Affairs. His responsibilities included ensuring a smooth supply chain, managing foreign corre-
spondence, coordinating strategic operations, and setting up factories for beverages, sweets &
crackers, solidifying his reputation as a capable and resourceful professional.

He ventured into entrepreneurship as the proprietor of Mars Trading Corporation, which
specialized in trading industrial materials. He further demonstrated his entrepreneurial exper-
tise as the Chief Executive Officer of Mars Packaging Industries, a company specializing in
providing diverse packaging solutions. He is also a member of Bangladesh Garments Accesso-
ries & Packaging Manufacturers & Exporters Association (BGAPMEA).

His expertise became invaluable during the foundational phase of Silva Pharmaceuticals Limit-
ed. He was deeply involved in the registration and licensing processes, including: Factory setup
and layout planning, Machinery planning in alignment with GMP guidelines, DGDA licensing
and product registration. Subsequently, he transitioned into operational role as Deputy Gener-
al Manager (Operations). His leadership has been integral to the company’s growth and opera-
tional excellence.

Mr. Enayet’s career represents a blend of visionary leadership, technical and operational exper-
tise, and entrepreneurial spirit. His diverse experiences and strategic contributions continue to
inspire and shape the success of Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited and the industries he has been
part of.

His tenure as Chief Executive Officer, Current-charge (CEO, c.c.) of the company for the remain-
ing time of MD’s tenure or appoint a new Managing Director whichever comes first, subject to
approval of the shareholders in the 23rd Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the company.

He does not hold membership in any sub-committee of the Board.
Currently He does not hold any directorship in any other company.
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°O< Chairman’s Statement >O°

Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim
Dear Shareholders, Ladies and Gentlemen,
Assalamu Alaikum WaRahmatullah,

It is a great honour and privilege to welcome you on behalf of the Board of the Directors to the 23rd Annual General
Meeting of the Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited and present the Annual Report containing audited financial statements
and reports for the year ended 30 June, 2024.

You are all aware that, most of the companies in the country's manufacturing sector are passing challenging time. Our
Company is not exception of this; it is struggling hard in doing good business due to multifaceted crises like rising raw
material prices, production costs, higher electricity and fuel costs and high inflation. The sales of the company have
decreased and profits have also been affected due to the excessive increase in production costs. Most of the Compa-
nies are conservative position to reinvest now because of reduced profits viewing the probable uncertainties.

Now, we would like to present before you the Annual Report for the year 2023-2024 showing the financial position,
achievement and the notable performance of the company. In Sha Allah.

My dear Shareholders, let me take you all over the financial particulars of the company now. The company attained
during the year 2023-2024 the Net Revenue of BDT. 599.66 million, Gross Profit of BDT. 162.90 million and the Net
Profit after Tax of BDT. (-64.48) million. Comparative last year of 2022-2023 the Net Revenue was BDT. 716.87 million,
Gross Profit was BDT. 231.36 million and the Net Profit after Tax was BDT. 33.08 million. The earnings per share for
this year is BDT. (-0.47) compared to BDT. 0.24 last year.

However, the company decreased its net turnover to Tk. 599.66 million down by 16.35% from the previous year and
the Net Profit after Tax has to Tk. (-64.48) million which was 294.92% lower than the previous year. The above
decreases has been occurred due to increase in cost of goods sold for disruption of global supply chain, price increase
of all input raw material (Local and imported) caused by appreciation of US Dollar against BDT, increase of utility cost
and other relevant overhead and also reduction in the sales revenue. The reason for decreasing sales revenue during
the year are (1) high employee turnover of field level marketing officers (MPQO) and (2) shortage of finished products
availability due to disruption of supply-chain globally for US dollar shortage. Taking into account the financial perfor-
mance of the company your Board has recommended 01.00% (one percent) Cash Dividend for all shareholders
excluding sponsors and directors for the year 2023-2024.

I would like to assure you that, our hard effort to increase the shareholders equity will continue as before. Our efficient
management and skilled labour stands the main driving force of the company. We strongly believe that the financial
growth and market stability of the company will gradually rise in future by utilizing our optimum capacity through better
marketing policy. We look forward to a successful year 2024-2025 and we hope and believe the dollar crisis, depleting
FOREX reserves and ongoing Russia-Ukraine war and Gaza conflict will end very soon.

| sincerely show my immense impression for the dedication commitment and skills of the employees of all level and
gratitude as acknowledgement for the contribution made by the management to bring this success. It is their efforts that
drive the business forward, delivering excellent performance and strong growth across our business. The success we
have achieved is only possible because of the collective effects of all concerned. | thankfully acknowledge their contri-
bution to the company.

We are grateful to our valued customers, well-wishers, healthcare professionals, bankers, suppliers, Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC), Dhaka Stock exchange, Chittagong Stock Exchange, Central Deposi-
tory Bangladesh Ltd., Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms (RJSC), National Board of Revenue, Insurers, and
the Society at large who consider the company as their own.

Thanking you all with wishes of a peaceful prosperity and good health. Lastly | pray to the almighty Allah to bless us
with success and help us in our endeavor marching towards a bright future and benevolence to our people as a whole.

;5"2’»&"1‘;3_:1.
Mrs. Silvana Mirza
Chairman
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aVvipre

Suspension

Sodium Alginate BP, Sodium Bicarbonate BP &
Calcium Carbonate BP

Suppress Acid Reflux
Restore Comfort

Oral Suspension ﬁ
With Orange Flavour w‘l"./

Quick relief from Gets to work G Protects against
heartburn & indigestion within a few seconds reflux upto 4 hours

&‘ foi Sugar free m Should be given after
o SFIfE T s e suspension meals at bedtime
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zith’
Azithromycin USP
200 mg/5 ml

Granules for Suspension

50 ml

Indicated in
| RTis, STis, Typhoid and STD |

New Presentation in
HDPE Bottle

Pharmaceuticals

F=Silva
www.silvapharma.com
74 limited

Antibiotic

Do not use without prescription of registered physician
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¢ _ Directors’ Report to the Shareholders >O°

Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim
Dear Shareholders,
Assalamu Alaikum WaRahmatullah,

The Board of Directors’ of Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited highly pleased to welcome you to the 23rd Annual General
Meeting of the company and present before you to receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the
company for the year ended on 30 June, 2024 together with the Auditors’ Report and Directors’ Report thereon, for
your valuable guidance, opinion and consideration. We express our gratitude to the almighty Allah for the company’s
business achievement in 2023-2024.

The report has been prepared in compliance with section 184 of the Companies Act, 1994, Rule 12 of the Securities
and Exchange Rules, 1987 and BSEC Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin /80 Dated 3 June, 2018,
International Accounting Standard (IAS) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the
Financial Reporting Council (FRC), Bangladesh and the Dhaka Stock Exchange PLC (DSE) and Chittagong Stock
Exchange PLC (CSE) (Listing) Regulations, 2015.

Background

Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited was incorporated in 24 April, 2001 as a private company limited by shares and regis-
tered with the Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms of Bangladesh under the Companies Act, 1994 vide registra-
tion no. CH-42959(2318)/2001. On 22 April, 2014 the company converted to a Public Limited company under the
Companies Act, 1994. The Company was listed with Dhaka Stock Exchange PLC (DSE) on 23th September 2018 and
Chittagong Stock Exchanges PLC (CSE) on 16th September, 2018. From 10th October, 2018 the shares of the compa-
ny’s are traded in both Stock Exchanges.

Main Objective of the Company

The Company’s main objective is to play the role usually offering the healthcare service of highest standard through
production and marketing of quality pharmaceuticals finished products in Bangladesh and abroad.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is the highest governance body of the Company and represents the interests of all shareholders
and stakeholders, irrespective of who elected its directors. The Board of the company comprises with 8 (Eight) Direc-
tors, of whom 4 (Four) directors are shareholder Directors, 2 (Two) nominee directors and 2 (Two) independent direc-
tors. Independent Directors are appointed as per provision of the Corporate Governance Codes of Bangladesh Securi-
ties and Exchange Commission (BSEC) vides reference no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80; dated 03 June,
2018. The Board'’s essential role is to approve the Company’s strategy and oversee compliance.

Industrial Prospects
Silva Pharma tried to maintain the continuity of its productivity and best ethical standard of business affairs preferring

the principles of sustainable development in the year under review. Alhamdulillah.

The Company has been able to hold its customer satisfaction upright providing the quality products with competitive
price in the competitive business environment. The Company gives the utmost importance in extending business activi-
ties through supply of products as per demand keeping in view of future challenge depending on the modern technology.

Bangladesh Pharma Market

The pharmaceutical industry in Bangladesh is moving forward with great potential as 98% of the country’s total demand
for medicine is being met by domestic pharma industries. In addition to meeting the domestic demand, the companies
also export medicines to several countries of the world. Besides, Bangladesh ranks 71st out of 134 countries in the
world in terms of global pharmaceutical exports. As per market analysis by the Bangladesh Investment Development
Authority (BIDA), the demand for healthcare services is growing at about 21% annually.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Detailed discussion on the operating and financial performance of the Company along with other disclosures as
required under Corporate Governance Code of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) through
Notification No. BSEC / CMRRCD / 2006-158 / 207 / Admin / 80, dated June 3, 2018 has been separately reported by
the Managing Director in page no. 47-49 of the Annual Report.

Compliance to the Labor Laws

In order to maintain labor friendly atmosphere in all aspects, the Company duly comply with the Bangladesh Labor Act,
2006 (As amended 2018) and other laws and regulations applicable to the Company. As per the Bangladesh Labor
Rules, 2015 the requisite committees like Participatory Committee, Safety Committee, Canteen Management Commit-
tee and Sexual Harassment Protection Committee were formed. These committees are serving for the wellbeing of the
workers within the purview of the provisions.

Pollution Free Environment

In order to protect from risk of human health and environment, caused by increasing manmade pollution; Silva Pharma-
ceuticals Limited is trying its best to keep pollution free environment through ETP and follow the required laws and rules
of Directorate General of Drug Administration and Department of Environment of the Government in the factory and its
surrounding as well.

Implementation of IAS, IFRS and Other Applicable Laws and Regulations

The Board of Directors of the Company is entrusted to ensure the disclosure of the actual financial position and prepa-
ration and maintenance of all types of Statutory Statements as per the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commis-
sion (BSEC) Rules 1987, the Companies Act-1994 and Bangladesh Financial Reporting Act (FRA)-2015. The Board of
Director’s is absolutely responsible to prepare all types of financial reports in line with International Accounting
Standards (IAS), International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and other applicable rules and regulations.

Financial Report and Accountability

The Board of Directors discharged their due responsibilities through timely preparation and publication of 1st quarter,
half yearly, 3 quarter and annual financial report at the end of each financial period and the affairs of the company
performed in the year under review. Audit Committee, sub-committee of Board examined the fairness, exactness and
transparency and completeness of these reports before placement of the same to the Board of their approval.

The Company published the report (un-audited Financial Statements) of 1st Quarter, half yearly and 3rd Quarter Finan-
cial Statements as per notification of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) Notification No.
SEC/CMRRCD/2018-183/Admin/3-34, dated 27 September 2009 and Listing rules 2015 of Dhaka Stock Exchange
PLC. (DSE) and Chittagong Stock Exchange PLC. (CSE) through Company’s Website, Newspapers and online News
portal and submitted the same timely to BSEC, DSE, CSE and other regulatory authorities.

Audit Committee

As per BSEC'’s notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3 June, 2018, the Audit Committee
consisting of three members including one Independent Director having prominent reputation and versatile knowledge
and experience have been working effectively. The Audit Committee has detailed discussion and analysis on its report
as directed by BSEC and the Board with regards to internal audit system, preparation of annual financial report and the
observations of external auditors. As there was no evidence of slightest mistakes, dissemblance or information
contrary to the truth, the financial report was considered as realistic and transparent. Report of the Audit Committee is
presented in the page no. 52-55 of the Annual Report.

Beneficiary Insider Trading Prohibition Policy

The Company has outlined the beneficiary insider trading prohibition policy regarding the trading of Company’s share
its directors, employees and concerned persons. The policy is being followed accordingly.
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Independent Director

As per notification no-BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03 June, 2018 of Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission (BSEC), two learned and veteran professionals respectively Mr. A.T.M. Sarrowar Kamal Chow-
dhury, M. Com. CA-Advance Level and Mr. Muhammad Moniruzzaman, FCA have been performing the duties as
Independent Director.

Respect to the Laws

The laws of the state and other applicable rules and regulations of the company and the affairs thereon have duly been
complied with the highest preference and timely actions on the same have been ensured. The Company is committed
to abide by the rules of regulatory bodies and other legislative authorities as always.

Statutory Payments

All statutory payments in relation to the employees and the government have duly been made up to date except the
DSE and CSE Listing Fees.

Compliance to the Laws of the Capital Market

Since listing in both the stock Exchanges, the Company strictly abides by all the laws, regulations and directions
circulated time to time by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC), Dhaka Stock Exchange PLC.
(DSE) and Chittagong Stock Exchange PLC. (CSE) and other related authorities.

Workers Profit Participation and Welfare Fund

In the year under review 5% of the Company’s profit Tk. 25,18,229.00 will be transferred to the workers profit participa-
tion and welfare fund as per Labor Law 2006 (As amended in 2018).

Company’s Position in the Share Market

In the year under review, the market share of the Company did not face ups and downs significantly in Dhaka Stock
Exchange PLC. (DSE) or Chittagong Stock Exchange PLC. (CSE). The shareholders had always been confident on
Silva shares. In the year 2023-2024, the company shares were traded in Dhaka Stock Exchanges at minimum of Tk.
13.40 to maximum of Tk. 21.60 and Chittagong Stock Exchanges at minimum of Tk. 13.80 to maximum of Tk. 22.60 as
against the face value of Tk. 10.00.

Directors’ Code of Conduct

The board of the company has approved a separate Code of Conduct for its Directors in compliance with the require-
ment of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) Corporate Governance Code issued on 03 June,
2018 which is stated in the page no. 65 of the Annual report. This Code of Conduct was duly been uploaded in the
Company’s official website in the following link: https://silvapharma.com/investors/ipo/Code .

Code of Ethics and its Implementation

Highest emphasis is given on the implementation of code of ethics and principles so that the concerned officials and
personal can take appropriate decision complying the required laws and professionals manner.

Workers-Officers Relationships

There exists devotion to work and respectful and harmonious relationships among all levels of officers and employees
in The Silva Pharmaceuticals Industry Ltd. which has accelerated the Company’s progress and productivity.
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and their Report

In accordance with the condition 6 of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s Code of Corporate Gover-
nance, BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03 June 2018, the Board formed the Nomination and Remu-
neration Committee (NRC).

The report from the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) about their activities performed during the year
under review is mentioned in the page no. 56-58 of the Annual Report.
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Wages-Remuneration Policy

The salary and wages of the employees are usually determined considering the prevailing inflation, price index and in
commensuration with the existing salary structure in other competitors’ companies. The procedure of evaluation and
determining the honorarium of the functional directors are being followed within the criteria recommended by the Nomi-
nation and Remuneration Committee (NRC) duly approved by the Boards as per corporate governance code of BSEC.

Events after the Reporting Period

Events after the reporting period for the year 2023-2024, no necessity arose for subsequent adjustment or no pecuni-
ary issues thereto happened which is mentionable in the Financial Statement.

Dividend Distribution Policy

The management of the company sincerely believes that at the end of yearly operation of the company, the highest
benefit i.e. dividend is given to the shareholders after retaining a portion of earnings so that the company can maintain
the ability for future expansion and also extending facilities to the shareholders in future. Keeping this policy in mind,
the company declares dividend giving importance on a balance between the present expectation of the shareholders
and that of potential beneficiaries considering all relevant applicable laws and best practices in this connection.

Pursuant to the Dividend related Directive issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC)
BSEC/CMMRCD/2021-386/03 dated on January 14, 2021, the Company has adopted the Dividend Distribution Policy
(DDP). The DDP is stated in the page no. 66-68 of the Annual Report 2024 and is also uploaded in the Company’s
official website in the following link: “Dividend Distribution Policy — Silva Pharmaceuticals Ltd.”.

Transferring the Unclaimed Dividend to Capital Market Stabilization Fund(CMSF)

Pursuant to the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s (BSEC) Directive no. BSEC/ CMMRC-
D/2021-386/03 dated January 14, 2021 and Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission Capital Market Stabili-
zation Fund Rules, 2021, during the year the Company transferred Total Tk.193,986.00 (Taka One Lakh Ninety Three
Thousand Nine Hundred Eighty Six) only against unclaimed or undistributed or unsettled dividend for the year
2018-2019 Tk. 1,21,164.00 and for the year 2019-2020 Tk. 72,822.00 to the Bank Account No. SND A/C
0010311521301 titled "Capital Market Stabilization Fund (CMSF)" maintained with Community Bank Bangladesh Ltd.,
Gulshan Corporate Branch, Dhaka. Year wise unclaimed / undistributed / unsettled dividend amount is stated below
and Company's website link at Unpaid/Unclaimed Dividend — Silva Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

The Year wise unclaimed/undistributed /unsettled dividend amount as on 30 June, 2024 is stated below:

Unclaimed / Unpaid Dividend

Particulars Amount in Taka
Dividend for the year 2022-2023 49,203
Dividend for the year 2021-2022 39,875
Dividend for the year 2020-2021 69,601
Total 158,679

Reserves and Surplus

In the year 2023-2024, Company’s reserves and surplus rose to Tk. 89,09,49,495.00 which was Tk. 96,90,84,309.00
in the previous year.

Appointment of Statutory Auditors’

M/S. M. Z. Islam & Co., Chartered Accountants, Eastern View, 10th Floor, 50, DIT Extension Road, Naya Paltan,
Dhaka-1000, existing statutory auditors of the company, audited the Accounts for the year 2023-2024. M/S. M. Z. Islam
& Co., Chartered Accountants will retire at the 23rd Annual General Meeting (AGM). As per Law, the existing auditors
are eligible for re-appointment as statutory auditors. In this regard M/s. M. Z. Islam & Co.
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Chartered Accountants, Eastern View, 10th Floor, 50, DIT Extension Road, Naya Paltan, Dhaka-1000 has given their
expression of interest to be re-appointment as statutory auditors for the financial year ended on 30 June, 2025.

The Audit Committee reviewed the performance of audit acted in the last year and profile of the said audit firms and
recommended in favour of M/s. M. Z. Islam & Co., Chartered Accountants, for re-appointment as Statutory Auditors of
the company for the next financial year.

Being eligible as per Law, the Board of Directors has concurred with the recommendation of the audit committee to be
re-appointed M/s. M. Z. Islam & Co., Chartered Accountants, Eastern View, 10th Floor, 50, DIT Extension Road, Naya
Paltan, Dhaka-1000 as statutory auditors of the company for the financial year 2024-2025 and continuation up to the
next AGM at a fees of Tk. 3,50,000.00 (Three lac Fifty Thousand) (including TDS but excluding VDS) only subject to
approval by the Shareholders in the 23rd AGM of the company.

Compliance Auditors’ Appointment

As per Corporate Governance Code issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC), M/s. Mollah
Quadir Yusuf & Co., Chartered Accountants, compliance auditors of the company audited the compliance status of the
company for the year 2023-2024 and M/s Mollah Quadir Yusuf & Co., Chartered Accountants retire at this AGM. M/s
Haruner Rashid & Associates, Chartered Secretaries, Chand Mansion (6th Floor), 66, Dilkhusha C/A, Dhaka-1000
willing to interest in conducting the Compliance Audit for the next year. In this respect Mr. A.K.M. Haruner Rashid LL.B,
FCS CEO & Lead Consultant of M/s Haruner Rashid & Associates, Chartered Secretaries giving a proposal for
conducting the next year compliance audit.

The Audit Committee reviewed the profile of the said audit firms and recommended in favour of M/s Haruner Rashid &
Associates, Chartered Secretaries, for appointment as Compliance Auditors’ of the company for the financial year
2024-2025.

The Board of Directors recommended for the appointment of M/s Haruner Rashid & Associates, Chartered Secretaries
as the Compliance Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2024-2025 and fixing the audit fees of Tk. 30,000.00
(Thirty Thousand) (including TDS & excluding VDS) only subject to approval by the Shareholders in the 23rd AGM of
the company.

Independent Scrutinizer Appointment

As per Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s (BSEC’s) directive No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/08
dated 10 March, 2021, the Board of Directors in its 102nd meeting held on November 13, 2024 appointed M/s. Haruner
Rashid & Associates, Chartered Secretaries as an Independent Scrutinizer to observe the 23rd AGM of the company
to be held on 30 December, 2024 ensuring the facility to exercise the shareholders (holders of paper shares or demate-
rialized shares) voting rights on the resolution proposed to be considered at the general meeting.

The due process of election and detailed information of voting results shall be authenticated by Independent Scrutinizer
M/s Haruner Rashid & Associates, Chartered Secretaries and be reported of the same to the BSEC within the stipulat-
ed time of conclusion of AGM.

Appointment of Credit Rating Company

As per Bangladesh Securites and Exchange Commission’s (BSEC’s) Notification No. BSEC/CMR-
RC/2009-193/37/Admin/132 dated 12 May, 2022, the Board of Directors in its 94th meeting held on November 14,
2022 appointed M/s. Credit Rating Agency of Bangladesh Limited (CRAB), Navana-DH Tower, Level-15, Plot-06,
Panthapath, Tejgaon, Dhaka-1215 as a Credit Rater to rating position of the company for the financial year from
2021-2022 to 2024-2025, total four years and fixing the Credit Rating fees of Tk. 50,000.00 (Fifty Thousand) (including
TDS but excluding VDS) per year only.

Relation and Communication with the Shareholders

The Company has been arranging regular Annual General Meetings (AGM) as per Companies Act, 1994 through
which Shareholders are informed about the Company’s progress, important activities and the development activities
undertaken during the year under review. As a result, the shareholders concerned organizations and the people get
various information about the company in due time. The Shareholders of the company are able to collect all required
information from our share department through land phone, mobile phone, e-mail service and website (www.silvaphar-
ma.com) as well.
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Statements or disclosures as per clause (5) of BSEC Notification No. BSEC/ CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80
Dated 03 June, 2018

(i) Industry outlook and possible future developments in the industry:

The Pharmaceuticals industry currently contributes approximately 2 percent to the country’s gross domestic product
(GDP), according to industry people. The notable change that attracted the world towards Bangladesh is a conse-
quence of innovation in the science and research and development sector. Rise in life expectancy, growing per capita
income, changing disease profile, population growth, lifestyle changes and increasing patient population are some of
the key drivers that are boosting consumption in the local market. The size of the pharmaceutical market in Bangladesh
is estimated BDT 32,872 crores as of June 2024. The share of generic drugs is expected to surpass 85 percent by
2025, which will further strengthen the dominance of local pharmaceutical companies in the market.

“The pharmaceutical market has been witnessing excellent growth in recent years, and it is expected to have a
compound annual growth rate of more than 12 percent during the 2019-2025 period, “said the report titled “Bangladesh
Pharmaceuticals Market Future Opportunity Outlook 2025”. A majority of the growth will be contributed by local compa-
nies with a market share of more than 90 percent as similar to past trends attained over the last two decades.

(i) Segment-wise or product-wise performance:

No geographical segment reporting is applicable for the company as required by IFRS 08: Operating Segments, as the
company operates in a single geographical area and has a single business line of product i.e. manufacturing and
selling of medicine.

Product wise sales performances are given below:

Name of ltem

Quantity (Pcs/PHs)

Amount in Taka

01/07/2023 to

01/07/2022 to

01/07/2023 to

01/07/2022 to

30/06/2024 30/06/2023 30/06/2024 30/06/2023
Tablet 91,864,525 103,309,726 278,464,528 323,279,790
Capsule 24,919,458 33,590,892 108,275,846 147,150,552
Liquid 1,384,750 1,417,113 88,246,250 107,314,346
Dry Syrup 1,252,245 1,090,366 124,672,485 139,121,747
Total 119,420,978 139,408,097 599,659,109 716,866,435

However, product wise capacity utilization is given in note no. 41.03 of the Financial Statements.

(iii) Risk & Concerns:

Pharmaceuticals industry faces many of the challenges like lack of power, labour unrest, political unrest resulting hartal
causing disruption of production and cost of fund. Changes in the existing global or national policies can have either
positive or negative impacts for the company. Any insufficiency or price hike of raw materials due to change in policy
in the international market might hamper the production and profitability. Changes in currency exchange rates might
also affect the pricing and thereby the profitability of the Company. The performance of the company may also be
affected negatively by the political and economic instability both in Bangladesh and worldwide. Moreover, risks and
concern of the industry solely depends on the upcoming government policy as well.

The potential impact of the dollar crisis, depleting FOREX reserves and ongoing Russia-Ukraine war and Gaza conflict
outbreak on the Company’s trading performance and supply continuity remains uncertain. Up to the date of this report,
the outbreak has a lot of impact on the trading results of the industry. However, we continue to monitor the situation
closely, including the potential impacts on trading results, our supply continuity and our employees. The situation could
change at any time and there can be no assurance that the dollar crisis and depleting FOREX reserves outbreak will
not have a material adverse impact but continuing of Russia-Ukraine war and Gaza conflict will have a material adverse
impact on the future results of the company.
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(iv) Discussion on Cost of Goods Sold, Gross Profit Margin and Net Profit Margin:

Cost of goods Sold:

The year’s cost of goods sold was Tk. 436.76 million (72.83% of Sales) as compared to last year’s cost of goods sold
of Tk. 485.50 million (67.73% of Sales). This is due to effect for disruption of global supply chain, price increase of all
input raw material (Local and imported) caused by appreciation of US Dollar against BDT, increase of utility cost and

other relevant overhead.

Gross Profit:

Gross profit earned during the year was Tk. 162.90 million as against last year’'s gross profit of Tk. 231.36 million.
Gross profit decrease due to increase of cost of production and decrease in sales compared to last year.

Net Profit/ (Loss):

The company earned net profit/loss during the year amounting to Tk. (-64.48) million as compared to last year’'s net
profit of Tk. 33.08 million. The Net profit is decreased compared to the prior year due to increase of cost of production

and decrease in sales.

Financial Results:

The overall financial results of the company for the year ended 30 June, 2024 as compared to previous year ended 30

June, 2023 are summarized as follows:

Particulars Amount in Taka
01/07/2023 to 30/06/2024 01/07/2022 to 30/06/2023
Turnover 599,659,109 716,866,435
Cost of Goods sold (436,758,109) (485,502,033)
Gross Profit/ (Loss) 162,901,006 231,364,402
Operating Expenses (211,149,096) (185,168,222)
Operating Income -48,248,090 46,196,180
Net Profit/ (Loss) before Income Tax -46,496,645 50,364,571
Income Tax Expenses (17,988,169) (17,288,832)
Net Profit/ (Loss) after Income Tax -64,484,814 33,075,739
Earnings Per Share (EPS) -0.47 0.24
Retained Earnings 890,949,495 969,084,309
Net Asset Value (NAV) 2,255,949,495 2,334,084,309
Net Asset Value (NAV) per Share 16.53 17.10
Net Operating Cash Flow per Share 0.03 0.51
Earnings Per Net Asset Net Operating Cash Flow

Share (EPS)

Il 2023-2024 W 2022-2023

Value (NAV)

H 2023-2024 W 2022-2023

Per Share (NOCFPS

Il 2023-2024 W 2022-2023
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(v) Discussion on Continuity of any extra-ordinary activities and their implications (gain or loss):

During the Financial year 2023-2024, no extra ordinary activities occurred in the Company.

(vi) About the Related Party Transactions

The business related Party Transaction of the Company is being made based on the business principle and as per
International Accounting Standard 1AS-24. During the year under review, the standard, nature and the manner of
related party transactions in the ordinary course of business carried out arm’s length basis at commercial rates with
related parties were reflected transparently in the financial statements which is given in note no. 43.00 of the Financial
Statements on page no. 135-136 of this Annual Report.

(vii) Statement of Utilization of Proceeds rose through Public Issues:

The Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited accorded the consent from Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
(BSEC) on 28 June 2018 for raising its capital through Initial Public Offering (IPO) for implementation of the followings:

Sl. Particulars Amount in BDT.
01 Acquisition of brand new machinery and Equipment 122,500,000
02 | Civil construction of new factory building 56,000,000
03 | Repayment of term loan of NCC Bank Limited (Kawran Bazar Branch) 99,000,000
04 IPO expenses 22,500,000
Total 300,000,000

The status of IPO proceeds as on 30 June, 2024 are given below:

Estimated Revised Estimated | Amount used Un-Utilized
Purpose of IPO Fund Utilization Amount as per Amount as per up to 30 June, | Amount of

Prospectus 18th AGM 2024 IPO Fund
IPO Expenses 22,500,000 20,441,474 20,441,474 -
Civil Construction 56,000,000 58,058,526 58,058,526 -
Machinery & Equipment 122,500,000 122,500,000 94,317,362 28,182,638
Payment of Term Loan 99,000,000 99,000,000 99,000,000 -
TOTAL 300,000,000 300,000,000 271,817,362 28,182,638

The progress of utilization of IPO Proceeds

Utilization of IPO Fund already utilized 90.61% amount which includes 100% of IPO Expenses, Payment of Term Loan
and Civil Construction and 76.99% of Machinery & Equipment. Used of IPO funds against IPO Expenses, Payment of
Term Loan and Civil Construction within its stipulated time. Using the fund, SPL has built a new factory building and
installed new capital machineries. Process of built new factory building and installed new capital machineries is going
on. We expect to complete the whole procedures within the next 12 months. As per extended time which was approved
by the Shareholders in the 22nd Annual General Meeting (AGM) the IPO proceeds has to be completed within 31
December, 2024. Due to ongoing Russia-Ukraine geopolitical situation which has caused supply chain disruptions as
well as additional cost pressure for devaluation of BDT against USD as well as market uncertainties, furthermore,
Banks are unwilling to open new L/C for import of new capital machinery & equipment due to Dollar crisis and also
access to new loans is becoming increasingly difficult due to limited access to financing. In the above situation, the
company could not complete the whole establishments of constructed new factory building and import related Capital
machinery from abroad in the scheduled time. For this reason, the management could not complete the utilization of
IPO fund fully.
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Using the interest amount of un-utilized IPO subscription money:

The total IPO Fund received BDT. 30,00,00,000/- (Thirty Crore) only on which total utilized up to September, 2024
BDT. 271,817,362/- and unutilized amount BDT. 28,182,638/-. The amount was kept in Shahjalal Islami Bank Limited
(SJIBL) in FDR form. The FDR earns some interest at the end of the period. The management wants to use this interest
money at any time for its urgent working capital needs. The board of directors accepted in its 101st and 102nd BoD’s
meeting to using the interest of IPO subscription money as emergency working capital needs subject to approval of the
shareholders in the 23rd Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the company.

(viij) Explanation if the financial Results Deteriorate after the company goes for Initial Public Offering (IPO), Repeat
Public Offering (RPO), Right Offer and Direct Listing:

Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited went for Initial Public offering (IPO) in the year 2018 and did not go for any further
offering since then. There has been no deteriorating in the financial results after the company goes for Initial Public
Offering (IPO). So, no such explanation is required for Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited.

(ix) Explanation of significance variance occurs between Quarterly Financial Performance and Annual Financial State-
ments.:

During the financial year 2023-2024, Annual financial statements are considerably varied with the quarterly financial
performances of the company. The above variance occurred due to decrease in sales volume for (1) high employee
turnover of field level marketing officers (MPQO) and (2) shortage of finished products availability due to disruption of
supply-chain globally for US dollar shortage..

(x) Remuneration to directors including independent Directors:

The company did not pay any remuneration or any other facilities or perquisites except board meeting attending fees
to its directors (including independent directors) except Managing Director during the financial year ended 30 June,
2024. A statement of remuneration paid to the directors including independent directors is stated in the Notes 43.01 of
the notes to the financial statements on page no. 136 of this Annual Report.

(xi) Financial Statements prepared by the management of the Company presents fairly its state of affairs, the result of
its operation, cash flows and changes in equity:

The financial statements together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act
1994 and the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987. These statements present fairly the Company’s state of affairs, the
result of operation, cash flow and changes in equity.

(xii) Proper books of accounts of the company have been maintained:

The Books of accounts of the Company have been maintained properly.

(xiii) Accounting Policies:

The appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparing financial statements and the account-
ing estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

(xiv) Application of IAS and IFRS:

International Accounting Standard (IAS) and International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) as adopted by the
Financial Reporting Council (FRC) which is applicable in Bangladesh have been followed in preparing financial state-
ments and any departure has been adequately disclosed.

(xv) The system of internal control:

The internal control system was proper and effective application and monitoring was confirmed.
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(xvi) Statement that minority shareholders have been protected from abusive actions by, or in the interest of, controlling sharehold-
ers acting either directly or indirectly and have effective means of redress:

As a constant policy of the company, interests of minority shareholders have been protected meticulously by the
management. The management protects interest of Minority shareholders from abusive actions by or in the interest of,
controlling shareholders acting either directly or indirectly and has effective means of redress in place. No abusive
actions either directly or indirectly with regard to the interest of minority shareholders was observed.

(xvii) Going Concern:

By the grace of the Almighty Allah, the Board of Directors after analysis of the business trend of the Company has
confirmed that the Company has enough ability to carry on business activities in the coming days as a Going Concern
and the financial statements have been prepared on the basis of going concern assumption basis. As per management
assessment there is no material uncertainties related to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

(xviii) Explanation of significant deviation from the last year’s operating result:

There have been remarkable deviations in the operational affairs as compared to the previous year. The explanation
regarding the Deviation in net profit after tax and EPS are as follows:

The operating profit and EPS has decreased comparison with corresponding previous year due to increase in cost of
goods sold for disruption of global supply chain, price increase of all input raw material (Local and imported) caused by
appreciation of US Dollar against BDT, increase of utility cost and other relevant overhead and also reduction in the
sales revenue. The reason for decreasing sales revenue during the year are (1) high employee turnover of field level
marketing officers (MPO) and (2) shortage of finished products availability due to disruption of supply-chain globally for
US dollar shortage.

(xix) Key operating and financial data preceding 5 (Five) years:
The statement of key operating and financial data for the last preceding 5(five) years of the company have been

presented as follows:

Financial Highlights for the last 5 (five) Years

Figures in Taka

Particulars
2023-2024 2022-2023 ‘ 2021-2022 | 2020-2021 2019-2020
Operating Data

Turnover 599,659,109 716,866,435 778,669,854 799,249,592 763,335,406
Cost of Goods Sold 436,758,103 485,502,033 491,295,776 484,217,947 464,525,568
Operating Expenses 211,149,096 | 185,168,222 | 170,829,024 | 166,316,323 | 151,457,138
Financial Expenses 4,467,057 3,866,297 4,759,978 2,792,095 1,459,132
Gross Profit 162,901,006 231,364,402 287,374,078 315,031,645 298,809,838
Operating Profit (48,248,090) 42,329,883 111,785,076 145,923,227 145,893,568
Net Profit before Tax (46,496,645) 50,364,571 116,666,221 151,345,370 159,087,248
Net Profit after Tax (64,484,814) 33,075,739 102,255,594 119,853,751 118,942,931

Financial Position Data

ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024

Shareholders’ Equity 2,255,949,495 | 2,334,084,309 | 2,325,198,381 | 2,270,472,128 | 2,198,109,877
Non-Current Assets 1,474,712,706 | 1,502,305,667 | 1,481,576,724 | 1,372,217,229 | 1,365,926,835
Non-Current Liabilities 84,114,522 82,455,958 81,431,672 88,198,786 98,260,873
Current Assets 939,515,718 | 1,000,426,186 | 1,063,164,037 | 1,074,937,836 | 1,090,279,961
Current Liabilities 74,164,407 86,191,586 138,110,708 88,484,151 159,836,046
Total Assets 2,414,228,424 | 2,502,731,853 | 2,544,740,761 | 2,447,155,065 | 2,456,206,796
Total Liabilities 158,278,929 168,647,544 219,542,380 176,682,937 258,096,919
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Financial Ratios

Current Ratio (Times) 12.67 11.61 7.70 1215 6.82
Debt-Equity Ratio (Times) 0.07 0.07 0.09 0.08 0.12
Gross Profit Ratios (%) 27.17% 32.27% 36.91% 39.42% 39.15%
Net Income Ratio (%) (10.75%) 4.61% 13.13% 15.00% 15.58%
Return on Equity (%) (2.86%) 1.42% 4.40% 5.28% 5.41%
Return on Assets (%) (2.62%) 1.31% 4.10% 4.89% 5.00%
Equity Parameters
Authorised Capital 1,500,000,000 | 1,500,000,000 | 1,500,000,000 | 1,500,000,000 | 1,500,000,000
Paid-up Capital 1,365,000,000 | 1,365,000,000 | 1,365,000,000 | 1,365,000,000 | 1,365,000,000
Shareholders’ Equity 2,255,949,495 | 2,334,084,309 | 2,325,198,381 | 2,270,472,128 | 2,198,109,877
Number of Shares Outstanding 136,500,000 136,500,000 136,500,000 136,500,000 136,500,000
Face Value per share 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00
me;\'f)ssef Value per share 16.53 17.10 17.03 16.63 16.10
Earnings Per Share (Basic EPS) -0.47 0.24 0.75 0.88 0.87
Market Price per Share(Closing) 14.30 21.60 24.10 19.70 18.30
Price Earnings ratio (Times) -30.27 90.00 28.80 22.39 21.00
g‘:;rg'?sgg:gS?qSh Flow Per 0.03 0.51 1.18 117 1.10
Dividend -Cash (%) L 1o | 0008 H 5.00 5.00
Dividend -Stock (%) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Number of Shareholders 6,736 7,069 6,067 6,223 6,962
Number of Employees 596 587 658 945 914

(xx) Declaration of Dividend:

During the year, the Board of Directors of the Company recommended 1% (One percent) Cash Dividend for all share-
holders excluding sponsors and directors.

(xxi) Declaration of Interim Dividend:

During the Financial Year 2023-2024 no Bonus share or Stock Dividend has been declared by the board as interim

dividend.

(xxii) The total number of board meetings held during the year and attendance by each director:

During the year ended 30 June, 2024 the Board of Directors were held 04 (Four) meetings. The attendance record of
the Directors is shown below. The Directors who could not attend the meeting were granted leave of absence.

Board Meeting and Attendance During the year ended 30 June, 2024:

;:;' Name of Attended Position Me::ion.go:\eld No:A:tfelr\‘Ade::ling
1 Mrs. Silvana Mirza Chairman 04 04
2 | Dr. Saira Khan, MBBS, DCH, FCPS. Managing 04 04
Director
3 Mrs. Samina Mirza Director 04 04
4 Mrs. Farhana Mirza Director 04 02
5 Mrs. Mahmuda Akhter (Nominated by ICB) Director 04 04
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Sl. - No. of No. of Meeting
No. Name of Attended Position Meeting held Attended
Mr. Monsur Rahman (Nominated by Adarsha .
| Fisheries & Poultry Farm Ltd.) Director 04 04
7 Mr. ATM Sarrowar Kamal Chowdhury Inde.penden'r 04 04
Director
8 Mr. Muhammad Moniruzzaman, FCA, Inde.penden’r 04 04
Director
In Attendance
No. of No. of
Sl. No. Name of Directors Attended Position Meeting Meeting
held Attended
1 Mr. Md. Igbal Hossain Company Secretary 04 04
2 Mr. Md. Abul Kasem Chief Financial Officer 04 04
3 Mr. Khurshid Ahmmed Siddique Head of Internal Audit 04 04
& Compliance

(xxiii) A report on the pattern of shareholding as on 30 June 2024 disclosing the aggregate number of shares (along with name wise
details) held by:-

A report on the pattern of shareholding as on 30 June 2024 disclosing the aggregate numbers of shares (along with
name wise details) are stated below:-

a. Parent or Subsidiary or Associated Companies and other related parties:

The Silva Pharmaceuticals limited does not have any Parent or Subsidiary or Associated Companies as on 30 June,
2024. However, other related parties do not hold any shares of the company.

b. Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Head of internal Audit and Compliance and their

spouses and minor children:

Sl. Number of | Percentage

No. Name of the Shareholders Status Shares Held (%)

01. | Mrs. Silvana Mirza Chairman 30,55,500 02.24%

02. | Dr. Saira Khan, MBBS, DCH, FCPS. Managing Director 73,18,500 05.36%

03. | Mrs. Samina Mirza Director 30,55,500 02.24%

04. | Mrs. Farhana Mirza Director 30,55,500 02.24%

05. | Mrs. Mahmuda Akhter (Nominated by ICB) Director 2,75,17,952 20.16%
Mr. Monsur Rahman (Nominated by Adarsha . o

06. Fisheries & Poultry Farm Ltd.) Director 53,44,500 03.92%

07. Mr. ATM Sarro.war Kamal Chowdhury, Independent Director Nil Nil
Independent Director

08. Mr. Muhamch.zl Moniruzzaman, FCA, Independent Director Nil Nil
Independent Director

09. | Mr. Md. Igbal Hossain Company Secretary Nil Nil

10. | Mr. Md. Abul Kasem Chief Financial Officer Nil Nil

11. | Mr. Khurshid Ahmmed Siddique Head of Internal Audit 24,500 0.02%

and Compliance
12. | Mr. A. R. Hassan Mirza Spouses of Managing | 4 53 65000 | 7.62%
Director
13 | Other Spouse and Minor Children Nil Nil
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c. Executives:

'3:". Name of the Shareholders Status ST\::;:e;I;: Per(zeo/:;age
O1. | Dr. Saira Khan, MBBS, DCH, FCPS. Managing Director 73,18,500 05.36%
02. | Mr. A. R. Hassan Mirza Executive Director 1,03,95,000 7.62%
03. | Mr. Md. Igbal Hossain Company Secretary Nil Nil

04. | Mr. Md. Abul Kasem Chief Financial Officer Nil Nil

05. | Mr. Khurshid Ahmmed Siddique Heﬁ:‘cc';‘:;‘ig'nf:d” 24,500 0.02%

d. Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more voting interest in the company (name-wise details):

Sl. Number of | Percentage
No. Name of the Shareholders Status Shares Held (%)
O1. | Investment Corporation of Bangladesh (ICB) Director 2,75,17,952 20.16%

(xxiv) Appointment or re-appointment of Director:

As per provision of the Articles of Association of the company Mrs. Silvana Mirza and Mr. Monsur Rahman (Nominee
of Adarsha Fisheries and Poultry Farm Limited) will retire by rotation in the next 23rd Annual General Meeting and
being eligible they will be offered for re-appointment and the ICB nominated Mr. A.K.M. Nuruzzaman, DGM instead of
Mrs. Mahmuda Akhter, GM, against their shareholding vide letter no,-ICB/SD/14.73/1762(5) dated 12.11.2024. The
brief resume along with the required information of the directors is given under the Directors Profile in page no. 08, 12
and 13 of this Annual Report.

(xxv) Resignation of existing Managing Director and Appointment of Chief Executive Officer, Current-charge (CEO
c.c.):

Dr. Saira Khan, the existing Managing Director of the company was placed her resignation letter to the Board on 03
November, 2024 and the Board of Directors of the company has approved her resignation effective from November 30,
2024.The Board of Directors also has decided to appoint Mr. Mohammad Enayet Ullah, Deputy General Manager
(Operations) as the Chief Executive Officer, Current-charge (CEO c.c.) of the company for the remaining time of MD’s
tenure or appoint new MD whichever comes first, subject to approval of the shareholders in the 23rd Annual General
Meeting (AGM) of the company. And take over the responsibility of Managing Director for the remaining tenure from
December 01, 2024 to March 11, 2025. The brief resume along with the required information of the Chief Executive
Officer, Current-charge (CEO c.c.) is given under the Directors Profile in page no. 16 of this Annual Report.

(xxvi) Management’s Discussion and Analysis:

Detailed discussion on the operating and financial performance of the company along with other disclosures as
required under Corporate Governance Code of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) through
Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 3, 2018 has been separately reported by the
Managing Director in page no. 47-49.

(xxvii) Declaration or Certification by the Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer:

Declaration or Certification by the Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer to the Board of Director’s as required
by Annexure-A of the notification of BSEC is disclosed in the page no. 82 of the Annual Report.

(xxviii) The report of compliance on the Corporate Governance Code:
The report of compliance on the Corporate Governance Code audited by Compliance Auditor has been incorporated

as per preformats prescribed in Annexure-B and Annexure-C of the notification of BSEC has been disclosed in page
no. 83-93 of the Annual Report.
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Recognition and Compliments

The Board of Directors extends its heart felt gratefulness to the Ministry of Health, Directorate General of Drug Adminis-
tration, respected Doctors, Chemists, Patrons and all concerned with the pharmaceuticals industry for their all-out
support to us. The Board of Directors remembers the co-operation of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commis-
sion (BSEC), Dhaka Stock Exchanges PLC. (DSE) and Chittagong Stock Exchanges PLC, (CSE) gratefully. The Board
thanks the banks and the financial institutions for their support.

The Board of Directors wishes all levels of officers, employees, buyers, consumers, patrons, well-wishers and all
concerned for their sincere contribution towards our business success, we are also grateful to our beloved sharehold-
ers for their comprehensive support to the company.

The shareholders trustworthiness to the Board of Directors makes them confident and deeply inspired. The manage-
ment and employees of all levels are committed to uphold this.

May Allah accept all our efforts for the development of our company, Nation and the country at large. We pray to the
Almighty Allah for his blessing for continual overall progress and prosperity of our beloved country People’s Republic
of Bangladesh.

Allah Hafiz

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf,

Mrs. Silvana Mirza

Chairman
Dhaka, 28 October, 2024
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e . . . N\
QU Management’s Discussion and Analysis o

A management’s discussion and analysis signed by managing director presenting detailed analysis of the
company'’s position and operations along with a brief discussion of changes in the financial statements:

As per condition no. 1 (5) (xxv) of the Corporate Governance Code 2018 issued by Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission, the management of Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited has prepared the following analysis in
relation to the company’s position and operations along with brief discussion of changes in the financial statements for
the year 2023-24, among others:

Accounting policies and estimation for preparation of financial statements:

Dear shareholders, the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements and the relevant disclosures therein
have been made in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules
1987, the Listing Regulations of Stock Exchanges as applicable and International Accounting Standards (IAS) and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted by the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) as applicable to
the company. The details description regarding the issues described in the note no. 2.00 and 3.00 of the financial state-
ments.

Changing in accounting policies and estimation, if any:

Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited has been following consistent policies and estimation and there is no such change in
accounting policies or estimation which has material impact on the financial statements and the description on the
issue is stated in the page no. 108 of the Annual Report.

Comparative analysis of financial performance:

Below is a comparative analysis of the financial performance and financial position of our Company over the last 5 (five)
years including the current year:

Particulars 2023-2024 | 2022-2023 | 2021-2022 | 2020-2021 2019-2020
Revenue 599,659,109 | 716,866,435 | 778,669,854 | 799,249,592 | 763,335,406
Gross Profit 162,901,006 | 231,364,402 | 287,374,078 | 315,031,645 | 298,809,838
Net Profit After Tax (64,484,814) | 33,075,739 | 102,255,594 | 119,853,751 | 118,942,931
EPS (0.47) 0.24 0.75 0.88 0.87
Dividend Payout Ratio (%) (10.46%) 41.27% 23.66% 39.62% 39.93%
Gross Profit Ratio (%) 27.17% 32.27% 36.91% 39.42% 39.15%
Current Ratio (Times) 12.67 11.61 7.70 12.15 6.82
Debt Equity Ratio (Times) 0.07 0.07 0.09 0.08 0.12
Return on Equity % (2.86%) 1.42% 4.40% 5.28% 5.41%

Detail of comparative analysis of financial performance and operational performance for current financial year with
immediate preceding four years are stated in page no. 42-43 of the Annual Report.

Comparison of financial performance or results and financial position as well as cash flows with the peer
industry scenario:

As most of the top leading Pharmaceutical Companies are Private Limited Company or Proprietorship Concern, there-
fore, they are not disclosing their financial data to the Public. Besides, current year financial data of the companies
which are listed with Stock Exchanges are yet to publish. therefore, despite difficulties of making defined segment
based comparison of financial performance or results and financial position as well as cash flows with some peer indus-
tries we have made the followings for ease of understanding.

We have selected three of the listed Companies for comparison and have used ratio analysis as it is one of the best

tools for assessing and comparing the financial performance of the Company based on the published Annual Report
2022-23 and 2021-22.
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Particulars 2022-2023 2021-2022
Financial Ratios S:,LXI:A Silco IBP | Central S:,LI_\III:A Silco IBP | Central
Current Ratio 11.61 3.40 4.25 1.18 7.70 3.61 3.49 1.25
Return on Equity (%) 1.42 2.98 0.52 (-6.56) 4.40 3.71 1.55 (-9.56)
Net Asset Value Per Share (Tk) 17.10 | 22.35 | 13.96 5.59 17.03 2195 | 13.98 5.96
Net Operating Cash flow Per Share (Tk) 0.51 1.74 0.63 (-0.00) 1.18 1.63 0.79 (-0.01)
Earnings Per Share (Tk) 0.24 0.67 0.07 (-0.37) 0.75 0.81 0.22 (-0.57)

Financial and Economic Scenario of Bangladesh and the Globe:

The global fight against inflation has made significant progress, with headline inflation dropping from a peak of 9.4%
year-on-year in the third quarter of 2022 to a projected 3.5% by the end of 2025.

Global economic growth is forecasted to remain stable at 3.2% in 2024 and 2025. However, certain regions, particularly
low-income developing countries, have faced downward growth revisions due to conflicts and economic challenges.
While the decline in inflation is a positive milestone, risks remain significant. Factors such as escalating regional
conflicts, prolonged monetary tightening, financial market volatility, and a slowdown in China could impact growth
further.

For advanced economies, growth outlooks vary. The United States has seen upgrades, while major European econo-
mies face downgrades. In emerging markets, issues like disruptions in commodity production and shipping, civil unrest,
and extreme weather have affected economic prospects, particularly in the Middle East, Central Asia, and sub-Saha-
ran Africa.

In Bangladesh, the post-COVID recovery continues to face hurdles. High inflation, a balance of payments deficit, finan-
cial sector vulnerabilities, and limited job opportunities; especially for women and educated youth, have slowed the
recovery process.

Inflation, primarily driven by elevated food and energy prices, averaged 9.7% in Financial Year 2024. While inflation is
expected to remain high in the near term, it may gradually subside if supply-side challenges stabilize and prudent fiscal
and monetary policies are implemented.

Real GDP growth in Bangladesh slowed to 5.2% in Financial Year 2024 from 5.8% in Financial Year 2023, marking the
second consecutive year of deceleration. Weak domestic consumption, declining export growth, higher energy prices,
and import restrictions have hindered economic performance. On the supply side, industrial growth declined notably,
but the services and agriculture sectors showed resilience.

Despite the broader economic challenges, Bangladesh's pharmaceutical industry has shown promise. According to the
IQVIA Q2 2024 report, the domestic market reached an estimated BDT 328.73 billion, a 7.21% increase compared to
the previous year.

Bangladesh's pharmaceutical industry has established a strong global presence, with products being exported to over
150 countries. In the Financial Year 2023-2024, export earnings reached $200 million, marking a 17.17% growth
compared to the previous fiscal year.

For Bangladesh, tackling inflation, boosting export competitiveness, and creating more inclusive job opportunities will

be key to sustaining growth. With strategic investments in industrial sectors, including pharmaceuticals, alongside
sound economic policies, we can navigate these challenges and strengthen our economic recovery.
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Risks and concerns issues related to the financial statements, explaining such risk and concerns mitigation
plan of the company:

Currently Bangladesh along with other parts of the globe is passing through a tunnel of crisis in terms of health
management, social as well as financial for the post pandemic of COVID-19 and ongoing Russia-Ukraine war, Gaza
coflict and dollar crisis situation. The company has been monitoring the impact of dollar crisis and ongoing
Russia-Ukraine war & Gaza coflicts on all aspects of its business. The management has exercised due care, in
concluding on significant accounting judgments, policies and estimates while preparing the Financial Statements for
the year ended 30 June 2024.

Besides, organizations are not free from risks that might arise both from internal and external fronts. Like any other
business or industry, Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited operating in a dynamic and competitive market is exposed to risks
that may affect its business.

Efficient and effective Risk management is the integral part and parcel of today’s business. As such, Silva Pharmaceu-
ticals Limited would be subject to systematic risks of the industry and market as well. The risks and concerned issues
related to the financial statements explaining such risk and mitigation plan thereof is described in the page no. 108-109
of the Annual Report.

Future Plan

Dear Shareholders,

We are delighted to inform you that our new state-of-the-art manufacturing facility is in the final stages of construction.
However, due to the ongoing financial instability and challenges in opening Letters of Credit (LC) within Bangladesh,
we were unable to complete the facility within this year as initially planned. We are actively addressing these challeng-
es and working diligently to expedite the remaining work. With unwavering dedication, we expect the completion of the
facility in the near future. This new factory will significantly enhance our production capacity, operational efficiency, and
ability to meet market demand with even higher quality standards.

We extend our heartfelt gratitude to our shareholders, customers, suppliers, bankers, and regulatory authorities for
their trust, patience, and continued support during this time. Your faith in Silva Pharmaceuticals drives us to overcome
hurdles and strive for excellence. Despite temporary setbacks, we remain optimistic about the future. With the comple-
tion of the new facility and the continued support of all stakeholders, Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited is poised to enter
a new era of growth and innovation.

We thank you once again for standing with us and reaffirm our commitment to achieving shared success.

Thank you,

Dr. Saira Khan MBBS, DCH, FCPS.
Managing Director
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Q Shareholders’ Information B

For the year ended 30" June, 2024

@ Authorized Capital : Tk. 1,500,000,000

of Shares : Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10 each

Voting Right : One Vote per Ordinary Share

9 Mo. of Shares : 136,500,000

@ Market Category: B

Redressed of investor's complain: During the year under review, the complaints received from the Shareholders have
duly been addressed and resolved accordingly.

Stock Exchange Listing

The issued Ordinary shares of Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited are listed with the Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited and
Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited.

Status of Shareholding — 2024 (June)

Sponsars & Directors

B9,034 952 Shares

Institution

22830427 Shares

In Pursuance of BSEC Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2008-183/Admin/03-34 dated 27-09-2009 the Quarterly
Reports is given below:-

QUARTERLY RESULTS

During the year 2023-2024 operational results of the Company were announced on —

1" Quarter Report 14 November, 2023
Half Yearly Report 30 January, 2024

3" Quarter Report | 29 April, 2024
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DIVIDEND : FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-2023

Board Meeting for the Year 2022-2023 28 October, 2023

Record Date for the Year 2022-2023 03 December, 2023

22" Annual General Meeting for the Year 2022-2023 28 December, 2023

Commencement of Cash Dividend Distribution for the Year 2022-2023 25 January, 2024

Completion of Cash Dividend Distribution for the Year 2022-2023 31 January, 2024
L¢)

(+]
' Composition of Shareholding Position

Sl. No. Name of the Shareholders Status Number of Percentage

Shares Held (%)
01. | Mrs. Silvana Mirza Chairman 30,55,500 2.24%
02. | Dr. Saira Khan, MBBS, DCH, FCPS. Managing 73,18,500 5.36%
Director

03. Mrs. Samina Mirza Director 30,55,500 2.24%

04. Mrs. Farhana Mirza Director 30,55,500 2.24%

05. 7\(/1::;) Mahmuda Akhter (Nominated by Director 275,17,952 20.16%

Mr. Monsur Rahman (Nominated by Director 0

06. Adarsha Fisheries & Poultry Farm Ltd.) 53,44,500 3.91%

07. | Md. Anwar Mirza (Deceased) Sponsor 50,92,500 3.73%
Shareholder

08. | Dr. Shibli Mirza Sponsor 42,00,000 3.08%
Shareholder

09. | AR Hassan Mirza Sponsor 1,03,95,000 7.62%
Shareholder

10. Institute Shareholder 22,830,427 16.72%

11. | Foreign Shareholder 11,025 0.01%

12. General Public Shareholder 44,623,596 32.69%

Total 13,65,00,000 100.00%
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oOCReport of the Audit CommitteeDOO

Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim

Honorable Shareholder(s),
Assalamu Alaikum Wa Rahmatullah

The Audit Committee is a sub-committee of the Board of Directors of Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited and is responsible
to oversee the financial reporting process. The committee assists the board for ensuring that the financial statements
reflect a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and good governance system within the business. The
Audit Committee is responsible to the Board of Directors. The duties of the Audit Committee are clearly set forth in
writing. The Committee is considered as the overseer of the company’s for protecting interest of the shareholders.

Composition of Audit Committee
In compliance with the Corporate Governance Code 2018, Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited established an audit commit-

tee as a sub-committee of the Board of Directors. The Audit Committee comprises 3 (three) members including one
independent director of the Board. The composition of the present members of the Audit Committee is the following:

Name of the Members Status in the Board Status n the Ecluc.u.horral
Committee Qualification
Mr. AT.M. Sarrowar Kamal Independent Director Chairman M. Com. (CU), CA
Chowdhury
Mrs. Samina Mirza Director Member M. A. (UK)
Mr. Monsur Rahman Nominee Director Member B.Sc. in Eng. (NSU)
Md. Igbal Hossain Company Secretary Secretary M. Com. (DU), CA (CQ).

All the members of the committee have business acumen are knowledgeable individuals with integrity who are able to
ensure compliance with financial, regulatory and corporate laws with the meaningful contribution to business as well.

Meeting and Attendance of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee was held 4 (Four) meetings during the year 2023-2024. Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Head
of Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC) always attended the meeting on invitation to meet instant queries of the Audit

Committee.

The number of Audit Committee meetings held and the attendance by each member during the year 2023-2024 are
given as follows:

. . Position in the | Number of No..of
Name of the Audit Committee Members . . Meetings
Committee meetings held
Attended
Mr. AT.M. Sarrowar Kamal Chowdhury Chairman 4 4
Mrs. Samina Mirza Member 4 4
Mr. Monsur Rahman (Nominated by Adarsha Fisheries
& Poultry Farm Ltd.) Member 4 4
Mr. Md. Igbal Hossain, Secretary 4 4

52
ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024



Role of the Audit Committee

The role of the Audit Committee has been defined in line with the relevant provision of the Corporate Governance Code
issued by the BSEC, which are given below:

The Audit Committee shall:
(a) Oversee the financial reporting process;

(b) Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure that it is adequately resourced, including approval
of the Internal Audit and Compliance plan and review of the Internal Audit and Compliance report;

(c) Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles;
(d) Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors;
(e) Hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for review of the annual financial statements before

submission to the board for adoption;

() Review along with the management , the annual financial statements before submission to the board for
approval;
(9) Review along with the management , the half-yearly and quarterly financial statements before submission to

the board for approval;

(h) Review statement of all related party transactions submitted by the management;
(i) Review the Management Letters issued by the external auditor;
() Review the proceeds raised through Initial Public Offering (IPO) have been utilized as per the purpose stated

in relevant prospectus approved by the Commission;

(k) Review the Management’s discussion and analysis before disclosing in the annual report;
0] Review the adequacy of Internal Audit and compliance function; and
(m) Oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and magnitude, level of expertise deployed and time

required for effective audit and evaluate the performance of Statutory Auditors’.
Co-ordination with the External Auditor’s

The Audit Committee reviewed the statutory auditor’s audit plan, including its nature and scope, audit report, evaluation
of internal control and coordination between internal and statutory auditors.

The Audit Committee reviews the findings and recommendation made by the statutory auditors for removal of recur-
rence of irregularities.

The Committee also arranged a meeting with the representatives of the statutory auditors on October 27, 2024 for
review of the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June, 2024 before submission to the board for perusal
and recommendation.

The Audit Committee has recommended the board to appoint of M/s M. Z. Islam & Co., Chartered Accountants,
Eastern View, 10th Floor, 50, DIT Extension Road, Naya Paltan, Dhaka-1000 as statutory auditors’ and M/s. Haruner
Rashid & Associates, Chartered Secretaries, Chand Mansion (6th Floor), 66, Dilkhusha C/A, Dhaka-1000 as compli-
ance auditors’ of the company for the year 2024- 2025.

Internal Audit and Compliance

The annual and quarterly audit plans including the audit methodology in assessing and rating risks of auditable areas
reviewed to ensure adequate scope and comprehensive coverage on the audit activities of the Company.
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The Internal Audit reports encompassing the audit issues, audit recommendations and Management's responses
reviewed. Improvement actions suggested by the internal auditors in the areas of internal controls, systems and
efficiency enhancements were discussed with the Management.

The implementation of these recommendations through follow-up audit reports reviewed to ensure all key areas were
addressed.

Financial Reporting

The Audit Committee reviewed the following regarding Financial Statements:

Reviewed the quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements of the company and the relevant announcements
were made to the Stock Exchanges by the board of directors.

The quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements of the company reviewed by the Committee prior to submis-
sion of the same to the board of directors for approval to ensure the financial reporting and disclosures made in compli-
ance with the relevant laws.

The Audit Committee reviewed the quarterly and annual financial statements of the company with the chief financial
officer and managing director before recommending them to the board of directors for approval. The Committee also
concluded that the financial statements presented a true and fair view of the company’s financial performance.

The Audit Committee reviewed quarterly IPO fund utilization by the company which is supply by the management as
per CGC condition no. 5(5)(m) and report to the board of the same if any irregularities occurred. During the year under
review there were no any anomalies in the quarterly utilized amount by the management and the management utilized
IPO proceeds as per published prospectus and time extension with the approval of board of directors and the share-
holders in the Annual General Meeting (AGM).

Internal Control and Risk Management System

Based on the review of the effectiveness of the internal controls and the procedures established for identifying, assess-
ing and managing risks, the Committee is of the view that adequate controls and procedures are in place to provide
reasonable assurance that the company’s assets are safeguarded and that the financial position of the Company is
adequately reflected and disclosed.

Major activities carried out during the year of 2023-2024

In the year 2023-2024, the Audit Committee carried out its regular functions on the areas pertaining to its responsibili-
ties. Some of the issues that are performed during the year under review for improvement of operational performance
of the company are listed below:

a) Reviewed the quarterly and annual financial statements of the Company ensured their accuracy and recom
mended them to the Board for consideration;

b) Ensured that the statutory auditors' observations have been duly accounted for while preparing annual finan
cial statements before recommending them to the Board for consideration;

c) Overseen, reviewed and approved the procedure and task of the internal audit;

d) Reviewed the statutory auditors' (M/S. M. Z. Islam & Co., Chartered Accountants) appointment and remunera
tion for the year ended 30 June, 2025 and made a recommendation to the Board;

e) The Committee recommended for appointment of Company's Compliance Auditors M/s. Haruner Rashid &
Associates, Chartered Secretaries for the year 2024-25 and fixing up their remuneration;

f) Reviewed the Auditor’s Certification on Corporate Governance Compliance for the year ended 30 June, 2024;

9) Reviewed and ascertained that the internal control system including financial and operational controls,
accounting system and reporting structure are adequate and effective;

h) Reviewed reports of related party transactions and possible conflict of interest;
i) Reviewed the compliance requirements of BSEC Code, notification and other laws.
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There are no significant deviations, inconsistencies, or negative findings/observations in the reporting area. The
Committee found acceptable arrangements to provide a true and fair impression of the company's operations and
financial situation.

Reporting to the Shareholders and other interested parties

The Audit Committee reports to the shareholders and other interested parties on annual basis by means of presenting
a summary of its activities in the form of ‘Audit Committee Report’. During the year under review, the committee met
4(Four) times to discharge its duties and responsibilities and accordingly forwarded their reports to the Board. The
Board is of the view that there were no other issues having significant material impact on the company's financial state-
ments which needed to be disclosed to the board or regulatory authorities.

The Audit Committee expressed their sincere thanks to all members of Board, team of internal audit, team of accounts
& finance and management of the company for their good support. ’

On behalf of the Audit Committee

A.T.M. Sarrowar Kamal Chowdhury
Chairman,

Audit Committee

Dhaka, 27 October, 2024
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Report on the activities of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee (NRC)

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) is working as per the requirements the Corporate Governance
Code of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) issued on 03 June, 2018. The NRC assists the
board in formulating the nomination criteria or policy for determining qualifications, positive attributes, experiences and
independence of Directors/Executive Directors and above hierarchy. The NRC also assists the board to formulate
policy for formal and continued process of considering remuneration/honorarium of directors, executive directors and
above.

The statement of Nomination and Remuneration Committee is prepared following the Corporate Governance Code of
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC). This report covers nomination and remuneration policies,
evaluation criteria and activities of the NRC.

The NRC consists of three members, of whom one is an independent director, one is a shareholder director and rests
one is a nominated directors. Pursuant to code 6.5(c) of the codes of corporate governance, the Nomination & Remu-
neration Policy of the Company is presented hereunder at a glance:

The Composition of the NRC

The Board of Directors has appointed the Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprising at least three members
including an Independent Director and all members of the Committee are Non-Executive Directors.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee is constituted comprising are the following members:

1 Mr. Muhammad Moniruzzaman, FCA Chairman Independent Non-Executive Director

2 Mrs. Farhana Mirza Member Non-Executive Director

Mr. Monsur Rahman, Nominated by Adarsha
3 Member Non-Executive Director
Fisheries & Poultry Farm Ltd.

4 Mr. Md. Igbal Hossain Secretary Company Secretary

The Independent Director, Mr. Muhammad Moniruzzaman, FCA acts as Chairman of the Committee. As per regulatory
guidelines, the Company Secretary, Mr. Md. Igbal Hossain acts as Secretary to the Committee. The NRC, accordingly,
performs in coherence and ensures compliance with the Corporate Governance Code promulgated by the Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC).

Permanent invitees to the meetings are the Head of Finance & Accounts and the Head of Human Resources. Relevant
heads of divisions and other members of the Management team will also attend the meetings at occasions, as required.

Overview of the Nomination and Remuneration Policies

The company follow the nomination and remuneration policies and the benchmark of which pursuing the business code
of conduct and standards perceptible in the market context and appropriate to meet the present and future needs of
the company.

The broad criteria in this respect for the Executive Directors and above hierarchy of the company are as follows:

(a) Nomination Criteria
i The company policies as well as guidelines and applicable laws and regulations for the company;
ii. A prescribed selection process that is transparent in all respects;

iii. Following a process which is compatible to the recognized standards and the best practices;
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iv. Distinguishing the core competencies of the respective personnel for the different level of management and employ
ees of the company; and

v. Follow diversity in age, maturity, qualification, expertise and gender disciplines.
(b) Recruitment and Selection Standards

The outline of the company needs for the employees at different level, as determined by the management. The recruit-
ment and selection of executive directors and above of the company are made according to the following core guiding
principles:

Executive Directors and above Level: The candidate(s) for Executive Director(s) are listed based on the set criteria of
BSEC and Service Rules of the company. The board of directors appoints executive director(s) and above, upon nomi-
nation and recommendation of the NRC.

Independent Director: The Independent Directors shall be a knowledgeable individual with integrity who is able to
ensure compliance with financial laws, regulatory requirements and corporate laws that can make meaningful contribu-
tion to the business.

The Independent Director should have competence of the relevant sector in which company operates and necessarily
should have the qualifications as required by the Code of Corporate Governance issued by the BSEC. The board of
directors appoints independent directors upon nomination and recommendation of the NRC, which is then approved by
the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting of the company.

(c) Remuneration Criteria
The key features of the Remuneration criteria are recommended by the NRC are as follows:
i. The structure, scale and composition of remuneration/honorarium are reasonably considered based on the Compa

ny’s Policies and Guidelines set by the Board of Directors to attract, retain and motivate the higher level execu
tives/executive directors to run the company efficiently and successfully;

i. The context of packages, including remuneration/benefit is categorically laid down which meets the appropriate
performance benchmarks as per the Company’s Policies and Guidelines ratified by the board as and when required;

iii. The NRC recommends board meeting attendance fees, honorarium, including incidental expenses, if any; and

iv. No member of the NRC is allowed to receive, either directly or indirectly, any remuneration for any advisory consul
tancy role or otherwise, other than board meeting and board’s sub-committee meetings attendance fees from the
company.

(d) Evaluation Criteria

Executive Directors and above Level Executives: The respective line authority of the Executive Directors and above

sets the performance measurement criteria based on the role profile and responsibilities through the company’s annual

appraisal policy at a certain time of each calendar year.

Independent Director:

The evaluation of performance of the independent directors is to be carried out according to the criteria of attendance

and participation at the board meetings, committee meetings; and contribution to the improvement of the corporate

governance practices of the company.

Activity Summary of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee during the year

During the year 2023-2024 the committee met once. The Committee noted the Nomination and Remuneration

initiatives ensuring the standards and compliance accordingly. The activities of the NRC during the year were as

follows:

I. Proposal for re-election of Directors: Proposed Mrs. Silvana Mirza and Mr. Monsur Rahman (Nominee of Adarsha

Fisheries and Poultry Farm Limited) for retirement by rotation and for re-election (being eligible) by the shareholders
in this upcoming Annual General Meeting.
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VI

Evaluation of performance: Evaluated the performance of the Board, its committees, individual members of
the Board, Key Managerial Personnel and other senior executives of the company, with the assistance of HR
department as and when required, and satisfied with their performance.

Review of remuneration and other fees: Reviewed the annual remuneration package of the Executive Direc
tor, Key Managerial Personnel and other senior executives of the company, with the assistance of HR depart
ment as and when required, and ensured that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and

sufficient to attract, retain and motivate them to run the company as per company goals.

Succession planning: Reviewed the succession plan to ensure that the potential individuals are ready with
proper skills, experience, ownership and engagement to fill gaps when necessary.

Review of HR and training policy: Reviewed human resources and training policies for the future leaders of
the company.

Disclosure of remuneration: Considered and confirmed that the remuneration disclosed in this annual report is
accurate, complete and transparent.

On behalf of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee

-

Muhammad Moniruzzaman, FCA

Chairman,

Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC)
Dhaka, 27 October, 2024
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é I
QU Corporate Governance B

A Guideline of Transparency and Accountability

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE refers to the procedures through which any corporate entity makes decisions as a
going concern for the benefit of all parties involved, both present and future. These decisions may be classified into four
categories, namely policy and strategy, operations and execution, performance and assessment, and asset sharing
between current and future generations.

The objective of corporate governance of the Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited is to run the company with the sense of
four pillars of governance- fairness, transparency, accountability and independence to the shareholders and the
society as a whole. The company is directed and managed under the Code of Conducts approved by the board in light
of the directives given by the concerned regulatory bodies to establish the good governance in the company to fulfill
the stakeholders’ rightful expectations.

To this end entire corporate governance efforts are blended with "Good Governance Practices" as ethically and morally
acceptable standards under a given socio-politico environmental phenomenon of our society in which we work, live and
exist.

Corporate Governance functions are carried out by the organisms mentioned hereafter:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Constitution

The Board of Directors, the top Management echelon, consisting of the founding entrepreneurs, institutes representa-
tives and Independent Directors, provides the policy and strategic support and direction for the entire range of the
corporate activities. The Board of Directors consist of 8 (eight) members including 2 (Two) Independent Directors with

varied education and character in decision making process.

The active members of the Board of Directors are as follows:

Sl. No. | Members Status with the Board
1 Mrs. Silvana Mirza Chairman
2 Dr. Saira Khan, MBBS, DCH, FCPS. Director & Managing Director
3 Mrs. Samina Mirza Non-Executive Director
4 Mrs. Farhana Mirza Non-Executive Director
5 Mr. AK.M. Nuruzzaman, DGM (Nominated by ICB) Non-Executive Director

Mr. Monsur Rahman (Nominated by Adarsha Fisheries &

6 Poultry Farm Ltd.) Non-Executive Director
7 Mr. A.T.M. Sarrowar Kamal Chowdhury Independent Non-Executive Director
8 Mr. Muhammad Moniruzzaman, FCA Independent Non-Executive Director

Board Meetings

The Board of Directors has the supreme authority delegated by the shareholders in making strategy, formulation policy
and other decision making process for development of the company. During the year under review the board held 04
(four) meetings to transact various agenda. The Board is reconstituted every year at its Annual General Meeting when
one-third of the members of the Board retires and seeks re-election. A director is liable to be removed if the conditions
of the Articles of Association and the provisions of the Companies Act 1994 are not fulfilled.
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Role & Responsibilities

The main role of the Board of Directors, which is the highest level of authority, is to provide general superintendence,
oversee the operations and control the affairs of the company through appropriate delegation and accountability
processes via the lines of command. However the Board of Directors holds the ultimate responsibility & accountability
with due diligence for conducting the activities of the company as per provisions of law in the interest of the sharehold-
ers, the stakeholders, the state and the society. The Board of Directors, in fulfillment of its responsibility holds periodic
meetings, at least once a quarter and provides appropriate decisions/directions to the Executive Management. Such
meetings usually consider operational performance, financial results, review of budgets, capital expenditure proposals
for BMRE or new projects/ divisions/ product lines, procurement of funds by issue of shares or borrowing, procurement
of raw materials, plant & machinery, pricing of products/discounts, recruitment, training and promotion of officers,
approval of audited accounts and distribution of dividends and other interest of the stakeholders including the employ-
ees and workers.

The Board of Directors takes special care in designing and articulating productivity and compensation plans of employ-
ees and workers and rewarding them appropriately on the basis of quality and quantity of performance as an incentive.

Board also remains responsible for removal of operational hazards to life and health of workers, friendly environmental
work condition and social relationship as demanded of good citizen in a country.

Relationship with Shareholders and Public

The shareholders as owners are required to be provided with material information on the company's operation every
quarter and annually, the latter at the Annual General Meeting. They are also provided routine services by the Compa-
ny Affairs Division in matters of their various queries, shares transfer, dematerialization, rematerialization of shares,
payment of dividends etc.

The Board is however responsible to the public for publication of any price sensitive information as per BSEC regula-
tion.

Relationship with Government

In its role on accountability to the government, the Board of Directors ensures payment of all dues to government in the
form of import duty, custom duty and port charges, VAT, Corporate Taxes and other levies as and when they become
due on the basis of actual operations and make sure to avoid corruption. This has enabled the Company to enhance
its contribution to the National Exchequer on a progressive rate year after year.

Relationship with Financers/Bankers

The Board oversees the financial transactions and ensures to meet company's commitments to the lenders without
default. This has resulted in securing lower interest rates from them.

Relationship with Suppliers

As the company has to import plant and machinery and almost all the raw materials from abroad, it maintains cordial
and mutually beneficial interest with its international as well as local suppliers. This has enabled the company to avoid
any legal disputes in international/local courts and enhanced the company's image as a good customer.

Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR)

The Board of Directors is also awoken of the Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR) especially in the areas of gender
equality, race religion-regional equality, non-employment of child labor, human rights, environmental pollution,
social-marketing, social activities (promotion of sports & culture, health care and population control programs, elimina-
tion of corruption programs, participation in charitable activities etc. in non-partisan manner) right to form and partici-
pate in Union under ILO convention, employment of disabled’s etc.

BOARD COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors has formed a number of committees to assist in exercising its authority including monitoring of
performance.

60
ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024



Audit Committee

The Board of Directors has constituted an Audit Committee of the Board, which is comprised by the following Non-Ex-
ecutive Directors:

Mr. A.T.M. Sarrowar Kamal Chowdhury, Chai Independent Non-Executive
airman
Independent Director Director
2 Mrs. Samina Mirza Member Non-Executive Director
. Rah inat A ha Fisheri
3 Mr. Monsur Rahman, Nominated by Adarsha Fisheries & Member Non-Executive Director
Poultry Farm Ltd.

The Committee carries out its responsibilities as defined in the provision of laws through convening meetings and
submitting its report to the Board of Directors as and when required. The Committee met 4 (four) times during the year
under review.

The Audit Committee shall also co-ordinate with the Internal and external Auditors as and when required, ensures that
adequate internal checks & balances supported by adequate MIS are in place for detection of errors frauds and other
deficiencies. The other responsibilities include inter alia, not being limited to, the prevention of conflict of interest
between the company and its Directors officials, customers, suppliers, government and any other interest groups and
detect or remove any scope of insider trading in the company's stock. The Audit Committee also ensures compliance
of requirements of BSEC and other agencies.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Board of Directors has formed a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Board, which is
comprised by the following Non-Executive Directors:

1 Mr. Muhammad Moniruzzaman, FCA Chairman Independent Non-Executive Director

2 Mrs. Farhana Mirza Member Non-Executive Director

Mr. Monsur Rahman, Nominated by Adarsha

Memb Non-E tive Direct
Fisheries & Poultry Farm Ltd. ember on-Executive Lirector

The terms of reference of the NRC inter-alia include to determine the Company’s policy on specific remuneration
packages for executive directors, to review, recommend and/or approve remuneration to whole-time Directors, to
review and approve the Remuneration Policy of the Company, to formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Direc-
tors and the Board, to devise a policy on Board Diversity, to identify persons who are qualified to become directors and
who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board
the appointment or removal of such persons and to discharge such other functions and exercise such other powers as
may be delegated/ directed by the Board of Directors from time to time. The NRC met 1 (one) times during the year
under review.

SEPARATE ROLE OF THE CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The positions of Chairman and Managing Director of Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited are held by the following separate
directors:

CHAIRMAN
Mrs. Silvana Mirza is the Non-Executive Chairman of the Company and responsible for the functions of the Board.
MANAGING DIRECTOR

Dr. Saira Khan, MBBS, DCH, FCPS. is the Managing Director and serves as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO), COMPANY SECRETARY (CS) AND HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT AND COM-
PLIANCE (HIAC)

The following executives have been appointed as CFO, CS, and HIAC of the Company as per requirement of the
Corporate Governance Code of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission:

Chief Financial Officer (CFQO) Mr. Md. Abul Kasem, M.Com., CA (Inter);
Company Secretary (CS) Mr. Md. Igbal Hossain, M.Com., CA (CC), LLB;
Head of Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC) Mr. Khurshid Ahmmed Siddique, M.Com.

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

The Executive Management is led by the Managing Director (CEO) who is appointed by the Board of Directors for a
term of 3 years (renewable) with the approval of shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

The Managing Director is supported by professional, well educated, trained and experienced team consisting of Execu-
tive Directors, General Managers, Managers and a host of Senior Executives in the hierarchy of management.

The Executive Management is responsible for preparation of budgetary segment plans/sub segment plans for every
cost/profit centers and is held accountable for performance. The Executive Management is aided by committee(s)/-
sub-committee(s) in carrying out its functions.

OTHER GOVERNANCE APPARATUS

The Company, in its efforts for Corporate Good Governance Practices, uses a series of top ranking professional
service providers including Legal experts, Bankers, Insurers and Technical experts who continuously assist the Board
of Directors and the Executive Management in properly discharging their duties to all the shareholders, stakeholders,
the Government and the public as highlighted below:

Independent Director

In compliance with the BSEC Regulations on Good Governance, the Board of Directors, as empowered by the Regula-
tions, appointed the following persons as non-shareholding Independent Directors with the expectation that their exper-
tise would help contribute to the further disclosure and protect the interests of the stakeholders, investors in general
and smaller investors in particular:

* Mr. A.T.M. Sarrowar Kamal M. Com. (Accounting), CA-Advance Level ; and

* Mr. Mohammad Moniruzzaman, FCA, a qualified chartered accountant.

Financial Auditors

The role of the auditors in certification of the financial statement is the most significant aspect of Corporate Governance
and protection of interest of investors. As evident from the Annual Reports, the company rigidly follows the Companies
Act, Rules of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, listing regulation, code of International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), International Accounting Standards (IAS) and International Standard on Auditing (ISA)
with legally required disclosures of Accounts and Financial Statements. All this has been possible due to the high level
capability and integrity of M/s M. Z. Islam & Co., Chartered Accountants whose unchallenging performance has played
a very trustworthy role in the protection of interest of the investors.

Compliance Auditors

The compliance auditor is responsible in certification on compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance Code 2018
of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission as well as the provisions of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial
Standards of Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh. M/s Mollah Quadir Yusuf & Co., Chartered Accountants
is the compliance auditors of Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited appointed by its Shareholders in general meeting.

Bankers

The degree of efficient business operation largely depends on the quality of efficiency of banking services received by
the company. Efficient banking service brings down cost of operations. On the other hand, cost of financial services
and interest on the lending by the banks are also required to be the minimum. With this end
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of view, the company has established long term business relation-ship with the banks namely Jamuna Bank Ltd., Dutch
Bangla Bank Ltd., Al-Arafah Islami Bank Ltd., Shahjalal Islami Bank Ltd., National Bank Ltd. and Sonali Bank Ltd. who
provide most efficient service at minimum cost/interest that benefit the Shareholders. The company has neither ever
defaulted in any commitment with its Bankers nor did get entangled in legal dispute at any court premises.

Insurer

Insurance services cover certain operational risks which are required by law/business practices to be covered by
legitimate insurance service providers for protection of the interest of the company, nay, the investors. To this end, the
company has to select insurer with the most efficient, reputed and financially sound history so that claims, if any, are
settled promptly and the premium rates are market competitive. The company, based on these considerations, is main-
taining insurance business relationships with the highly reputed insurance companies namely Delta Life Insurance
Company Ltd. and Agrani Insurance Co. Ltd. The company has not yet faced any dispute over any claims.

SHAREHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP

Corporate Governance issues include how major policy decisions are made in business corporations, how various
stakeholders can influence the process, who is held accountable for performance and what performance standards are
applied. In a nutshell, in corporate governance, power and influence are crucial. The ownership structure has an impact
on the balance of power among shareholders since shareholders are the most significant stakeholder.

Though sponsors usually hold majority shares required for ordinary resolutions, public shareholders have a definite
role and influence in the passing of special resolutions required for changes in the business object, sale of
business/productive assets, merger and amalgamation, winding up or dissolution and amendments to Memorandum
and Articles of Association for protection of minority interest of the shareholdings.

The Company holds regularly as per law the Annual General Meeting with adequate notice and disclosures in the
Directors' Report and the Auditors' Report on Accounts/Notes and resolutions are passed with consensus and unanimi-
ty. All reasonable and practicable suggestions are implemented with good grace. Special Resolutions are passed in
General Meeting with due notices periods.

All enquiries are attended by the Company Secretary. Where necessary, Internal Audit Committee investigates matters
of significant merit for consideration by the Management Committee/ Managing Director/Audit Committee of Board/
Board of Directors as the case may be.

The Shareholders as owners are provided with material information on the Company's operation quarterly and annual-
ly. They are also provided routine services by the Company Secretary in any company matters which is permissible.
The Board is however responsible to the Shareholders as well as investors for publication of price sensitive information
as per regulations of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC). An experienced person is in charge
for all these responsibilities as Company Secretary.

The Company has also a website to provide permissible information/notices/ price sensitive information/financial
reports/disclosures and others for the Shareholders and interested investors.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Ethics is an ingredient of Good Governance and involves a determination of what is right and what is wrong and deals
with things to be sought and things to be avoided with way of life and the end of life. Ethics invokes the management
of the environment within which we function from a perspective broader than, but obviously inclusive of, the current
cohort. Since the corporate environment is in theory an infinitely lived entity owned by finitely lived shareholders, a
governance ethic must represent a system that serves the needs of the current ownership while preserving the ability
of the corporation to sustain itself and benefit future cohorts.

The corporate ethic must necessarily promote efficiency in co-existing with the environment to generate the quality of
life for a current cohort and yet also provide an equity that does not disadvantage a future cohort by the decisions of a
current cohort.

As an environmental ethic analogy, those living today naturally believe in dividend payouts today with less regard for
the consequence tomorrow and those living tomorrow would prefer dividend payouts tomorrow without regard for the
sacrifices we make today to allow their greater consumption tomorrow.

Based on the above concept, the company is committed to show a stable policy of distribution (cash outlay) of the
accretional wealth (profits) between the current and the future generation of shareholders. This would enable the

company to enhance its capital wealth and sustain for perpetuity of existence, benefiting both the present cohorts and
the progeny.
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CORPORATE SOCIALIZATION

In order to play a model role for Good Governance characteristics in the corporate sector, the company has become
members of country's leading stock exchanges, chambers and associations namely:

a. Bangladesh Aushad Shilpa Samity

b. Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. (DSE)

c. Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd. (CSE)

d. Bangladesh Association of Publicly Listed Companies (BAPLC)
e. Central Depository Bangladesh Limited (CDBL).

These memberships have provided scope to the company for improvement of Corporate Governance Practices for the
benefit of the shareholders/stakeholders.

RESEARCH AND PRODUCTS DEVELOPMENT
As a part of Corporate Social Responsibility for Good Governance the company maintains a team of scientific pharma-
ceutical experts who continuously conduct research & development programs for improving quality of products, reduc-

tion of cost and adaptation of products that are free of intellectual property rights and innovative products.

These efforts have enabled the company to add new products to its product lines every year to the benefit of the
common men of the country and the shareholders.

SEGMENT REPORT

The company's chief operating decision makers review the profit and loss of the company on an aggregate basis and
manage the operations of the company as a single operating segment. Accordingly, the company operates in one
segment, which is the business of developing, manufacturing and marketing of drugs for health care for all live species.
RISK PERCEPTION

Company management perceives investment risks within the national and international economic situation in relation
to legal requirements involving intellectual property rights, scientific invention, WTO regulations and monetary & fiscal
investment policies and has prepared its production & marketing strategy to meet the challenges from these risks.

SECRETARIAL STANDARD

Silva Pharma try their best maintaining of the Secretarial Standard on meetings of the Board of Directors, Members
(shareholders), Minutes and Dividend issued by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB).

COMPLIANCES

Silva Pharma has an established procedure to ensure compliance with all applicable statutory and regulatory require-
ments. Respective officers are responsible for ensuring proper compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
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OOC Code of Conduct for the BoardDOo

Our Code of Conduct is based on our values of integrity, respect and trust and the purpose of these codes is to ensure
that all the Board Members and other acting on behalf of the Company to act in accordance with this values and princi-
ples respecting the core values of the Company. These codes are designed in such a way as to give a clear perception
about what is expected from the people inside the Company. All of them are always committed to conduct the business
in an ethical, legal and responsible way.

The codes are as follows:

1. Meetings of the Board of Directors and General Meetings, notices, agenda, minutes of the meetings shall be in
accordance with the Companies Act, 1994.

2. In the event that a Director is of the view that his dissenting note has not been satisfactorily recorded in the minutes
of a meeting of the Board, he may refer the matter to the Company Secretary. The relevant Director may require the
note to be appended to the minutes during confirmation of the minutes.

3. The Directors shall ensure that the company abides by all the provisions of securities laws, rules and regulations
framed there under and circulars, directions issued by the BSEC, DSE, CSE and other authorities as the case may
be.

4. The Directors shall not support any decision in the meeting of the Board which may adversely affect the interest of
shareholders or company.

5. The Directors shall ensure performing activities of the company to uphold the interest of general shareholders, and
give priority to the interest of the company and its shareholders; even it appears to be conflicting with the interest of
the company or its shareholders.

6. The Directors shall carry out their fiduciary duties with a sense of objective judgment and independence in the best
interests of the company and its shareholders.

7. The Directors shall submit necessary disclosures/statement of holdings/dealings in securities as required by the
Commission and the Exchanges from time to time as per their rules, regulations and bye-laws.

8. The Directors shall unless otherwise required by law, maintain confidentiality and shall not divulge/disclose any
information obtained in discharging their duties.

9. A Director shall not use any confidential information for his personal gain, directly or indirectly, received or obtained
by him in his capacity as a member of the Board.

10. The company always striving to move forward and value each employee as their contribution is what is driving the
Company ahead. The Company encourages its employees to share ideas and knowledge with management as well
as between themselves. This enables a great culture of idea sharing inside the Company which brought forward
many new business activities.

11. The company ensures that, the workplace and its environment do not endanger the physical integrity or health of
the employees. Training programs to reduce accidents and improving working conditions with additional safety gears
is an ongoing process. Employees have access to drinking water, sanitary equipped social rooms, built and main
tained in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

12. The company ensures an exciting and progressive working environment for its employees who are free from all

type of discriminations and harassment. The company ensures that, all the employees act professionally and refrain
frauds, dishonesty, deceit or any act that violates the core value of the Company.
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«{  Dividend Distribution Policy -

Disclaimer

The Policy does not constitute a commitment by the Company or the Board regarding the future dividends of
the Company, but only represents a general guidance to Shareholders regarding dividend policy. The
statement of the Policy does not in any way restrict the right of the Board to use its discretion in the
recommendation of the dividend to be distributed in the year and the Board reserves the right to depart from
the Policy as and when circumstances so warrant.

Given the aforementioned uncertainties, prospective or present investors are cautioned not to place any
reliance on any of the forward-looking statements in the Policy or the principles and guidelines outlined in this
Policy.

1. Introduction:

This Policy is called “Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited - Dividend Distribution Policy” hereinafter referred to as the
“Policy”) and has been framed by Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited (the “Company”) pursuant to Bangladesh Securities
Exchange Commission (BSEC) Directive No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2021-386/03 dated January 14, 2021.

The objective of the Policy is to provide guidance to stakeholders on the dividend distribution framework adopted by
the Company. The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) shall consider this Policy when resolving on
dividends, always in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1994, notifications issued by the BSEC and
other applicable legal provisions.

In the event of a conflict between the Policy and the existing statutory regulations, the statutory regulations will prevail.
The Policy lays down the broad criteria which the Company would take into consideration for the purpose of ascertain-
ing the amount of dividend to be declared. Whilst doing so, the Company shall keep in mind, the need to maintain a

balance between the payout ratio and retained earnings, in order to address future needs of the Company.

The Policy serves as a guideline only for the Board. The decision of the Board with respect to the amount of dividend
recommended by it for any given period will be final and shall not be open to challenge on the basis of the Policy.

The Policy has been adopted by the Board at its meeting held on November 11; 2021which will be effect from first day
of January, 2022.

2. Quantum and declaration of dividend payable:

Dividend other than interim dividend shall be declared at the Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders based on
the recommendation of the Board. The Board has the authority to declare interim dividend.

Subject to the provisions of the applicable law, the Company’s dividend payout will be determined based on available
financial resources, growth/investment requirements and fair shareholder return.

The Board will broadly take into consideration the financial parameters and/or internal and external factors mentioned
in clause 3 below while determining whether or not to declare dividend or to determine the quantum of dividend to be
declared.

The declared dividend must be approved by the company's shareholders at its annual general meeting. The record

date for payment of dividend will be declared in accordance with the relevant law. Shareholders holding shares on
record date will be considered eligible for dividend.
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The approved cash dividend must be sent to the shareholders register address or bank account (which was preserved
by Depository register of CDBL or company's Register as on record date) via Printed dividend warrant or Bangladesh
Electronic Fund Transfer (BEFTN).

In case of stock dividend, record date will be fixed as per related rules. The stock dividend will be credited to the share-
holder's Beneficiary Owner account (BO Account) on scheduled time as per the related rules of the Securities in this
regard and the record date data.

3. Parameters to be considered while recommending/declaring dividend:

The Board while declaring or recommending dividend to the Shareholders, will consider following internal and external
factors whereas all these factors are of equal materiality and no single or group of factors supersedes any other factor
or group of factors:

Internal Factors:

- Profits earned during the financial year and the retained profits of the previous years or losses suffered in the past
years;

- Cash flow position of the Company and Net Debt-to-EBITDA ratio;

- Current and projected cash balance;

- Projections with regard to the performance of the Company;

- Future capital expenditure requirement of the Company;

- Dividend payout history.

External Factors:

- Economic environment;

- Market conditions and market outlook for the Company;

- Changes in Government policies and regulatory provisions;

- Quantum of dividend payout by other comparable businesses.

4. Circumstances under which Shareholders of the Company may or may not expect dividend:

The decision regarding dividend payout is a crucial decision as it determines the amount of profit to be distributed
among Shareholders and the amount of profit to be retained in business.

The Board shall consider the parameters mentioned in Clause 3 above before determination of any dividend payout.

The Shareholders of the Company may not expect dividend in many other circumstances, some of which are the
following, always subject to the discretion of the Board:

- Company has inadequacy of profits or incurs losses for the financial year;

- Company undertakes /proposes to undertake a significant expansion project requiring higher allocation of capital;

- Company undertakes /proposes to undertake any acquisitions or joint arrangements requiring significant allocation of
capital;

- Company has significantly higher working capital requirement affecting free cash flow;

- Company is prohibited to recommend/declare dividend by any regulatory body.

5. Utilization of retained earnings:

The Board may retain its earnings in order to make better use of the funds available and increase the value of the
stakeholders in the long run after having due regard to the parameters laid down in the Policy.

The Company may declare dividend out of the profits of the Company for the current year or out of the profits for any
previous year or years or out of the free reserves available for distribution of dividend, in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act, 1994, notifications issued by the BSEC and other applicable legal provisions as amended from
time to time, after having due regard to the parameters laid down in the Policy.

The retained earnings of the Company may be used in any of the following ways:

- Capital expenditure, and for the purpose of any organic and/ or inorganic growth;
- Declaration of dividend;

- Issue of bonus shares;

- Other permissible usage as per the Companies Act, 1994.
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6. Multiple classes of Shares:

Currently, the Company has only one class of equity shares, namely Equity Shares. In the future, if the Company
issues multiple classes of shares, the parameters of the Policy will be appropriately addressed.

7. Disclosures:

In case it is proposed not to declare dividend during any financial year, the grounds thereof and the information on the
manner in which the retained profits of the Company, if any, are being utilized shall be disclosed to the Shareholders
in the Board’s Report forming part of the Annual Report of the Company for the given financial year.

The Policy will be available on the Company’s website: https://www.silvapharma.com/ and will also be disclosed in the
Company’s Annual Report.

8. Policy Review:

The Policy may be modified as may, in the opinion of the Board, be deemed necessary.
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oo< Our Major Products 300

Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited has engaged in manufacturing and marketing of pharmaceutical finished
products in the categories of Antibiotics, Antifungals, Analgesics, Anti diabetics, Anti pyretics, Anti
inflammatory Drugs, Anti ulcerants, Vitamins & Minerals etc for local market. It has set up a modern
pharmaceutical plant that is equipped with advanced machineries and technology.

(Antiulcerant)

Esosil 20

Esomeprazole 20 mg
Capsule

© Drug of choice in GERD
O Significant improvement of Heartburn symptoms

© Remarkable healing of Erosive Esophagitis

oomg!zges Bilzgn? -ﬂm..l_r_z,n & ;g PQntGSiI lnﬂ
i \

Capsule Pantoprazole 20 mg
! Tablet
- t.
o "\E
O Time tested & trusted PPI © A superior & confident choice among PPIs
© Used as an adjunct therapy with NSAID © Safe in pregnancy
© Highly effective in Reflux Esophagitis O Effective in PUD & GERD

( Antiemetic & Antispasmodic )

Timenp

o

i
| Fioa Tiemonium Methylsulphate NN =
i |= .
Meclizine Hydrochloride 25 mg & “ g |
Pyridoxine Hydrochloride 50 mg }l. i
© First choice in treating nausea and vomiting O Ensures complete relief from visceral spasm

during pregnancy and associated pain
BRCRELBieoistickeffect O Offers excellent safety & tolerability profile
© Shows long duration of action
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( Antibacterial )

Sicef

Cephradine 500 mg
Capsule &
125 mg/ 5 ml PFS

© Effective & well tolerated 1st generation
cephalosporin

© Confident choice as prophylaxis of dental
procedure

© USFDA recommended as pregnancy category B

Supraxim® =

Capsule &
100 mg/5ml PFS

© Tested and trusted 3™ generation oral
cephalosporin

© Drug of choice in Enteric Fever

© Ensures excellent treatment success in
Enterocolitis & LRTIs

zZith°GFs

Azithromycin 200 mg/5 ml

Right choice in Typhoid Fever &
. Respiratory Tract infections.

Probac’ .

Cefuroxime 250 mg & 500 mg g

r - )
Tablet [ *:r-!'-"":'-.'adﬁ ':_ l
=

© Offers superior cure rate in RTls

© Safe and effective antibiotic in
all stages of pregnancy

© Potent 2™ generation cephalosporin in UTIs

ozith?
Azithromycin 500 mg

Tablet £
& 200 mg/5 ml GFS {

© Highly active macrolide against atypical
bacteria

© Simple dose, faster efficacy

© Right choice for treating Typhoid Fever,
RTIs & SSTls

Cipronil PFS

Ciprofloxacin 250mg/5ml

Highly effective in Shigellosis, -
Infectious Diarrhoea &
Urinary Tract Infections.
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( Analgesic and Antipyretic )

Duet

Paracetamol 500 mg
& Caffeine 65 mg
Tablet

© More than a pain and fever reliever
© Short (45-50 seconds) disintegration time

© Opaque PVC foil protects from sunlight

T

m ® i ¥ n..“:‘.'.:.
° e
Orifen lorolac oo
Aceclofenac 100 mg Ketouei OTaEegt <l ) &ab\’
- 3
"0, 7
© Ensures relief from osteoarthritic & © Relieves moderate to severe acute pain

rheumatoid arthritic pain
O Effective in post-operative pain
© Also used in low back and cervical pain
© Most potent NSAID

Ambosil

Ambroxol hydrochloride Syrup &
Pediatric Drop

—Aerofen

Ketotifen Fumerate 100 ml syp.

O Prophylactic treatment of Bronchial Asthma O Effective in productive Cough & Bronchitis

© Symptomatic treatment of Allergic conditions
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(Vitamins & Minerals )

Ensures full spectrum of
Essential Nutrients

Multitonic

Multivitamin & Multimineral Syrup

Multitonic® syrup has excellent taste with
Mango flavor that ensures compliance to all
aged people including children.

Zx i

Ensures proper physical and mental growth in children

To build up strong immune system

Meets proper nutritional requirments for diabetics

Reduces the risk of heart diseases

Reduces anxiety and stress levels

®

Neurex-B

Thiamine Mononitrate (B1) 100 mg
Pyridoxine Hydrochloride (B6) 200 mg
Cyanocobalamin (B12) 200 mcg

Tablet

O ldeal combination of B-vitamins for
Neuropathic pain

© Prevents degenerative process of nerves

© Offers a new treatment option in Diabetic
Neuropathy

@Ivitaf

Super Anti-oxidanl vitamin plus
Multimineral Tablet

O Delay aging process

© Boost immune system

© Ensures aged patients to lead better

quality of life

Calsil PLus

Calcium 500 mg &
Vitamin D3 200 I.U.
Tablet

© Synergistic combination for strong bone
structure
© Vitamin D3 increases absorption of calcium

© Prevents Osteoporosis & bone fracture

Multi o™ [

32 Multivitamin & Multimineral
Tablet

© Enhances immune system
© Provides energy and growth

© Strengthens the body
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Silmon

Montelukast 10 mg Tablet

The Gold standard leukotriene receptor antagonist.

€4 Reduces the bronchoconstriction. '
€4 Controls both early & late phase of allergic rhinitis. .
#4 Prevents exercise-induced bronchospasm. .

# Improves symptoms & pulmonary function when added with ICS. '
#4 Well tolerated with a safety profile for both adult & pediatric patients'

..for comfortable life

- DRIVE THE LIFE WITHOUT ALLERGY -

®
Co“ckroaches S ife n a 1 2 0
~ U Fexofenadine Hydrochloride USP 120 mg
W W

House Grass or pet
dust mites weed dander

B
W0

Pollen

=x.
[ Seasonal Allergic Rhinitis )
(& Perennial Allergic Rhinitis )
Wﬂc Idiopathic Urticaria
Wen-lnduced wheal-and-flare

24 hours non-drowsy allergy relief
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( Antifungal )

ltfranox 100

ltraconazole USP 100 mg Capsule

U niq U@ therapy

for multiple fungal infections

© Ensures better mycological cure rate compared to Terbinafine.
© Ensures better clinical success rate compared to Fluconazole.
© Convenient dosing ensures better patients compliance.

\_
(' Natural Sweetner )
4 N
Stevia & extract
© Can be used to sweeten tea, coffee, beverages and any kind of food.
© 100% natural, Zero calorie, Halal certified
O Great choice for diabetic and fitness conscious people
© Generally Recognized As Safe by USFDA
N >
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(Antibacterial )

Probac Plus’

Cefuroxime 250 mg & Clavulanic Acid 62.5 mg and
Cefuroxime 500 mg & Clavulanic Acid 125 mg Tablet

Minimizes resistance, Maximizes efficacy

« Ensures very low resistance compared to cefuroxime alone
& Shows 94% clinical success rate in Pharyngitis & Tonsillitis
& Shows 100% clinical success rate in Community Acquired Pneumonia
& Shows 96% clinical success rate in UTls °
& Shows 95% clinical success rate in SSSIs

& USFDA approved pregnancy category B

o gt ol i o e

(Cough Syrup)

Dextromethorphan Hydrobromide BP, Guaifenesin BP, Levomenthol BP and
Levomenthol BP and Diphenhydramine Hydrochloride BP

Diphenhydramine Hydrochloride BP

Raspberry Flavored
[ -

v’ Effective for dry cough v’ Effective for mucus cough
v’ Provides soothing effect v Reduces chest congestion
v’ Aids restful sleep v’ Aids restful sleep
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C Antifungal )

ltranox 200

ltraconazole USP 200 mg Capsule

Aanox 200

Unique therapy

for multiple fungal infections

© Ensures better mycological cure rate compared to Terbinafine.
© Ensures better clinical success rate compared to Fluconazole.

© Convenient dosing ensures better patients compliance.

( Vitamins-Minerals )

Calreef

Calcium (Coral Source) and
Vitamin D3

¥ Better absorption compared to non-coral calcium
¥ Meets the extra demand for calcium during pregnancy
and in the elderly
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New Arrival

C

200 ml
Suspension

aVvipre

Sodium Alginate BP, Sodium Bicarbonate BP &
Calcium Carbonate BP

Suppress Acid Reflux
Restore Comfort

Oral Suspension
With Orange Flavour

Gets to work Protect

within a few seconds

Quick relief from
heartburn & indigestion

&‘ Safei Sugar free Should be given after
x O aie In pregnancy suspension meals at bedtime
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e . - ~
@ Excerpts from 22" Annual General Meeting o

The 22nd Annual General Meeting of the Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited was held on 28 December, 2023 at digital/vir-
tual platform. A good number of shareholders attend the AGM by digital platform. Ms. Silvana Mirza Chairman of the
Board presided over the meeting. After recitation from the holy Quran, the Annual General Meeting was started by the
welcome address to the shareholders by the Chairman.

The Annual General Meeting is a forum through which the shareholders are informed of company’s activities and
progress. The Chairman of the meeting invited comments of Directors’ Report and Audited Financial Statements for
the year ended 30 June, 2023. In the question and answer session shareholders were encouraged to ask questions
before approving the particular agenda. The shareholders expressed their views on the important activities of the
company, its success and progress in the competitive markets by sending massage through digitally.

The due process of election and detailed information of "voting results" of each agenda and its resolution was authenti-
cated by Independent Scrutinizer appointed for the purpose as per BSEC's instruction and reported the same to the
BSEC within the stipulated time of conclusion of AGM.

The Managing Director Dr. Saira Khan, MBBS, DCH, FCPS thanked the shareholders for their constructive sugges-
tions for the sustainable improvement of the company. Strategies and future vision of the company had also been
discussed. Shareholders put up valuable recommendations which were discussed and scrutinized in the subsequent
board meeting and proper actions in this respect had duly been taken. The meeting approved 01.00% Cash Dividend
for all shareholders as against per share of Tk. 10/- each for the year 2022-2023.

==
3%

N LR TSI-20%9

-~

G iteala Ny wgPe
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ANH: FIIE 35,90 Bf
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oO( Photos of 22"! Annual General Meeting )Oo
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°O< Certificate of BAPLC >O°

" BANGLADESH ASSOCIATION OF PUBLICLY LISTED COMPANIES |5

Ref. No: €M-2024/278 BAPLC Date of issue : November 18, 2024

N
Renewed Certificate
This is to certify that

SILVA PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED

is an Ordinary Member of Bangladesh Association of Publicly Listed Companies
and is entitled to all the rights and privileges appertatning thereto,

This certificate remains current until 31 December 2024,
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/ ° Vi ° oo g ® \
Q. Director’s Responsibilities B

Statements of Director’s Responsibilities for Financial Report

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the company keeps proper books of accounts of all the transactions and
the financial statements for the year from 01 July, 2023 to 30 June, 2024 and gives a true and fair view of the state of
affairs and profit for the year.

The directors also ensure that the financial statements have been prepared and presented in accordance with the
International Accounting Standards (IAS) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
Financial Reporting Council (FRC), Bangladesh and provide the information as required by the Company Act 1994
(Amended in 2020), Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Ordinance 1969, Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission Rules 1987 and The Regulations, 2015 of the Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. and Chittagong Stock
Exchange Ltd.

It ensures that the estimates and judgments relating to the financial statements were made on a prudent and reason-
able basis, so that they reflect in a true and fair manner and reasonably present the Company’s true state of affairs.

The Company has taken proper and sufficient care in installing a system of internal control, which is reviewed, evaluat-
ed and updated on regular basis. To augment those objectives, the Board of Directors has formed an Audit Committee
as per code of Corporate Governance of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC). They have
performed their responsibilities without any undue interface from any of the Directors.

Internal Audit and Compliance Department of the Company conducts periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance
that the established policies and procedures of the Company are consistently followed.

The Company has adequate resources to continue operational existence for the foreseeable future and therefore, has
continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Accounts.

The Board of Directors confirms that International Accounting Standards (IAS) and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted in Bangladesh by the Financial Reporting Council (FRC), have been adhered to, subject
to any material departure being disclosed and explained in the notes to the accounts.

The Directors also confirm that the annual reports together with Director’'s Report and the Financial Statements have
been prepared in compliance with the law, rules and regulatory guidance.

The Auditors of the Company, M/S. M. Z. Islam & Co., Chartered Accountants, had carried out the Annual Audit to
review on the system of internal controls, as they consider appropriate and necessary, for expressing their opinion on
the financial statements. They have also examined the financial statements made available by the management
together with all the financial records, related data and minutes of the Board, relevant policies and expressed opinion
thereon.

Lbevullian

Dr. Saira Khan, MBBS, DCH, FCPS Md. Igbal Hossain
Managing Director Company Secretary
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ooC Declaration by MD and CFO >°°

Annexure-A

Declaration by Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer
[As per condition No. 1(5)(xxvi)]

October 28, 2024

The Board of Directors

Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited
House #65, Road #8/A (New),
Dhanmondi, Dhaka-1209

Subject: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on June 30, 2024.
Dear Sirs,

Pursuant to the condition No. 1(5)(xxvi) imposed vide the Commission’s Notification No. BSEC/CMRRC-
D/2006-158/207/Admin/80 Dated 3 June, 2018 under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969,
we do hereby declare that:

(1) The Financial Statements of Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited for the year ended on June 30, 2024 have been
prepared in compliance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) and International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS), as applicable in the Bangladesh and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed;

(2) The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and reasonable basis, in
order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view;

(3) The form and substance of transactions and the Company’s state of affairs have been reasonably and fairly
presented in its financial statements;

(4) To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of internal control and
maintenance of accounting records;

(5) Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the established policies
and procedures of the Company were consistently followed; and

(6) The management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements is appropri-
ate and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In this regard, we also certify that: -

(i) We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on June 30, 2024 and that to the best of our knowl-
edge and belief:

(a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that
might be misleading;

(b) these statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards and applicable laws.

(ii) There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which
are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the company’s Board of Directors or its members.

. Sincerely yours,
_obennllilan.

Dr. Saira Khan, MBBS, DCH, FCPS (Md. Abul Kasem)
Managing Director Chief Financial Officer (CFO
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@

MOLLAH QUADIR YUSUF & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

[Certificate as per condition No. 1 (5) (xxvii)]

Report to the Shareholders of
Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited
on Compliance on the Corporate Governance Code

We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code by Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited
for the year ended on 30 June 2024. This Code relates to the Notification No. BSEC/CMRRRCD/2006-158/207/Ad-
min/80 dated 03 June 2018 of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC).

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the Company. Our examination was
limited to the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by the Management in ensuring compliance to the
conditions of the Corporate Governance Code.

This is a scrutiny and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Gover-
nance Code as well as the provisions of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by Institute of
Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those standards are not inconsistent with any condition of this
Corporate Governance Code.

We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have required, and after due scrutiny
and verification thereof, we report that, in our opinion:

(a) The Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code as stipulated in the
above-mentioned Corporate Governance Code issued by the Commission;

(b) The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) as required by this Code;

(c) Proper books and records have been kept by the company as required under the Companies Act 1994, the
Securities Laws and other relevant Laws; and

(d) The Governance of the company is satisfactory.

Dated: December 1, 2024

Place: Dhaka

Signed for and on behalf of
Mollah Quadir Yusuf & Co.
Chartered Accountants

2

Moinul Islam FCA
Partner

ICAB Enrolment No-1785

House # 63/F (3rd Floor), Dolphin Goli, Lake Circus, Kalabagan, Dhanmondi, Dhaka- 1205

Tel: 01819-547 366, 01731-119 595, 01770-705 465, 01716-591 438, 01818-519 918
E-mail: mqy_ca@yahoo.com, Web: www.mqyca.com
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Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Commission's Notification No.
SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated 3 June 2018 issued under section 2CC of the Securities
& Exchange Ordinance, 1969:

(Report under condition No. 9)

Compliance Status

Condition Title Complie Not . Remarks
No. Complie
d
d
1 Board of Directors
Total number of Company’s Board of Directors shall 08 Direcors
101 not be less than 5 (five) and more than 20 (twenty); N including 02
M Independent
Directors
1(2) Independent Director
One-fifth (1/5) of the total number of directors in the 02
1(2) (a) ; . . \ Independent
company’s Board be Independent Directors (ID); Directors

ID does not hold any shares or holds less than one N
percent (1%) shares in the company;

ID not a sponsor of the company nor connected with
any sponsor/director/nominated director/ shareholder
of the company or any of its associates, sister
concerns, subsidiaries and parents or holding J
entities who holds one percent (1%) or more shares
of the total paid-up shares of the company by family
relationship and his/ her family members also shall
not hold above mentioned shares in the company;

1(2)(b) (ii)

who has not been an executive of the company in N
immediately preceding 2 (two) financial years;

who does not have any other relationship, whether N
pecuniary or otherwise;

who is not a member or TREC holder, director or N
officer of any stock exchange;

Who is not a shareholder, director excepting
independent director or officer of any member or J
TREC holder of stock exchange or an intermediary of]
the capital market;

who is not a partner or an executive or was not a
partner or an executive during the preceding 3 (three)
years of the concerned company’s statutory audit J
firm or audit firm engaged in internal audit senices or|
audit firm conducting special audit or professional
certifying compliance of this Code;

1(2)(b) (vii)

1(2)(b) (viii) Directorship in more than 5 listed companies v

who has not been convicted by a court of competent J
jurisdiction as a loan defaulter of Bank or NBFI);

who has not been convicted for a criminal offence N
involving moral turpitude;

Approval of appointment of Independent Director in
1@)e) the AGM v

The post of independent director(s) cannot remain N
vacant for more than 90 (ninety) days;

84
ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024




Condition
No.

Title

Compliance Status

Complie
d

Not
Complie
d

Remarks

1(2)(e)

The tenure of office of an independent director shall
be for a period of 3 (three) years, which may be
extended for 1 (one) tenure only

13)

Qualifications of Independent Director

1(3)(@)

Independent director shall
individual with integrity.

be a knowledgeable

13)(b) (i)

ID is business leader who is or was a promoter or
director of an unlisted company having minimum paid
up capital of Tk.100 million or any listed company or
a member of any national or international chamber of|
commerce or business association;

Not
Applicable

1(3)(b) (ii)

who is or was a top level executive not lower than
CEO/MD/DMD/CFO/Head of Finance or Accounts/
CS/HIAC/Head of Legal Senice or a candidate with
equivalent position of an unlisted company having
minimum paid-up-capital of Tk.100.00

million or of a listed company;

1(3)(b) (i)

Former official of government or statutory or
autonomous or regulatory body in the position not
below 5th Grade of the national pay scale, who has
at least educational background of bachelor degree
in economics or commerce or business or Law;

Not
Applicable

1(3)(b) (iv)

University Teacher who has educational background
in Economics or Commerce or Business Studies or
Law; or

Not
Applicable

Professional who is or was an Advocate practicing at
least in the High Court Division of Bangladesh
Supreme Court or CA/CMA/ CFA/CCA/CPA/
Chartered Management Accountant/CS or equivalent
qualification

Independent director shall hawe at least 10 (ten)
years of experiences in any field as clause (b);

In special cases, the abowe qualifications or
experiences may be relaxed subject to prior approval
of the Commission

No Such
Event
Occurred

Duality of Chairperson

Chairperson of the Board and the MD and/or CEO of
the company shall be filled by different individuals;

MD and/or CEO of a listed company shall not hold
the same position in another listed company

Chairperson of the Board shall be elected from
among the nonexecutive directors of the company;

Board shall clearly define respective roles and
responsibilities of the Chairperson and the MD and/or
CEOQ;

1(4)(e)

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Board the
remaining members may elect one of themselves
from non- executive directors as Chairperson for that
particular Board’s meeting;

1(5)

The Directors' report to Shareholders'

1(5)(0)

Industry outlook and possible future developments
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Condition
No.

Title

Compliance Status

Complie
d

Not
Complie
d

Remarks

1(5) (ii)

Segment / Product wise performance

\/

1(5) (iii)

Risks and concerns including internal and external
risk factors, threat and negative impact on
environment, if any;

Discussion on Cost of goods sold, Gross profit and
Net profit margin

Discussion on continuity of extraordinary activities

Discussion on related party transactions

Statement of utilization of proceeds from public issue

< || <] =

An explanation if the financial results deteriorate after|
the company goes for IPO, RPO, Rights Share Offer,
Direct Listing, etc.;

No Such
Event
Occurred

An explanation on any significant variance that
occurs between Quarterly Financial performances
and Annual F/S;

Statement of remuneration to Directors

A statement that the F/S prepared by the
management of the issuer company present fairly its
state of affairs

A statement that proper books of account of the
issuer company have been maintained,;

A statement that appropriate accounting policies
have been consistently applied in preparation of the
financial statements and that the accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent
judgment;

1(5) (xiv)

A statement that IAS or IFRS, as applicable in
Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation of the
FY and any departure there from has been
adequately disclosed;

1(8) (xv)

Sound internal control designed and implementation
thereof

1(5) (xvi)

A statement that minority shareholders have been
protected from abusive actions by, or in the interest
of, controlling shareholders acting either directly or
indirectly and have effective means of redress;

1(5) (xvii)

A statement that there is no significant doubt upon
the issuer company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, if the issuer company is not considered to
be a going concern, the fact along with reasons there
of shall be disclosed;

1(5) (xviii)

An explanation that significant deviations from the
last year's operating results of the issuer company
shall be highlighted and the reasons thereof shall be
explained;

1(5) (xix)

A statement where key operating and financial data
of at least preceding 5 (five) years shall be
summarized;

1(5) (xx)

An explanation on the reasons if the issuer company
has not declared dividend (cash or stock) for the
year;

Not
Applicable
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Compliance Status

Condition Title Complie Not . Remarks
No. Complie
d
d
Board’s statement to the effect that no bonus share Not
1(5) (xxi) or stock dividend has been or shall be declared as - .
L Applicable
interim dividend;
1(5) (xxii) Total number of Board me.etlngs held during the year N
and attendance by each director;
1(5)(xxiii) The Pattern of Shareholding
1(5) (xxiii) (a) Sharehqldlng by Parent or Subsidiary/Associated N
companies
Shareholding by Directors, Chief Executive Officer,
1(5) (xxiii) (b) |Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Head of \
Internal Audit and Compliance
1(5) (xxiii) (c) [Shareholding by Executives S
Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more
1(5 d J
(8) (xxili) (d) woting interest in the company (name-wise details);
1(5) (xxiv) Appointment or Re-Appointment of Director
1(5) (xxiv) (a) |Brief resume of the director N
1(5)(xxiv) (b) [Nature of Director expertise \
. Names of companies in which director holds
105) (xxiv) () directorship v
Management Discussion and analysis of
1(5)(xxv) Financial Statements
165)(xxv) (2) Accou.nting policies and estimation for preparation of| N
financial statements
Changes in accounting policies and estimation, if
1(5)(xxv)(b) any, clearly describing the effect on financial J
performance or results and financial position as well
as cash flows in absolute figure for such changes;
Comparative analysis (including effects of inflation) of]
financial performance or results and financial position
1(5)(xxv) (c) |as well as cash flows for current financial year with S
immediate preceding five years explaining reasons
thereof;
1(5)xxv)(d) Compare financial performance and position with N
peer industry
Financial and economic scenario of the country and
1
(©O)xxv) (€) the globe v
Risk and concerns issues related to financial
109)00xv) () statements and mitigation plan v
Future plan or projection of company’s operation,
1(5 V
(©)0xv)(g) performance and financial position
Declaration or certification by the CEO and the CFO
1(5)(xxvi) to the Board as required under condition No. 3(3) S
shall be disclosed as per Annexure-A;
The Report as well as certificate regarding
- compliance of conditions of this Code as required
10)00M) | der condition No. 9 shall be disclosed as per v
Annexure-B and Annexure-C. i
16) Board meetings and record of minutes as per N ‘-.
requirement 7
1(7) (a) Code of conduct for chairperson, Board members N

and Chief Executive Officer
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Condition
No.

Title

Compliance Status

Complie
d

Not
Complie
d

Remarks

1(7) (b)

The code of conduct as determined by the NRC shall
be posted on the website of the company including,
among others, prudent conduct and behavior;
confidentiality; conflict of interest; compliance with
laws, rules and regulations; prohibition of insider
trading; relationship with environment, employees,
customers and suppliers; and independency

Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary Company

Provisions relating to the composition of the Board of
the holding company shall be made applicable to the
composition of the Board of the subsidiary company;

Not
Applicable

At least 1 (one) Independent director on the Board of
the holding company shall be a director on the Board
of the subsidiary company;

Not
Applicable

The minutes of the Board meeting of the subsidiary
company shall be placed for review at the following
Board meeting of the holding company;

Not
Applicable

The minutes of the respective Board meeting of the
holding company shall state that they have reviewed
the affairs of the subsidiary company also;

Not
Applicable

The Audit Committee of the holding company shall
also review the financial statements, in particular the
investments made by the subsidiary company.

Not
Applicable

MD/CEO/CFO/HIAC and CS

The Board shall appoint a MD or Chief Executive
CEOQ, a CS, a CFO and a HIAG;

The positions of the MD or Chief Executive Officer
CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC shall be filled by different
individuals;

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of a listed
company shall not hold any executive position in any
other company at the same time;

The Board shall clearly define respective roles,
responsibilities and duties of the CFO, the HIAC and
the CS;

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC shall not be
removed from their position without approval of the
Board;

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of the company
shall attend the meetings of the Board:

These statements do not contain any materially
untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading; and

These statements together present a true and fair
view of the company’s affairs and are in compliance
with existing accounting standards and applicable

laws;
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Condition
No.

Title

Compliance Status

Complie
d

Not
Complie
d

Remarks

The MD or CEO and CFO shall also certify that there
are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no
transactions entered into by the company during the
year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the
code of conduct for the company’s Board or its
members;

The certification of the MD or CEO and CFO shall be
disclosed in the Annual Report.

Board Directors Committee

Audit Committee

Nomination and Remuneration committee

Audit Committee

The company shall have an Audit Committee as a
sub- committee of the Board;

The Audit Committee shall assist the Board in
ensuring that the FS reflect true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company;

5(1) ()

The Audit Committee shall be responsible to the
Board;

5(2)

Constitution of The Audit Committee

5(@2) (a)

The Audit Committee shall be composed of at least
3 (three) members;

The Board shall appoint members of the Audit
Committee who shall be non-executive directors of
the company excepting Chairperson of the Board
and shall include at least 1 (one) Independent
director;

All members of the audit committee should be
“financially literate” and at least 1 (one) member shall
have accounting or related financial management
background and 10 (ten) years of such experience;

When the term of senice of any Committee member
expires or there is any circumstance causing any
Committee member to be unable to hold office before
expiration of the term of senice, thus making the
number of the Committee members to be lower than
the prescribed number of 3 (three) persons, the
Board shall appoint the new Committee member to
fill up the vacancy immediately or not later than 1
(one) month from the date of vacancy in the
Committee to ensure continuity of the performance of
work of the Audit Committee;

So far not
required

The company secretary shall act as the secretary of|
the Committee;

The quorum of the Audit Committee meeting shall
not constitute without at least 1 (one) independent
director.

The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the Audit
Committee to be Chairperson of the Audit
Committee, who shall be an independent director;

89

ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024




Compliance Status
Condition Title Complie Not . Remarks
No. Complie
d
d
In the absence of the Chairperson of the Audit No Such
Committee, under condition No. 5(4)(b) and the
5(3) (b) . Event
reason of absence of the regular Chairperson shall
. . Occurred
be duly recorded in the minutes;
5(3) (c) Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall remain N
present in the Annual General Meeting.
5(4) Meeting of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee shall conduct at least its four
5(4) (a) o . Xl
meetings in a financial year;
The quorum of the meeting of the Audit Committee
5(4) (b) shall be constituted in presence of either two \/
members or two-third of the members;
5(5) Role of Audit Committee
5(5) (a) Ovwersee the Financial reporting process \
5(5) (b) Monitor accounting policies and principles \/
5(5) (c) Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process and N
review of the Internal Audit and Compliance Report;
5(5) (d) Ovwersee hiring and performance of external Auditors
5(5) (e) Hold Meeting with external auditors
5(5) () Review along with the management, the annual F/S N
before submission to the Board for approval;
Review along with the management, the quarterly
5(5) (9) and half vyearly financial statements before N
submission to the Board for approval;
5(5) (h) Review the adequacy of internal audit function; \/
5(5) (i) Review management discussion and analysis \
5(5) (j) Review related party transactions V
) . Not
5(5) (k) Review management letters by statutory Auditors - Applicable
Owersee the determination of audit fees based on
5(5) (1) scope and magnitude, level of expertise deployed N
and time required for effective audit and evaluate the
performance of external auditors; and
Owersee whether the proceeds raised through IPO/
5(5) (m) RPO or Rights Share Offer have been utilized as per J
the purposes stated in relevant offer document or
prospectus approved by the Commission:
5(6) Reporting of the Audit Committee
. The Audit Committee shall report on its activities to
°(6)(@) () the Board. v
. Report on conflict of interest to the Board of] No such
S(6)(@)i)a) Directors conflictions
Suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or No such
5(6)(@)(ii)(b) [material defect identified in the internal audit and — o
. . . incidence
compliance process or in the financial statements;
Suspected infringement of laws, regulatory
. . . g . No such
5(6)(a)(ii)(c) [compliances including securities related laws, rules — o
: incidence
and regulations; and
Any other matter which the Audit Committee deems —ne such
5(6)(@)(ii)(d) [necessary shall be disclosed to the Board — : Tl
. . / matter
immediately;
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Condition
No.

Title

Compliance Status

Complie
d

Not
Complie
d

Remarks

5(6)(b)

If the Audit Committee has reported to the Board
about anything which has material impact on the
financial condition and results of operation and has
discussed with the Board and the management that
any rectification is necessary and if the Audit
Committee finds that such rectification has been
unreasonably ignored, the Audit Committee shall
report such finding to the Commission, upon
reporting of such matters to the Board for three times
or completion of a period of 6 (six) months from the
date of first reporting to the Board, whichever is
earlier

No such
incidence

Report on activities carried out by the Audit
Committee, including any report made to the Board
under condition No. 5(6)(a)(ii) above during the year,
shall be signed by the Chairperson of the Audit
Committee and disclosed in the annual report of the
issuer company.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

NRC as a sub committee of the Board

Assist the Board in formulation of nomination criteria
of directors and top level executive

The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the NRC shall be
clearly set forth in writing cowering the areas stated
at the condition No.6(5)(b).

Constitution of the NRC

The Committee shall comprise of at least three
members including an independent director;

All members of the Committee shall be non-

executive directors

Members of the Committee shall be nominated and
appointed by the Board;

The Board shall have authority to remove and appoint
any member of the Committee;

< | 2 | < | <

In case of death, resignation, disqualification, or
removal of any member of the Committee or in any
other cases of vacancies, the board shall fill the
vacancy within 180 (one hundred eighty) days of|
occurring such vacancy in the Committee;

No Such
Event
Occurred

The Chairperson of the Committee may appoint or co
opt any external expert and/or member(s) of staff to
the Committee as advisor who shall be non-wvoting
member, if the Chairperson feels that advice or
suggestion from such external expert and/or
member(s) of staff shall be required or valuable for
the Committee;

So far not
required

The company secretary shall act as the secretary of|
the Committee;

The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not constitute
without attendance of at least an independent
director;

No member of the NRC shall receive, either directly
or indirectly, any remuneration or fees other than
Director’s fees or honorarium from the company
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Compliance Status
Condition Not

No. Title Complie Complie Remarks
d
d
6(3) Chairperson of the NRC
The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the NRC to
6(3)(a) be Chairperson of the Committee, who shall be an \

independent director;

In the absence of the Chairperson of the NRC, the
remaining members may elect one of themselves as

6(3)(b) Chairperson for that particular meeting, the reason of S;:qfiirrggt
absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly
recorded in the minutes;
6(3)(c) Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the AGM to N
answer the queries of the shareholders:
6(4) Meeting of the NRC
6(4)(a) The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting in a N
financial year;
The Chairperson of the NRC may convene any No such
6(4)(b) emergency meeting upon request by any member of| - emergency
the NRC arises
The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall be
6(4)(c) constituted in presence of either two members or two v
third of the members of the Committee.
6(4)(d) The proceedings of each meeting of the NRC shall N
duly be recorded in the minutes.
6(5) Role of the NRC
6(5)(a) NRC shall be independent and responsible or N
accountable to the Board and to the shareholders;
The level and composition of remuneration is
6(5)(b)(i)(a) reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and N

motivate suitable directors to run the company
successfully;

The relationship of remuneration to performance is
6(5)(b)(i)(b) clear and meets appropriate  performance v
benchmarks; and

Remuneration to directors, top level executive
inwlves a balance between fixed and incentive pay

6(5)(b)(i)(c) reflecting short and long-term performance objectives v
appropriate to the working of the company and its
goals;

Devising a policy on Board’'s diversity taking into
6(5)(b)(ii) consideration age, gender, experience, ethnicity, \

educational background and nationality;

Identifying persons who are qualified to become
directors and who may be appointed in top level
6(5)(b)(iii) executive position in accordance with the criteria laid v
down, and recommend their appointment and
removal to the Board;

Formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance N
of independent directors and the Board;

6(5)(b)(iv)

Identifying company’s needs for appointment of] e
6(5)(b)(Vv) employees and determination their selection, transfer v 7 !
and promotion criteria.

Deweloping, recommending and reviewing annually ; ¥
6(5)(b)(vi) the company’s human resources and training \/
policies;
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Compliance Status
Condition Title Complie Not . Remarks
No. Complie
d
d
The company shall disclose the nomination and
6(5)(c) remuneration policy and the evaluation criteria and N
activities of NRC during the year at a glance in its
annual report.
7 External or Statutory Auditors
7(1)() Appraisal or valuation senices or fairness opinions; \
7(1)(i) Flnanmal .|nformat|on systems  design and N
implementation;
Book-keeping or other senices related to the
7(1)(iii) ' ; N
accounting records or financial statements;
7(1)(iv) Broker-dealer senices v
7(1)(v) Actuarial senices \
7(1)(M) Internal audit senvices N
7(1)(vii) Any senice that the Audit Committee determines; v
Audit or certification senices on compliance of]
7(1)(viii) corporate governance as required under condition no. y
9(1)
7(1)(ix) Any other senice that creates conflict of interest
7() Shareholding of partner or employees of external
Audit firms
7(3) Presence of representative of external auditors in N
AGM/EGM
8 Maintaining a website by the company
8(1) The company shall have an official website linked N
with the website of the stock exchange;
The company shall keep the website functional from
8(2) . v
the date of listing;
The company shall make available the detailed
8(3) . . . L . v
disclosures on its website as per listing regulations.
9 Reporting & Compliance of Corporate
9(1) Certificate of compliance regarding Corporate N
Gowernance Guidelines
92) Compliance auditor shall be appointed by the N
shareholders in the AGM
9(3) Compliance of conditions as per Annexure-C
[i
e
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Shareholders of
Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2024, and the Statement of Profit or Loss and other
Comprehensive Income, statement of changes in equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In'our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
fini'?\ncial position of the Company as at June 30, 2024 and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Accounting Standards (IASs),
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994, the Securities
and Exchange Rules 2020 and other applicable laws and regulations.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the company
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountant (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffi-
cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Aud\t Matters

Key Audit IMatters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most signifi-
cance in our audit of the Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were
addressedlin the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

w.w.w.mzislam.co

Eastern View [10th Floor), 50 D.I.T Extension Road, Nayapaltan, Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh.

Tel : +880 2 48310345, Cell : +880 18946 311407, E-mail : mzislam.ca@gmail.com, afakrul@yahoo.com
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E M Risks Our response to the risks

Revenue recognition

At the year end the company reported total | We have tested the design and operative effectiveness

revenue of Tk. 599,659,109. Revenue is | of key controls focusing on the following:

measured at contract value. Sales income is the

major source of income for the company.

Therefore, there is a risk of revenue being e Check controls over taking sales orders;

misstated. e Segregation of duties in invoice creation and
modification; and

e Timing of revenue recognition.

There is also a risk that revenue may be

overstated due to fraud through manipulation

and management may feel to achieve

performance targets.

Our substantive procedures in relation to the revenue
recognition comprises the following:

e Obtaining supporting documentation for sales
transactions recorded either side of year end to
determine whether revenue was recognized in
the correct period;

\ e Cross match sales order, sales invoice and

dispatch carefully;

| e Cross checking with Mushak 9.1; and

e C(ritically assessing journals posted to revenue

! to identify unusual or irregular items.

See note no. 21 to the financial statements

Property, Plant and Equipment

The carrying value of property, plant and | Our audit procedures to assess the carrying value of the
equipment amount to BDT 1,150,164,643. This | property, plant and equipment included the following:

represents a material amount in the company’s
statement of financial position as at 30 June
2024 as: e Assessing the design, implementation and

operating effectiveness of key internal controls
over the completeness, existence and accuracy

. e There is a risk of determining which of property, plant and equipment including the
\ costs meet the criteria for capitalization; key internal controls over the estimation of
e Determining the date on which the useful economic lives and residual values;

assets is recognized to property, plant e Testing supporting evidence of acquisition

and equipment and depreciation made on sample selected during the year to

commences; verify accuracy of recorded cost and ownership
e The estimation of economic useful lives of a(fqulred assets to the company;

and residual values assigned to o Testing the key controls over the

property, plant and equipment. management’s judgement in relation to the

accounting estimates of the useful economic
lives and residual values of property, plant and

Additionally, we identified the carrying value of equipment; o
property, plant and equipment as a key audit e Physically inspected assets located at factory fp
matter because of the high level of management verify their existence and assets conditiqii;pf"
judgment involved and because of its use during our audit. (i '!
significance to the financial statements. * Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures -of-

the financial statements. G

Seelnote no. 4 to the financial statements. o

N

w.w.w.mzislam.con

Eastern View (10th Floor), 50 D.I.T Extension Road, Nayapaltan, Dhake-1000, Bangladesh.

Tel : +880 2 48310345, Cell : +880 1894 311407, E-mail : mzislam.ca@gmail.com, afakrul@yahos.com

95
ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024



9y, (&G, T IS (IR
M. Z. ISLAM & CO.

Chrarrered Acocowurnfants

3@ An Internatienal Affiated Member Flrm Of
MGM Accountanls I’I,I Lid. Ausiralka.

M

w.w.w.mzislam.col

f I'I Inventories
!

[ At year end the company reported total
Inventories of BDT 493,201,611.

e This represent material amount of
company’s working capital in the
financial statement as at 30 June 2022
as there is risk of uncollectible;

e There is risk of overvaluation;

e There is a risk of expiry of date of
stocks.

e There is a risk of damage of stocks.

Our audit procedure to access the amount of inventories
including the following:

e Related staff of the company conducted
physical inventories. We obtained the stated
inventory report

e Checking of cost sheet of finished product,
checking of purchased price of raw materials.

See note no. 8 to the financial statements

Trade Receivable

At year end the company reported total
Receivable of Tk. 255,718,828. This represent
material amount of company’s working capital
i in the financial statement as at 30 June 2024 as
there is risk of uncollectible;

e There is risk of untraceable of credit
parties which resulting bad debts.

Our audit procedure to access the amount of trade
receivable including the following:

e Checking of sales ledgers with DEPO wise
sales statement.

e  Checking of subsequent collection amount.

e Aging analysis.

e Checking balance confirmation depo-wise.

See note. 9.01 to the financial statements

Measurement and recognition of deferred tax

The balance of reported deferred tax liability of
\the company was Tk. 80,678,988.

Significant judgement is required in relation to
Eeferred tax liability as their liability is
ependent o forecast of future profitability over

alnumber of years.

The risk for financial statements is that these
provisions are not properly measured for all

es of temporary differences as per IAS 12
income tax.

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design
and tested the operational effectiveness of the
company’s key control over the recognition and
measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities and
assumptions used in estimating the future taxable
expenses of the company.

We also assess the completeness and accuracy of the
data used for the estimation of future taxable expenses.

We evaluated the reasonableness of key assumptions,
timing of reversal of temporary differences and
expiration of tax laws carry forwards, recognition and
measurement of deferred tax liability. We assessed the

adequacy of company’s disclosures setting out the basis.|
of deferred tax liability balances and the level p‘f WGLARD oS

!
——

P

fi=<[f

estimation involved.

We also assisted in evaluating the tax implid.at'i'pﬁs,: ‘3

reasonableness of estimates and calculations . "4

See note. 15.00 to the financial statements

Eastern View {10th Floor), 50 D.I.T Extension Road, Nayapaltan, Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh.

Tel : +880 2 48310365, Cell : +880 1894 311407, E-mail : mzislam.ca@gmail.com, afakrul@yahoo.com
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- Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information in
the Annual report other than the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are
responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditors’ report.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read ‘the other information
identifies above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance of the company.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Financial Statements in accordance
with related (IASs) and (IFRSs), and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
| continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
| concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
. has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
uditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

ur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free
om material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditors’ report that incudes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

art of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o, Identify and assess the risks of material misstatements of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e | Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness

of the Company’s internal control.

e [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting esti

and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting aﬁd-,'_ |
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions™®

e, TR

w.w.w.mzislam.coh

Eastern View {10th Floor), 50 D.I.T Extension Road, Mayapaltan, Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh.

Tel : 4880 2 48310345, Cell : +880 1894 311407, E-mail : mzislam.ca@gmail.com, afakrul@yahos.com
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that may casts significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusion is based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of

most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit

matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
| about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
. communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act 1994 and the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, we also report the
ollowing:

) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
cessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appeared from our examination of these books;

c¢) The statements of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income dealt with
by the report are in agreement with the books of accounts and returns; and

d) The expenditure incurred was for the purpose of the Company's business.

Mohammad Fakfirul Alam Patwary FCA

Place: D Enrolment No. 1249
Dated: | 28,2024 Managing Partner
M. Z. Islam & Co.
Chartered Accountanis

DVC : 2410291249A5137053

w.w.w.mzislam.col

Eastern View {10th Floor), 50 D.I.T Extension Road, Nayapaltan, Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh.

Tel : +880 2 483103465, Cell : +880 1896 311407, E-mail : mzislam.ca@gmail.com, afakrul@yahoo.com
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Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited
Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June, 2024

Amountin Taka

Particulars Notes 30-Jun-24 | l 30-Jun-23
ASSETS:
Non Current Assets 1,474,712,706 1,502,305,667
Property, Plant and Equipment 4.00 1,150,164,643 1,150,169,426
Intangible Assets 5.00 1,224,638 1,360,709
Right-of-use asset (ROU) 6.00 5,651,962 7,310,395
Capital work-in-Progress 7.00 317,671,463 343,465,137
Current Assets 939,515,718 1,000,426,186
Inventories 8.00 493,201,611 493,722,001
Trade and Other Receivables 9.00 256,130,421 259,319,385
Advances, Deposits and Prepayments 10.00 62,689,093 66,017,566
Fixed Deposits Receipts (FDR) with Banks 11.00 88,801,678 152,724,622
Cash and Cash Equivalents 12.00 38,692,915 28,642,612
Total Assets 2,414,228,424 2,502,731,853
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY AND LIABILITIES:
Equity attributable to the Shareholders 2,255,949,495 2,334,084,309
Share Capital 13.00 1,365,000,000 1,365,000,000
Retained Earnings 14.00 890,949,495 969,084,309
Non-Current Liabilities 84,114,522 82,455,958
Deferred Tax Liabilities 15.00 80,678,988 77,855,263
Lease liabilities 16.00 3,435,534 4,600,695
Current Liabilities 74,164,407 86,191,586
Short Term Finance 17.00 47,709,074 55,836,229
Lease liabilities 16.00 1,182,428 1,424,036
Trade and Other Payables 18.00 7,162,713 6,989,159
Unclaimed Dividend Account 19.00 176,686 461,163
Provision for Expenses 20.00 17,933,506 21,480,999
Total Liabilities 158,278,929 168,647,544
Total Equity & Liabilities: 2,414,228 424 2,502,731,853
Net Assets Value (NAV) per share 30.00 | 16.53 | | 1710 |
Number of Shares used to compute NAV | 136,500,000 | | 136,500,000 |

The accompanying Notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Managing Director Director Chief Financial Officer

Signed as per our saparate report of same date

Mohammad Fakhrul Alam Patwary FCA

Place: Dhaka Enroiment No. 1249
Dated: October, 28,2024 Managing Pariner
M. Z.Islam & Co.
Chartered Accountanis

DVC : 2410291249A5137053
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Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 30 June, 2024

MZ IsLam & C_t:_n

Amountin Taka
Particulars Notes 01/07/2023 to 01/07/2022 to
30/06/2024 30/06/2023
Revenue from Net Sales 21.00 599,659,109 716,866,435
Cost of goods sold 22.00 (436,758,103) (485,502,033)
Gross Profit 162,901,006 231,364,402
Operating expenses (211,149,096) (185,168,222)
Administrative Expenses 23.00 (40,556,478) (37,271,657)
Selling & Distribution Expenses 24.00 (170,592,618) (147,896,565)
Operating Income (48,248,090) 46,196,180
Financial expenses 25.00 (4,467,057) (3,866,297)
Interest and Other income 26.00 6,218,502 10,552,917
Profit before WPPF and Welfare Fund (46,496,645) 52,882,800
Workers' Profit Participation and Welfare Fund 27,00 (2518229)
(WPP&WF) . 016,
Profit before Income Tax (46,496,645) 50,364,571
Income Tax Expenses (17,988,169) (17,288,832)
Current Tax Expenses 28.01 (15,164 ,444) (15,113,763)
Deferred Tax Income /(Expenses) 28.02 (2,823,725) (2,175,069)
Net Profit after tax (64,484,814) 33,075,739
Other Comprehensive Income -
Total comprehensive income for the year (64,484,814) 33,075,739
Earnings per Share (EPS) 29.00 (0.47) 0.24
Number of Shares used to compute EPS 136,500,000 136,500,000

The accompanying Notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Managing Director Director

Chief Financial Officer

Signed as per our saparate report of same dale

Place: Dhaka
Dated: October, 28,2024

100
ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024

Mohammad Fakhrul Alam Patwary FCA

Enrolment No. 1249
Managing Pariner
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Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 June, 2024
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Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited

Amountin Taka

Particulars Share Capital ER:::::;: Total
Balance as on 1st July, 2023 1,365,000,000 969,084,309 |  2,334,084,309
Dividend for the year 2022-2023 - (13,650,000) (13,650,000)
Net profit after tax during the year - (64,484,814) (64,484,814)
Balance as at 30 June, 2024 1,365,000,000 890,949,495 [  2,255,949,495

The Board of Directors of the Company has recommended 01.00% cash dividend for all shareholders excluding
Sponsor & Directors in its 101st board meeting dated 28 October, 2024.

For the year ended 30 June, 2023

Amountin Taka

Particulars Share Capital ER::::::: Total
Balance as on 1st July, 2022 1,365,000,000 960,198,381 |  2,325,198,381
Dividend for the year 2021-2022 - (24,189,811) (24,189,811)
Net profit after tax during the year - 33,075,739 33,075,739
Balance as at 30 June, 2023 1,365,000,000 969,084,309 | 2,334,084,309

The Board of Directors of the Company has recommended 1% cash dividend for all shareholders in its 97th board

meeting dated 28 October, 2023.

The accompanying Notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Managing Director

-

Director

Chief Financial Officer

Signed as per our separate report of same date.
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Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June, 2024

MZ IsLam & C_D,

Amount in Taka
Particulars Notes | 01/07/2023 to || 01/07/2022 to
30/06/2024 30/06/2023
Cash flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from Customers 31.00 601 ,286,9'01 714,568,089
Cash received from non-operating income 32.00 7,779,674 11,142,244
Cash Paid to Suppliers 33.00 | (359,323.211)|| (424,924,917)
Cash Paid to Employees 34.00 | (199,011,890)| (179,579,771)
Cash Paid for Others 35.00 (31,922,287) (28,093,046)
Cash payment for Financial Expenses (3,633,726) (2,726,967)
Income Tax Paid 36.00 (11,756,646) (20,284,339)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A)* 42.00 3,418,815 70,101,293
Cash flows from Investing Activities
Acquisition of Property, Plantand Equipment 37.00 (2,787 ,445) (16,500,675)
Cash Payments for Capital Work-in-progress (30,202,279) (70,304,712)
Cash received/Payments from/to FDR 63,922,944 72,319,943
Net cash used in investing activities (B) 30,933,220 (14,485,444)
Cash flows from Financing Activities
Short Term Loan received/(Repaid) (8,127,155) (35,170,605)
Cash payment towards lease liabilities (2,240,100) (3,202,544)
Cash Dividend Paid (13,934,477) (25,025,580)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (24,301,732) (63,398,729)
Net increase/(decrease) of Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 10,050,303 (7,782,880)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 28,642,612 36,425,492
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 12.00 38,692,915 28,642,612
Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share (NOCFPS) 38.00 0.03 0.51
Number of Shares used to compute NOCFPS 136,500,000 ” 136,500,000
*Refer to Note 42.00 for a reconciliation between net profit with cash flows from operating activities.
The accompanying Notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Managing Director Director Chief Financial Officer elary

Signed as per our separate repont of same date.
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Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June, 2024

1.00 Aboutthe Company

. 1.01 Formation and Legal Status
Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited (the '‘Company) was incorporated in Bangladesh on 24 April 2001 as a Private Limited
Company and subsequently converted into Public Limited Company on 22 April, 2014 under the Companies Act, 1994
vide Registration No. CH-42959(2318)/2001 dated 24 April 2001. The Company went for Initial Public Offering (IPO)in
2018. The company is a publicly traded company and is listed with Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) and
Chittagong Stock Exchanges Limited (CSE) since 10th October, 2018.
1.02 Address of the Registered Office and Factory
The registered and corporate office of the company is located at House # 65, Road No. 8/A (New), Dhanmondi, Dhaka-
1209, Bangladesh.
Factory of the company is situated at 137, Joykrishnarampur, Main Road, Maijdee Court, Noakhali.
1.03 Nature of Business
The Company is engaged in manufacturing and marketing of pharmaceuticals finished products in the categories of
Antibiotics, Analgesics, Anti diabetics, Narcotics, Anti pyretic, Anti inflammatory Drugs, Anti ulcerants, Antiemetic,
Gastroprokinetic, Anti histamine, Anti spasmodic expectorants, Vitamins & Minerals medicines which is selling mainly
in local and international market.
"2.00 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
2.01 Presentation of Financial Statements
The presentation of these financial statements is in accordance with the guidelines provided by International
Accounting Standards (IAS)-1 "Presentation of Financial Statements". The Financial Statements includes the following
components:
i) The Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June, 2024;
ii) The Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June, 2024;
iii) The Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30 June, 2024;
iv) The Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June, 2024; and
V) The Notes, comprising summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
2.02 Statement of Compliance with Applicable Laws and Standards
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
and International Accounting Standards (IAS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB)
and subsequently adopted by the Financial Reporting Council (FRC), Bangladesh, the Companies Act, 1994, the
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987, The Financial Reporting Act-2015, the Listing Regulation of Dhaka
Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) and Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited (CSE) 2015 and other relevant laws as
applicable.
The title and format of these financial statements follow the requirements of IFRSs which are to some extent different
from the requirement of the Companies Act, 1994. However, such differences are not material and in the view of
management, IFRS format gives a better presentation to the shareholders.

2,03 Other Regulatory Compliance

The Company also complied with the requirements of following laws and regulations from various Government
bodies/regulations:

e The Income Tax Ordinance, 1984 and Income Tax Act, 2023
e The Income Tax Rules, 1984 & 2023

e The Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty Act, 2012

e The Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty Rules, 2016
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o The Drug and Cosmetics Act, 2023

o The Financial Reporting Act, 2015 and FRC Notifications

o The Customs Act, 1969

e The Stamp Act, 1899

o The Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission Act, 1993

e The Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission Rules, 1987
e DSE and CSE Rules

e DSE & CSE (Listing) Regulations, 2015

e Bangladesh Labour Act, 2006 (As amended to 2018)

2.04 Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and for contingent assets and liabilities that require
disclosure, during and at the date of the financial statements.

Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions of accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods
affected as required by IAS 8: “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”

Measurement of fair values
A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for financial
assets and liabilities.

The company has established solid internal control with respect to the measurement of fair values. Significant valuation
issues are reported to Audit Committee.

When measuring the fair values of an asset or a liability, the company uses market observable data as per as possible.
When one is available, the company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market
for that instrument. A market is regarded as 'active’ if transactions for the assets or liability take place with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the company uses valuation techniques that maximize the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

2.05 Materiality, aggregation and off setting
Each material item as considered by management significant has been displayed separatelyin the financial statements.
No amount has been set off unless the company has legal right to set off the amounts and intends to settle on net basis.
Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted by the relevant accounting standards. The
values of assets or liabilities as shown in the statement of financial position are not off-set by way of deduction from
another liability or asset unless there exist a legal right therefore. No such incident existed during the year.

2.06 Going Concern
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis. As per management
assessment there are no material uncertainties related to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

2,07 Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are prepared and presented in Bangladesh Currency (Taka/ Tk/BDT), which is both
functional and reporting currency of the Company.

2.08 Reporting Period

The financial statements of the Company consistently cover one financial year commencing from 01 July, 2023 to 30
June, 2024.
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2.09 Responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial statements

The company's management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of
Financial Statements as per section 183 of the companies Act 1994.

210 Authorization for issuing Financial Statements
The Financial Statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 28 October 2024 for
publication.

2.11 Accrual Basis of Accounting

The Financial Statements have been prepared, except Cash Flow information, using the accrual basis of accounting.
Since the accrual basis of accounting is used, the company recognizes items as assets, liabilities, equity, income and
expenses (the elements of financial statements) when they satisfy the definitions and recognition criteria for those
elements in the IFRS conceptual Framework.

2.12 Basis of Measurement
The Financial Statements have been prepared on going concern basis under the historical cost convention except for
certain assets which are stated either at revalued amount or fair market value as explained in the accompanying notes.

213 Comparative and reclassification
Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of previous year in accordance with IAS-1 "Presentation of
Financial Statements" for all numeric information of the financial statements and also the narrative and descriptive
information where it is relevant for understanding of the current year financial statements. Prior year figure has been
rearranged/reclassified wherever considered necessary to ensure comparability with the current year financial
statements.

214 Application of Standards (IAS's)
As per para 12 of the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, the company complied with the following International
Accounting Standards (IASs) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) and subsequently adopted by the Financial Reporting Council (FRC)
Bangladesh in preparing the financial statements.

SI. | IASAFRS Title of IAS/IFRS
No. No.
International Accounting Standards (IASs)
1 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

Inventories

Statement of Cash Flows

oo NN

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

Events after the Reporting period

12 Income Taxes
16 Property, Plant & Equipment

19 Employee Benefits

Ol | N[l |~ DN
—
o

21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

10 23 Borrowing Costs

11 24 Related Party Disclosures

12 32 Financial instruments: Presentation

13 33 Earnings Per Share

14 34 Interim Financial reporting

15 36 Impairment of assets

16 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets J—

17| 38 |Intangible Assets JOSLAY N
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International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)

18 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosure

19 8 Operating Segments

20 9 Financial Instruments
21 13 Fair Value Measurement
22 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

23 16 Leases

3.00 Significant Accounting Policies
3.01 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
i)  Recognition and Measurement

An item shall be recognized as Property, Plant and Equipment's (PPE) if, and only it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

In compliance with the IAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment" items of Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE) excluding
land are initially measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Land is
measured at cost. The cost of an item of PPE comprises its purchase price, import duties and non-refundable taxes
after deducting trade discount and rebates and any costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable operating in the intended manner. The cost also includes the cost of replacing
part of the property, plant & equipment and borrowing costs for term debt availed for the construction / implementation of
the PPE, if the recognition criteria are met.

The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of material and direct labour and other cost directly attributable to
bringing the assets to a working condition inclusive of inward freight, duties and non-refundable taxes for their intended

use.
ii) Subsequent Costs

The subsequent expenditure is only capitalized as part of assets when the useful life or economic benefit or both of that
asset is increased provided that itis provable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the
company and its cost can be measured reliably. The cost of the dayto day maintaining cost on PPE are recognized in
the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income as incurred.

iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is provided to amortize the cost of the assets after commissioning, over the period of their expected useful
lives. Depreciation has been charged on item of property, plant and equipment except land and land development is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income using "Reducing Balance Method" over
the estimated useful lives of each items.

Depreciation on addition to fixed assets charged when the assets are available for use i.e. when itis in the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management.

Rate of depreciation on property, plant and equipments considering their useful lives are as follows:

Category of Fixed Assets Rate of Depreciation

Plant & Machinery 10%

Generator 10%

Building Decoration 10%

Electrical Installation 10%

Gas Installation 10%

Office Equipment 10%

Factory Equipment 10%

Furniture and Fixture 10%

Vehicles 20%

Power House 10%

Laboratory Equipment 10%

FactoryBuilding & Warehouse 2.50%

“SLAN X,

1)
(% ( Dhaks ) %)
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iv) Retirementand Disposals

An asset is de-recognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use and subsequent
disposal. Gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and is recognized as gain or loss from disposal of asset under
otherincome in the statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment
The company reviews the recoverable amount of its assets at each reporting date. If there exist anyindication that the

carrying amount of assets exceeds the recoverable amount, the company recognizes such impairment loss in
accordance with IAS-36 “Impairment of Assets”.

All assets have been reviewed according to IAS-36 and it was confirmed that no such assets have been impaired during
the year and for this reason no provision has been made for impairment of assets.

3.02 Capital work in progress
Property, Plant and Equipment under construction / acquisition have been accounted for as Capital work-in-progress
until construction / acquisition is completed and measures at cost. In case of import, capital work in progress is
recognized when risks and rewards associated with such assets are transferred to the company.

3.03 Intangible assets and research and development expenditures
Intangible assets are stated at cost less provisions for amortization and impairments, if any. License, patents, know-how
and marketing rights acquired are amortized over their estimated useful lives, using the straightline basis, from the time
they are available for use. The cost of acquiring and developing computer software for internal use and internet sites for
external use are capitalized as intangible assets where the software or site supports a significant business system and
the expenditure leads to the creation of a durable asset.
In compliance with the requirements of IAS 38 "Intangible Assets", research, development and experimental costs are
usually absorbed as revenue charges as and when incurred. However, the research and development expenditures that
is definite to yield benefit to the Company and is material in the Company's and/ local context, are capitalized as per IAS-
38.

3.04 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entityincurs in connection with the borrowing of funds as per IAS 23: Borrowing Costs.

3.05 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value in accordance with the Para of 21 & 25 of IAS-2
“Inventories”. Costs including an appropriate portion of fixed and variable overhead expenses are assigned inventories
by the method most appropriate to the particular class of inventory. Net Realizable Value represents the estimated
selling price for the inventories less all estimated cost of completion and cost necessary to make the sale. ltem wise
valuation is as follows:

i) Raw and packing materials at weighted average cost ;

ii) Work-in-progress at standard cost;

iii) Finished goods atlower of cost or net realizable value;

iv) Spare & Tools and Printing & Stationary are at cost.
Standard cost comprises value of materials, standard activity cost and overheads.

3.06 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognizing and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to
buy or sell non-financial items. T his standard replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to financial assets and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.
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| Financial Assets
(@) Investment in fixed deposit receipt

Fixed deposit, comprising funds held with banks and other financial institutions, are initially measured at fair value, plus
direct transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method ateach
reporting date. Changes in carrying value are recognized in profit.

(b) Trade and Other Receivables
Trade receivables represents amount due from customers arising from transactions in the ordinary course of business.

Other receivable amount consists of any other types of due from different parties. Aging calculation is prepared to assess
the probability of non- recovery of any receivables.

Both receivables are initially recognized at original invoice/face value and subsequently assessed for recoverability and
reported accordingly. The management contentiously assess whether provision for bad debtis required and if needed,
will account for it.

(c) Advances, Deposits and Prepayments
Advances are recognized initially at actual cost and deductions or adjustments are accounted for on a timely and
suitable manner.
Deposits are payments made for specific purposes which are expected to be realized or recovered in due course.
After initial recognition at cost, prepayments are carried at cost less the amount charged for respective periods.

(d) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consists of cash on hand and with banks on current accounts, deposit accounts and short

term investments which are held and available for use bythe companywithout anyrestriction. There is insignificant risk
of change in value of the same.

Il Financial Liabilities
(a) Borrowings
All borrowings are initially recorded at the amount of proceeds received, net of transaction costs. Borrowings are
subsequently carried at amortized cost, with the difference between the proceeds, net of transaction costs, and the
amount due on redemption being recognized as a charge to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income over the period of the relevant borrowing.
(b) Trade and Other Payables

Trade payables include amounts due to suppliers and other relevant parties in relation to the operating activities while
other payables consist of amount payable to all the other parties not directly related to the operation of the company.
These payables are recognized initially at fair value less any directly attributable transection costs and subsequently
measured at amortized cost using effective interest method.

3.07 Changes in significant accounting policies
The Company has consistently applied the accounting policies to all periods presented in these financial statements.

3.08 Leases

IFRS 16 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all
leases with a term of more than 12 months unless the underlying asset is of low value. Alessee is required to recognize
a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments.

The Company entered into lease agreements with lessors to use building floor space for business purposes. It does not
includes any Machinery, Copy Right, Software, Vehicles etc. The contracts don't offer any buying option, commitment to
buy or any assurance of post use minimum market price for the used floors. Considering exemptions allowed in IFRS-
16 (shorter contract tenor and small amount of rental expenses in respect to total revenue, the rental agreements) are
not considered as finance lease.
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(a) Lease Assets (Right of Use Of Assets)
The right of use asset is initially measured at the amount of the lease liability plus any initial direct costs incurred by the
lessee. Adjustments may also be required for lease incentives, payments at or prior to commencement and restoration
obligations or similar. Depreciation have charged on right to use assets on straight line basis over the lease period.
(b) Lease Liabilities
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments payable over the lease term,
discounted at the rate implicit in the lease if that can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the
lessee shall use their incremental borrowing rate.
3.09 Provisions
Provisions are recognized in the financial statements in line with the International Accounting Standards (IAS)-37
"Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets" when-
i) The companyhas a legal constructive obligation as a result of past events.
i) Itis probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligations.

iii) Areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligations.
The Company has no contingent liabilities & assets as per IAS 37 as on 30 June, 2024.

3.10 Related Party Disclosures
As per International Accounting Standards IAS-24 "Related Party Disclosures", parties are considered to be related if one
of the party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. The company carried out transactions in the ordinary course of business on an arm's
length basis at commercial rates with its related parties which have been given in Note-43.00 of these Financial
Statements.

3.11 Employees' Benefit
The company maintains defined benefit plan for its eligible permanent employees. The eligibility is determined
according to the terms and conditions set forth in the respective deeds. Employees of the company are entitled to get the
following benefits from the company.
The company has accounted for and disclosed employee benefits in compliance with the provisions of IAS 19
Employee Benefits.
The company's employee benefits include the following

i) Short Term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits include salaries, bonus etc. Obligations for such benefits are measured on an
undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related senvice is provided.

ii) Workers Profit Participation and Welfare Fund (WPP&WF)
The company makes an allocation of 5% on net profit after charging such contribution but before tax to this fund
as per provisions of the Bangladesh Labour Act, 2006 (Amendment2013) and is payable to the workers as define
in the said Law.

iii) Provident Fund and Gratuity
The company has established contributory provident fund scheme. The fund is wholly administered bya Board of
Trustees. No part of the fund is included in the assets of the company. The fund is recognised by NBR.

3.12 Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes as revenue the amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be

entitlied in exchange for goods or senices when (or as) it transfers to the customer. To achieve that core principle this

standard establishes a five-step model as follows:

o |dentifythe contract with a customer;

o |dentify the performance obligations in the contract;

e Determine the transaction price;

o Allocation the transaction price to the performance obligations in the confracts; and

e Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.
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3.14

3.15

3.16

Considering the five step model the company recognizes revenue when (or as) the company satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring a promise goods to a customer. Goods is considered as transferred when (or as) the customer
obtains control of that goods. Revenue from sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable net of returns and allowances, trade discounts, rebates and Value Added Tax (VAT).

(a) Sale of Goods

Revenue from sale of Goods is recognized when control of the goods and senvices are transfer to the customer at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitied in exchange for those goods. The
company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the
goods or senvices before transferring them to the customer.

(b) Interest and Dividend Income

Interest Income is recognized when accrued on a time proportion basis. Dividend income from an investment is
recognized when the companys right to receive the payments is established, which is generally the date when
shareholders approve the dividend.

Income Taxes

Income tax expenses comprised of current and deferred tax. Income tax expenses is recognized in the Statement of
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income and accounted for in accordance with requirement of IAS-12 "Income
i) Current Tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. The tax rate used for the
reporting period was 20.00% as a publicly raded company.

ii) Deferred Tax

The company has recognized deferred tax in compliance with the provision of IAS-12 "Income Taxes". The policy of
recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities is based on temporary differences (taxable or deductible) between the
carrying amount (Book Value) of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purpose and its tax base, and accordingly,
deferred tax income or expense has been considered to determine net profit after tax and Earnings Per Share (EPS).

Segment Reporting

As required by IFRS-8 "Operating Segments", if an entity operates and engages in different economic environments and
activities then the entity has to disclose information, to enable users of its financial statements to evaluate the nature and
financial effects of the business so carried out.

The company consider the operation on aggregate basis and manage the operations as a single operating segment.
Hence itis felt that such segment reporting is not required to be disclosed.

Contingent Liabilities and Assets

Contingent liabiliies and assets are current or possible obligations or assets, arising from past events and whose
existence is due to the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events which are not within the
control of the company. In accordance with IAS-37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets"
should not be recognized in the year in which the recognition criteria of provision have been made.

Statement of Cash flows

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared principally in accordance with IAS 7 " Statement of Cash Flows". The cash
generating from operating activities has been reported using the direct method as prescribed by the Securities and
Exchange Rules, 1987 and as the benchmark treatment of IAS-7 whereby major classes of gross cash receipts and
gross cash payments from operating activities are disclosed.
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Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Earnings Per Share (EPS) has been calculated in accordance with the International Accounting Standard 1AS-33
“Earnings Per Share”, by dividing the basic earnings by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year.

i) Basic Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the entity by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. The basic EPS of previous year has been
restated to adjust the effect of bonus issue of shares during the year. As there was no preference dividend, minority -
interest or extra ordinary items, the net profit after tax for the year has been considered as fully attributable to the ordinary
shareholders.

ii) Diluted Earnings Per Share
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, an entity adjusts profit or loss attributable to each ordinary
equity holders of the entity and weighted average number of shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares. Diluted EPS is only calculated where the company has commitment to issue ordinary share in future at
reporting date. No such commitment s hold by the company at reporting date.

Financial Risk Management

International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 7 - Financial instruments: Disclosures - requires disclosure of
information relating to: both recognized and unrecognized financial instruments, their significance and performance,
accounting policies, terms and conditions, net fair values and risk information- the Company's policies for controlling
risks and exposures.

The management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the company's risk management
framework. The company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management
policies, procedures and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the company's
activities. This note presents information about the company's exposure to each of the following risks, the company's
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and its management of capital. The company has
exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments.

a) CreditRisk

b) Liquidity Risk

c) MarketRisk

a) CreditRisk:

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. Credit risk information helps users of Financial Statements assess the credit quality of the
entity's financial assets and level and sources of impairment loss. Management has a credit policy in place and
exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. As at 30 June 2024, a substantial part of the receivables is
subject to insignificant credit risk. Risk exposures from other financial assets i.e. cash at the bank and other external
receivables are very nominal.
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Management Perception:

The senior management of Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited carefully manages its exposure to credit risk. Credit
exposures arise principallyin receivables from customers into Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited asset portfolio. The credit
risk management and control are controlled through the credit policies of the company which are updated regularly.
The companyis also exposed to other credit risks arising from balances with banks which are controlled through board
approved counterparty limits.

b) Liquidity Risk:

Liquidityrisk is defined as the risk that the company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or ata
reasonable price.

Management Perception:

The company's approach toward managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. Typically, management ensures that it has sufficient cash and
cash equivalent to meet expected operational expenses, including the senicing of financial obligation through
preparation of the cash forecast, prepared based on time line of payment of the financial obligation and accordingly
arrange for sufficient liquidity/fund to make the expected payment within due date.
c) MarketRisk:
Market risk refers to the risk of adverse market conditions affecting the sales and profitability of the company. Mostly, the
risk arises from falling demand for the product or service which would harm the performance of the company. On the
other hand, strong marketing and brand management would help the company increase their customer base.
Management Perception:
Management is fully aware of the market risk and act accordingly. Market for pharmaceuticals drugs and medicines in
Bangladesh is growing atan exponential rate. Moreover, the company has a strong marketing and brand management
to increase the customer base and customer loyalty.

3.19 The Effects of Changes of Foreign Exchange Rates
Foreign currencytransactions are recorded at the rates applicable on the date of transaction in accordance with IAS-21
(The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates). Gains or losses out of foreign currency transactions are
charged/credited to the profit and loss account whenever arises. This year the company do not generate any revenue
from export sale and the companyimported raw materials and packing materials through sight L/C. Hence, no gain or
losses arised from changes in foreign currency exchange rate. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
converted into BDT at spot exchange rate at the reporting date.

3.20 Events after the Reporting period
As per IAS-10; Events after the reporting period that provide additional information about the company's position at the
date of financial position are reflected in the financial statements. All material events occurring after the balance sheet
date have been considered and where necessary, adjusted for or disclosed.
The Board of Directors of the Company has recommended 01.00% cash dividend only for all Shareholders excluding
Sponsors and Directors for the year ended June 30, 2024 in its 101st board meeting held on 28 October, 2024.

Except the facts and figures stated above, there is no other entry or note that has to be disclosed in the Financial

{(* Dhaka
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112 ENG i
ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024



MM MZ IsLam & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Amountin Taka

30-Jun-24 || 30-Jun-23
4.00 Property, Plant and Equipment
A) Cost
Opening Balance 1,978,065,885 1,960,479,837
Addition during the period 58,783,398 17,586,048
Disposal/Transfer during the Year - -
Closing Balance 2,036,849,283 1,978,065,885
B) Depreciation
Opening Balance 827,896,459 765,390,355
Charge during the period 58,788,181 62,506,104
Disposal/T ransfer during the Year - -
Closing Balance 886,684,640 827,896,459
Written Down Value (A-B) 1,150,164,643 1,150,169,426
Details have been shown in Annexure-A
5.00 Intangible Assets
A) Cost
Opening Balance 1,909,220 1,909,220
Addition during the period - -
Disposal/Transfer during the Year - -
Closing Balance 1,909,220 1,909,220
B) Amortization
Opening Balance 548,511 397,321
Charge during the period 136,071 151,190
Disposal/T ransfer during the Year - -
Closing Balance 684,582 548,511
Written Down Value (A-B) 1,224,638 1,360,709

Details have been shown in Annexure-B

6.00 Right of Use Assets (RoU)
Opening Balance 26,266,197 26,266,197
Less: Adjustment during the period - -

26,266,197 26,266,197
Less: Accumulated depreciation 20,614,235 18,955,802
Closing Balance 5,651,962 7,310,395

Details have been shown in Annexure-C
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Chartered Accountants

Amountin Taka

30-Jun-24 || 30-Jun-23
Capital Work in Progress
A) Construction work-in-progress (Building)
Opening Balance 287,469,184 229,857,442
Addition during the period 30,202,279 57,611,742
Transfer to Property, Plantand equipment - -
Closing Balance 317,671,463 287,469,184
B) Plant and Machinery in transit and installation
Opening Balance 55,995,953 44,388,356
Addition during the period _ 12,692,970
Transfer to Property, Plantand equipment (55,995,953) (1,085,373)
Closing Balance . 55,995,953
Total Closing Balance 317,671,463 343,465,137

Anew building is being constructed in the factory premises located at Binodpur, Sadar, Noakhali to increase the
overall production capacity of The Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited. Capital Working-in-process expenditure
include Tk. 6,05,32,650 out of Tk. 31,76,71,463 from use of IPO Fund under the head of construction of new

factory building which have not start commercial production yet.

Inventories

Raw Materials 305,261,325 302,694,806
Packing Materials 37,463,562 41,635,982
Spares & Tools 15,328,457 17,342,850
Promotional Materials & Giftitems 19,324,354 20,834,756
Finished goods 109,462,185 104,856,358
Work in Process-Closing 6,361,728 6,357,249
Total 493,201,611 493,722,001

Physical verification of inventories was carried out by inventory team consisting management staffs and external

auditors. Stock has been valued on the basis of valuation is stated in note-3.05.
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Amountin Taka

30-Jun-24 ||  30-Jun-23
9.00 Trade and Other Receivable
Particulars
Trade Receivables Note-9.01 255,718,828 257,346,620
Accrued Interest Note-9.02 411,593 1,972,765
Closing Balance 256,130,421 259,319,385

Trade receivables occurred in the ordinary course of business and are unsecured but considered good and
recoverable within six months. The Accounts Receivables have no securities except their personal securities.

There was no amount due by the Directors (including Managing Director, Managing Agent, Manager and other
Officers of the company) and any of them severally or jointly with any other person(s).
There was also no other amount due by associate undertakings.

Ageing of the above Trade Receivables is given below

Receivables due over six months - -
Receivables due below six months 255,718,828 257,346,620
Total 255,718,828 257,346,620

9.01 Trade Receivable

Barisal DMO 19,234,657 18,820,208
Bogra DMO 19,924,658 19,710,851
Chittagong DMO 23,619,455 24,218,422
Cumilla DMO 19,685,493 18,705,278
Dhaka DMO 21,876,342 25,467,046
Faridpur DMO 14,695,729 14,758,172
Jessore DMO 9,699,594 9,887,780
Khulna DMO 3,649,752 3,394,325
Bhairab DMO 15,346,136 14,747,923
Mymensingh DMO 17,834,975 18,181,598
Noakhali DMO 26,218,457 26,969,437
Rajshahi DMO 16,327,458 17,535,236
Dinajpur DMO 11,061,443 11,806,131
Rangpur DMO 13,326,354 12,829,968
Chandra DMO 2,138,561 -

Cox's Bazar 3,725,486 2,790,411
Sylhet DMO 17,354,278 17,523,834
Total 255,718,828 257,346,620
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Amountin Taka

30-Jun-24 ||  30-Jun-23
9.02 Accrued Interest
Opening Balance 1,972,765 2,562,092
Addition during the year 4,748,325 9,015,949
Total 6,721,090 11,578,041
Re-investment During the year (3,295,953) (2,742,676)
Received During the year (3,01 3;544) (6,862,600)
Closing Balance 411,593 1,972,765
10.00 Advances, Deposits and Prepayments
Advances & Prepayments
Advance Income Tax Note- 10.01 11,756,646 17,616,562
Advance against Purchase & Others 15,525,452 11,425,683
Advance against L/C 17,849,625 17,233,865
Advance against Travelling and Conveyance 2,887,756 2,892,875
Advance against Motor-cycle Expenses 4,347,485 4,253,164
Advance against Employee 1,973,449 1,872,652
Advance against Depot Rent 1,902,600 1,272,600
Prepayments of VAT 6,068,870 9,072,955
Total Advances and Prepayments 62,311,883 65,640,356
Deposits
Security Deposit
Bakhrabad Gas System Ltd 48,610 48,610
Bangladesh T & T Board 40,600 40,600
Power Development Board 288,000 288,000
Total Security Deposits 377,210 377,210
Total 62,689,093 66,017,566

Advances: These advances are un-secured but good and subsequently realized and/or adjusted.

Deposits: These balances represents security deposits made by the company for Gas connection, Telephone
line connection & Electricity connection etc.
There is no claim against the company, which can be acknowledge as debt.

There is no aggregate amount due from the Directors ( including Managing Director) and managing agents of the
company and any of them severally or jointly with any other person.
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10.01

11.00

12.00

Advance Income Tax

Opening Balance

Payment made during the year
Total

Adjustment made During the year

Closing Balance:

Fixed Deposits Receipts (FDR)

Jamuna Bank Ltd. Foreign Exchange branch Dhaka

Union Bank Ltd. Panthapath Branch, Dhaka

Shahjalal Islami Bank Ltd. Satmosjid Road Branch, Dhaka (Short Term
Investment)

Total

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash in Hand at factory

Cash in Hand at Head Office

Cash in Hand at Depot Office

Postal Imprest

Cash atBank Note- 12.01
Total

17

LY.
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Chartered Accountants

Amountin Taka

30-Jun-24 || 30-Jun-23
17,616,562 23,582,123
11,756,646 20,284,339
29,373,208 43,866,462
(17,616,562) (26,249,900)
11,756,646 17,616,562
21,272,390 27,686,773
- 60,000,000
67,529,288 65,037,849
88,801,678 152,724,622
36,739 34,763
33,286 61,862
17,112,951 11,301,733
3,065 3,065
21,506,874 17,041,189
38,692,915 28,642,612
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12.01 Cash at Bank

Al-Arafah Islami Bank Ltd. 1311020011891
A-Arafah Islami Bank Ltd. 01311220001386
Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd. 171.110.380

Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd. 1711200002165
Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd. 2501200000282
Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd. 7017700000272
Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd. 1711200002688
Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd. 1711200003141
Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd. 1715290000052
Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd. 1715270000142
Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd. 1715270000158
Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd. 1715270000163
Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd. 1715280000036
National Bank Ltd. 1063000829560

Jamuna Bank Ltd.1001000227878

Union Bank Ltd. 31210000536

Sonali Bank Ltd. 2000602

Shahjalal Islami Bank Ltd. 401211100007640
Shahjalal Islami Bank Ltd. 401213100009660

Total
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Chartered Accountants

Amountin Taka

30-Jun-24 || 30-Jun-23
117,093 22,291
16,219 17,199
3,927,561 56,435
5,608 4,872
62515 17,964

498,152 -
64,137 222315
127,251 243,254
2,479,594 2,416,758
10,728,386 10,516,473
1,058,908 1,040,060
1,058,908 1,040,060
1,060,539 1,037,586
78,728 31,018
59,711 451,376
4,146 49,139
79,906 71610
74,233 2,779

5279 -
21,506,874 17,241,189
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13.00 Share Capital

13.01 Authorized Share Capital

15,00,00,000 ordinary shares of Tk 10/= each

13.02 Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

(a) By Cash:

13,00,00,000 Ordinary shares of Tk. 10/- each fully paid in cash

(b) By Issue of Bonus Share:

65,00,000 Ordinary shares of Tk. 10/- each fully paid-up as bonus shares
Total 13,65,00,000 ordinary shares of Taka 10/= each.

Composition of Shareholdings of Ordinary Shares:

Amountin Taka

30-Jun-24 || 30-Jun-23

1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000

1,300,000,000 1,300,000,000

65,000,000 65,000,000

1,365,000,000 1,365,000,000

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Category of Shareholders No. of % No. of Shares %
Shares
Sponsors/Directors 69,034,952 50.58% 69,539,201 50.94%
Financial and other Institutions 22,830,427 16.73% 21,866,686 16.02%
Foreign 11,025 0.01% 12,850 0.01%
General Public 44,623,596 32.69% 45,081,263 33.03%
Total 136,500,000 100.00%| 136,500,000 100.00%

The Distribution Schedule showing the number of shareholders and their share holdings and percentage as on

30 June, 2024 are as follows:
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14.00

Amountin Taka

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Range of Holdings No. of No. Of Shares Percentage (%)
Shareholder

Less than 500 Shares 2,013 466,848 0.34%
From 501 to 5,000 Shares 3402 6,090,421 4.46%
From 5,001 to 10,000 Shares 573 4,429,292 3.24%
From 10,001 to 20,000 Shares 307 4,589,375 3.36%
From 20,001 to 30,000 Shares 132 3,352,181 2.46%
From 30,001 to 40,000 Shares 7 2,486,028 1.82%
From 40,001 to 50,000 Shares 57 2,651,367 1.94%
From 50,001 to 1,00,000 Shares 88 6,567,404 4.81%
From 1,00,001 to 10,00,000 Shares 7 19,881,339 14.57%
From 10,00,001 and above Shares 22 85,985,745 62.99%

Total 6,736 136,500,000 100.00%

The shares are listed with the Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited and Chittagong Stock exchange Limited. The
shares were quoted at Tk. 14.30 in the Dhaka stock Exchange Limited and Tk. 14.30 in the Chittagong Stock

Exchange Limited as on 30.06.2024.

Retained Earnings

Opening balance

Dividend for the year 2022-2023 ( 1% Cash)

Net profit after tax during the year

Closing Balance
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969,084,309 960,198,381
(13,650,000) (24,189,811)
(64,484,814) 33,075,739
890,949,495 969,084,309




15.00

16.00

17.00

Deferred Tax Liabilities

MZ IsLam & C_D,

Amountin Taka

30-Jun-24

30-Jun-23

Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been recognised and measured in accordance with the provision of IAS 12
"Income Taxes". Related deferred tax expensesf/income have been disclosed in note 28.02. The components of
deferred tax assets and liabilities are given below:

Taxable
Particulars Carrying Taxbase | (deductible) | Applicable tax Def.errfatli tax
Amount value () | Temporary rate Liability
Difference
As on 30 June, 2024
Eﬁ;:yéiam and 1151389281 747994342 403394939  20.00% 80,678,988
Total deferred tax
liabilities for the 1,151,389,281 747,994,342 403,394,939 80,678,988
year 2023-2024
30 June, 2023
Eﬁ:x:am and 1151530135 762253822 389276313  20.00% 77,855,263
Total deferred tax
liabilities for the 1,151,530,135 762,253,822 389,276,313 77,855,263
year 2022-2023
Lease Liability
Opening Balance 6,024,731 8,087,945
Addition during the year - -
Finance Charge 833,331 1,139,330
Paid during the year (2,240,100) (3,202,544)
Closing Balance 4,617,962 6,024,731
Transferred to Current Maturity (1,182,428) (1,424,036)
Non-Current Portion 3,435,534 4,600,695
Short Term Finance
Outstanding position of Short Term Finance is shown below:
Jamuna Bank Limited SOD Alc. No. 6002000012105 18,602,881 18,262,049
Jamuna Bank Limited UPAS AIC - 6,408,324
SJIBL-BA-MUAZZAL (FO) 14,390,343 16,680,473
DBBL, Account No. 1714050001188 14,715,850 14,485,383
Total 47,709,074 55,836,229
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18.00

19.00

Trade and Other Payables
Particulars

Avi Enterprise

Crystal Flexipack Ltd.

Sun Shine Traders

Rasayan Ghar

JMS Glass Industries

AGI Printing & Packaging Ltd.
Dhaka Foil Corporation
Reaz Enterprise

Tanim Plastic Industries
United Polymers Limited
Index Chemi

Mohd. Manik Miah Plastic
Pharma Vintage

Eastern Trade Chems
Pharmacon Enterprise
Bright International

Shafin Trade Line

World Chemical Industry Limited
Padma Blowing Ltd.

Sonali Enterprize

Mehedi Printing & Packaging
CDM Accessories Ltd.

CSI Trading & Corporation
Total

MZ IsLam & C_D,

Amountin Taka

30-Jun-24 ||  30-Jun-23
287,643 308,993
79,507 79,507
287,661 537,661
715,813 323,063
135,026 35,025
652,534 632,544
442,829 275,782
520,345 659,296
526,330 386,108
348 450 148,450
698,312 383,846
73472 38,800
416,135 244,635
. 714,509
203,500 311,250
311,000 334,000
200,000 300,000
78,000 135,000
182,851 352,476
336,720 248,000
143,725 226,388
43,795 313,826

479,065 :
7,162,713 6,989,159

This represents the amount payable to suppliers of raw materials, packing materials, Promotional materials etc.

Al suppliers were paid on a regular basis.

Dividend Payable / Unclaimed Dividend

Opening balance

Provision made during the Period
Interest (net off AIT & Bank charge)
Total

Paid during the year

Paid to Capital Market Stabilization Fund (CMSF) during the year

Closing balance

461,163 1296,932
13,650,000 24,189,811
(3,676) (12,739)
14,107,487 25,474,004
(13,736,815) (25,012,841
(193,986) -
176,686 461,163
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MZ IsLam & C_D,

Amountin Taka

30-Jun-24 ||  30-Jun-23
Year-wise break-up of Dividend payable is as follows:
For the year 2022-2023 49,203 -
For the year 2021-2022 39,875 88,678
For the year 2020-2021 69,601 115,722
For the year 2019-2020 - 115,051
For the year 2018-2019 - 121,164
Interest (net off AIT & Bank charge) 18,007 20,548
Total 176,686 461,163

NB: Unclaimed Cash Dividend for the year 2018-2019 Tk. 1,21,164.00 and for the year 2019-2020 Tk. 72,822.00
transferred to the Capital Market Stabilization Fund (CMSF).

20.00 Provision for expenses

Directors Remuneration 100,000 100,000
Field Forces Expenses 168,457 171,454
Utilities 528,073 429,266
Salary & Wages 6,510,361 6,254,856
Audit, Legal & Professional Fees 2,889,460 1,557,035
Overtime 47,386 48,909
Printing & Stationery - 15,982
Staff Welfare expenses 1,603,167 1,330,750
TDS Payable 640,874 1,156,672
Worker's Profit Participation and Welfare Fund (WPP&WF)  Note- 20.01 - 2,518,229
Provision for Income Tax Note- 20.02 5,445,728 7,897,846
Total 17,933,506 21,480,999

20.01 Worker's Profit Participation and Welfare Fund (WPP&WF)

Opening balance 2,518,229 5,833,311
Provision made during the year - 2,518,229
Total 2,518,229 8,351,540
Paid during the year (2,518,229) (5,833,31 1)|
Closing balance - 2,518,229
20.02 Provision for Income Tax
Opening balance 7,897,846 19,033,983
Provision made during the year 15,164 444 15,113,763
Total 23,062,290 34,147,746
Paid/Adjustment made during the year (17,616,562) (26,249,900)
Closing balance 5,445,728 7,897,846
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21.00 Revenue

22.00

22.01

22,02

22,03

Local Sales (Net)
Total

MZ IsLam & C_D_

Amountin Taka

01/07/2023 to 01/07/2022 to
30/06/2024 30/06/2023
599,659,109 716,866,435
599,659,109 716,866,435

The entity transferring products from central depot to regional depot though Mushok- 6.5 and Mushok 6.3 issued
by Central Depot VAT and Excise Department after receiving the sales delivery report with chalan from regional
depot. Sales deliveryreportis made specific interval and recognising revenue accordingly

Cost of goods sold
Raw materials consumed

Packing materials consumed

Consumable item consumed

Work in process- Opening
Work in process- Closing
Change in work in process
Manufacturing Overhead
Depreciation

Cost of production
Finished goods - Opening
Finished goods - Closing
Change of finished goods stock
Cost of Physician Sample
Cost of Goods Sold

Raw materials consumed
Opening Stock

Purchase during the year
Available for production
Closing Stock

Consumption during the year

Packing materials consumed
Opening Stock

Purchase during the year
Available for Consumed

Closing Stock

Consumption during the year
Consumable Spares & Tools
Opening Stock

Purchase during the year

Consumable Spares & Tools available

Closing Stock

Consumption during the year

Note- 22.01
Note- 22.02
Note-22.03

Note- 22.04

213849209 244,532,088
117537684 132,514,704
24,075,645 22,714,003
355462,538 399,760,795
6,357,249 6,837 452
(6,361,728) (6,357,249)
(4,479) 480,203
35,230,823 33,037,171
54,673,008 58,130,677
445361890 491,408,846
104,856,358 103,528,010
(109,462,185)  (104,856,358)
(4,605,827) (1,328,348)
(3,997,960) (4,578,465)
436,758,103 485,502,033
302694806 281,668,145
216415728 265,558,749
519110534 547,226,894
(305,261325)  (302,694,806)
213849209 244,532,088
41,635,982 48,184,078
113365264 125,966,608
155,001,246 174,150,686
(37463562)  (41,635,982)
117,537,684 132,514,704
17,342,850 19,735,181
22,061,252 20,321,672
39,404,102 40,056,853
(15328457)  (17,342,850)
24,075,645 22,714,003
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22,04 Manufacturing overhead
Salary, Wages & Allowances
Workers' benefit and welfare expense
Overtime
Staff Welfare expenses
Laboratory Expenses
Postage & Stamp
Indirect materials
Electricity Bill
Gas & Water bill
Uniform and liveries
Carriage Inward
Medical Expenses
Power & Fuel
Printing & Stationery
Traveling & Conveyance
Factory Rent
Repairs & Maintenance
Sanitation & Cleaning
Entertainment
Total

23.00 Administrative Expenses
Salary, Wages & Allowances
Staff Welfare expense‘s
Printing & Stationery
Phone, Fax and Mobile Bill
Postage & Stamps
Traveling & Conveyance
Utility Bill
Entertainment
Medical & Welfare Expenses
Licenses Renewal and Registration Fee
Audit Fees
Directors Remuneration
Board meeting attending fees
Amortization of Intangible Assets
Depreciation of Right-of-use Assets
Depreciation
Repairs & Maintenance
RJSC Exp.

AGM Expenses
Legal & Professional fees
Total

Amountin Taka

01/07/2023 to 01/07/2022 to

30/06/2024 30/06/2023
20,212,925 19,036,379
553,935 600,715
734,468 522,955
733,044 630,342
482,576 741,432
24,662 27,418
851,830 1,484,615
4,070,866 3,476,512
268,782 189,285
54,435 107,855
875,073 978,768
31,385 31,765
1,071,444 1,331,800
90,797 161,117
109,530 126,714

1,440,000 -
3,208,639 3,024,974
207,152 355,528
209,280 208,997
35,230,823 33,037,171
26,719,452 22,369,088
854,416 601,774
253,916 245,847
485,520 394,096
66,572 69,367
175,888 161,548
890,002 787,805
446,042 358,009
- 6,495
419,615 301,466
402,500 345,000
1,200,000 1,200,000
421,875 396,750
136,071 151,190
1,658,433 3,419,150
3,627,291 3,750,366
692,942 539,071
5,038 22,293
249,730 159,397
1,951,175 1,992,945
40,556,478 37,271,657
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24.00

24.01

25.00

26.00

27.00

Selling & Distribution Expenses
Salary, Wages & Allowances

Field forces expenses
Transportation & Handling Expenses
Staff Welfare expenses

Business Promotion Expenses
Repair & Maintenance

Traweling and conveyance Expenses
Water, electricityand Gas

Phone, Fax and Mobile Bill

Sample Expenses

Consumption of promotional materials
Postage & Courier

Entertainment

Printing & Stationery

Depot Rent

Product Development Expenses
Training Expenses

Bank Charge

Depreciation

Vehicle Maintenance

Loading & Unloading

License fees & Renewals

Total

Promotional materials & Gift Items
Opening Stock

Purchase during the year

Available

Closing Stock

Consumption during the year

Financial Expenses

Interest on Short Term Loan

Bank Charge & Commission
Interest expenses on lease liabilities
Total

Other Income

Intereston FDR

Interest on Bank STD Accounts
Sale of Wastage

Total

Workers Profit Participation and Welfare Fund (WPP&WF)
Net Profit before Contribution to WPPF&WF

Rate of contribution to WPPF&WF (%)

Workers Profit Participation and Welfare Fund (WPPF&WF)

MZ IsLam & C_D,

Amountin Taka

0100772023 t0 | 01/07/2022 to
30/06/2024 30/06/2023

126,030,068 108,304,304
16,423,620 14,348,823
2,228,718 1974,830
3,032,463 4,154,458
224,258 226,751
394,485 472,819
1,565,807 1,069,594
594,135 480,648
444,100 415,252
3,997,960 4,578,465
3,597,564 3,583,358
1,179,349 788,080
362,236 367,948
1707,248 1290,017
3,786,950 2,498,000
45,700 66,368
884,888 330,694
1447,202 704,282
587,882 625,061
1508,347 1,064,736
341,572 427,370
208,066 124,707
170,592,618 147,896,565
20,834,756 22,341,564
2,087,162 2,076,550
22,921,918 24,418,114
(19,324,354)  (20,834,756)
3,507,564 3,583,358
3,550,015 2,468,532
83,711 258,435
833,331 1,139,330
4,467,057 3,866,207
4748325 9,015,949
422,044 434,923
1,048,133 1,102,045
6,218,502 10,552,917
(46,496,645) 52,882,800
5.00% 5.00%

. 2,518,229

Note: Allocation for workers' profit participation and welfare fund has been made @ 5% of profit after charging
such expenses as per provisions of the Bangladesh Labour Act, 2006 (Amendment 2013).
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28.00
28.01

28.02

29.00

Amount in Taka
01/07/2023 to 01/07/2022 to

30/06/2024 30/06/2023
Income Tax expenses
Current Tax Expenses
Net Profit before Income Tax (46,496,645) 50,364,571
Accounting Depreciation 58,924,252 62,657,294
Excess Perquisites 440,000
Entertainment expenses 1,017,558 -
Tax Depreciation (73,042,878) (73,532,635)
Taxable Profit (59,157,713) 39,489,230
Tax Rate 20.00% 20.00%
Current Tax Expenses during the year | - | 7,897,846 |
Minimum Tax Calculation
Calculation of Gross Receipts
Revenue from net sales 599,659,109 716,866,435
Other Income
Intereston FDR 4,748,325 9,015,949
Interest on Bank deposit 422,044 434,923
Other Income 1,048,133 1,102,045
Total Gross Receipts 605,877,611 727,419,352
Minimum Tax
0.60% on total gross receipts except Interestincome 3,604,243 4,307,811
AT paid on Interestincome and Vehicle (U/S -163) 1,841,485 1,890,174
Minimum Tax 5,445,728 6,197,985
Income Tax Provision whichever is higher 5,445,728 7,897,846
Current Tax Expenses for the previous Assessment year 9,718,716 7215917
Total Current Tax Expenses 15,164,444 15,113,763

Income tax provision is higher between tax at regular rate on income and minimum tax on gross receipts U/S

16tS (6) of Income Tax Act, 2023. Hence the minimum tax is accounted for as itis higher than the tax at regular
rate.

Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income)

Closing balance of deferred tax liability Note- 15 80,678,988 77,855,263
Opening balance of deferred tax liability Note- 15 (77,855,263) (75,680,194)
Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income) 2,823,725 2,175,069

Earnings Per Share(EPS)

Net Profit after taxes (64,484,814) 33,075,739
Weighted average number of ordinary share 136,500,000 136,500,000
Earnings per share (Diluted) (0.47) 0.24

Earnings Per Share (EPS) has been computed by dividing the basic earning by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding at the end of the year as per IAS 33 Earnings Per Share.

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year

This represents the number of ordinary shares outstanding at the beginning of the year plus the number of
ordinary shares issued during the year multiplied by the weighted factor.

Diluted earnings per share

The objective of diluted earnings per share is consistent with that of basic earnings per share; that is, to provide a
measure of the interest of each ordinary shares in the performance of an entity taking into account dilutive
potential ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is only calculated where the company has
commitment to issue ordinary share in future at reporting date. No such commitment is hold by the company at this
reporting date.
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29.01

30.00

31.00

32.00

33.00

34.00

m_“ MZ IsLam & ('_.D_

Amountin Taka

01/07/2023 to 01/07/2022 to
30/06/2024 30/06/2023
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares Outstanding
Weighted A No. of Sh
Particulars No. of Shares Days Weight 2 ghted Average To. o7 SNares
30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Opening balance 130,000,000 365 1.0000 130,000,000 130,000,000
Issued Bonus Share
6,500,000 365 1.0000 6,500,000 6,500,000
(06.11.2019)
Total 136,500,000 136,500,000 136,500,000

Net Asset Value (NAV) Per Share
Total Assets

Less: Total Liabilities

Net Asset Value

Total Number of Shares outstanding
Net Asset Value (NAV) Per Share

Amountin Taka

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
2414228424  2,502,731,853
158,278,929 168,647,544
2,255,949,495  2,334,084,309
136,500,000 136,500,000
16.53 17.10

Net asset value per share (NAV) has been computed by dividing total assets by the number of ordinary shares
outstanding as on 30 June 2024 as per Notification of Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission (BSEC).

Cash received from Customers

Sales during the year

Opening Trade Receivable

Closing Trade Receivable

Total Cash Received from Customers

Cash received from non-operating income
Otherincome

Opening interest receivable

Closing interest receivable

Total Cash received from non-operating income
Cash Paid to Suppliers

Purchase (Raw, Packing, Promotional, Indirect material and Spare

parts)

Opening Accounts Payable

Closing Accounts Payable

Closing Advance against Purchase & L/C
Opening Advance against Purchase & L/C
Total Cash Paid to Suppliers

Cash Paid to Employees

Salary, Wages & Allowances including Staff welfare expenses
Workers' benefit and welfare expense
Overtime

Directors Remuneration

Board meeting attending fees

Field forces expenses

Worker's Profit Participation and Welfare Fund
Opening Payable (Adjusted)

Closing Payable

Closing Advance to Employee

128

Amount in Taka

01/07/2023t0 | 01/07/2022 to
30/06/2024 30/06/2023
599,659,109 716,866,435
257346620 255048274
(255,718,828)  (257,346,620)
601,286,901 714,568,089
6,218,502 10,552,917
1972,765 2,562,092
(411,593) (1,972,765)
7,779,674 11,142,244
354,781,236 415408,194
6,989,159 6,895,028
(7,162,713) (6,989,159)
33375077 28,659,548
(28,659,548)  (19,048,694)
350,323211 424924917
177582368 155,096,345
553,935 600,715
734,468 522,955
1,200,000 1,200,000
421,875 396,750
16,423,620 14,348,823
2,518,229 5,833,311
7,905,969 9,587,638
(8:429,371) (7.905989) el Aty
1,973,449 1872652 (/Y o\,
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35.00

36.00

37.00

38.00

39.00

Opening Advance to Employee
Total Cash Paid to Employees

Cash Paid for Others

Manufacturing Overhead (excluding pay to employee & Supplier)
Administrative Overhead (excluding Depreciation & pay to employee)
Selling and Distribution overhead (excluding sample, promotional,
Depreciation & pay to employee)

Opening Liabilities for Expenses

Closing Liabilities for Expenses

Closing Advance deposit & prepayment

Opening Advance deposit & prepayment

Total Cash Paid for Others

Income Tax paid

Advance Income Tax paid

Total Income Tax paid

MZ IsLam & C_D_

Amountin Taka

Cash payment for Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Property, Plantand Equipment addition during the year
Addition from Capital Work-in-Progress
Total Cash payment for Acquisition PPE

Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share(NOCFPS)
Net Operating Cash Flow

Weighted Average Number of Shares Outstanding
Net Operating Cash Flows Per Share(NOCFPS)

01/07/2023t0 | 01/07/2022 to

30/06/2024 30/06/2023
(1,872,652) (1,973,449)
199,011,890 179,579,771
12,144,621 10,762,165
6,038,940 5,383,339
16,923,061 12,302,096
3,158,955 2,120,515
(4,058,407) (3,158,955)
15,583,921 17,868,804
(17,868,804)  (17,184918)
31,922,287 28,093,046
11,756,646 20,284,339
11,756,646 20,284,339
58,783,398 17,586,048
(55,995,953) (1,085,373)
2,787,445 16,500,675
3418815 70,101,293
136,500,000 136,500,000
0.03 0.5136

Net operating cash flow per share (NOCFPS) has been computed by dividing net operating cash flow by the
number of ordinary shares outstanding as on 30 June 2024 as per Nofification of Bangladesh Securities &

Exchange Commission (BSEC).
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company has recognized the following amount in the statement of profitand loss and other comprehensive

income.
Revenue from contract with customer (Note no-21.00)

Segregation of revenue from contracts with customer
Revenue from external customer

Timing of revenue recognition ata pointin time

Contract assets and liabilities
The Company has recognized no contract assets and liabilities.
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599,659,109 716,866,435
599,659,109 716,866,435
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MZ IsLam & C_D_

40.00 Financial instruments- fair value

Accounting classifications and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities. It does not include fair value information
for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amountis a reasonable approximation of fair value.

30-Jun-24

Carrying amount
. Financial
Particulars Note | "2rvalue |Mandatory) o bt | assetsat | Ot
hedging atfair |, . financial Total
instruments | value nstruments | amortized liabilities
value
Financial assets measured at fair value
T T : : : :
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Trade receivables 9.01 - - - | 255,718,828 -| 255,718,828
Fixed Deposits Receipts (FDR) with Banks 11.00 - - - 88,801,678 - 88,801,678
Cash and cash equivalents 12.00 - - - 38,692,915 - 38,692,915
383,213 421 383,213,421
Financial liabilities measured at fair value
T T — : : : :
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Short term loans 17.00 - - - - 47,709,074 47,709,074
Trade payable 18.00 - - - - 7,162,713 7,162,713
Lease liabiliies 16.00 - - - - 4,617,962 4,617,962
59,489,749 59,489,749
30-Jun-23
Carrying amount
Fair value |Mandatory Financial Other
Particulars Note . . FVOC-debt assets at . .
hedging atfair |, . financial Total
instruments | value instruments | - amortized liabilities
value
Financial assets measured at fair value
T T : : : :
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Trade receivables 9.01 - - - | 257,346,620 -| 257,346,620
Fixed Deposits Receipts (FDR) with Banks 11.00 - - -| 152,724,622 152,724,622
Cash and cash equivalents 12.00 - - - 28,642,612 - 28,642,612
438,713,854 438,713,854
Financial liabilities measured at fair value
T T — : : : :
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Short term loans 17.00 - - - - 55,836,229 55,836,229
Trade payable 18.00 - - - - 6,989,159 6,989,159
Lease liabilities 16.00 - - - - 6,024,731 6,024,731
68,850,119 68,850,119
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41.00 Disclosure as per requirement of the Companies Act, 1994
41.01 Disclosure as per Schedule XI, part |, para 4 of the Companies Act, 1994 are given below:

41.02

sl. Particulars 30-Jun-24 | | 30-Jun-23
No. Amount in Taka
I |Receivables considered good and in respect of which the company is fully secured.
" Receivables considered ggod for which the company holds no security other than 255,718,828 257.346,620
the debtor's personal security. :
Il [Receivables considered doubtful or bad.
Receivables due by directors or other officers of the company or any of them either
IV [severally or jointly with any other person or receivables due by firms or private
companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or a member.
V |Receivables due by companies under the same management.
Vi The maximum amount due by directors or other officers of the company at any time
during the year.
Total: 255,718,828 257,346,620
Disclosure as per Schedule XI, part |, para 6 of the Companies Act, 1994 are given below:
sl. Particulars 30-Jun-24 | | 30-Jun-23
No. Amount in Taka
| Advances, Deposits and Prepayments considered good and in respect of which the
company is fully secured.
" Advances, Deposﬂs and Prepayments considered good for which the company 53,480,403 56,998,875
holds no security.
Il {[Advances, Deposits and Prepayments considered doubtful or bad.
Advances, Deposits and Prepayments due by directors or other officers of the
v company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person or Advance,
Deposits and Prepayment due by firms or private companies respectively in which
any director is a partner or a director or a member.
v Advance, Deposits and Prepayment due by companies under the same
management.
Vi Thg maximum amount due by directors or other officers of the company at any time 9,208,690 9,018,691
during the year.
Total: 62,689,093 66,017,566
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MZ IsLam & C_D_

41.03' Disclosure of Schedule XI, Part Il, Para 3, of the Companies Act, 1994 are given below:

a.

Turnover:

01/07/2023 to 30/06/2024 01/07/2022 to 30/06/2023

Particulars Quantity | Amountin Quantity Amount in

(Pcs/PHs) Taka (Pcs/PHs) Taka
Tablet 91,864,525 | 278,464,528 103,309,726 323,279,790
Capsule 24,919,458 | 108,275,846 33,590,892 147,150,552
Liquid 1,384,750 | 88,246,250 1,417,113 107,314,346
Dry Syrup 1,252,245 ( 124,672,485 1,090,366 139,121,747
Total 119,420,978 | 599,659,109 139,408,097 716,866,435

No Commission paid to selling agents during the year.

No brokerage and discount paid on sales, other than the usual trade discount during the year.

(i) Raw Materials consumed:

Particulars 01/07/2023 to i%%ﬁll.i(t)?: 01/07/2022 to 30/06/2(.)23

RM (Kg) Taka R M (Kg) Amountin Taka
Opening stock 278,540 | 302,694,806 326,586 281,668,145
Purchase 176,441 | 216,415,728 242,860 265,558,749
Raw material available for consumption 454,981 519,110,534 569,446 547,226,894
Closing stock (210,168) (305,261,325) (278,540) (302,694,806)
Raw material consumed 244,813 213,849,209 290,906 244,532,088
(i) Finished goods:

01/07/2023 to 30/06/2024 01/07/2022 to 30/06/2023
Classes of Goods Opening Qty. PronLtl;tion Closing Qty. [ Opening Qty. Pronttl;tion Closing Qty.
Tablet (Pcs.) 18,027,802 | 90,358,200 | 16,521,477 | 19,078,274 102,259,254 18,027,802
Capsule (Pcs.) 5,712,396 | 25,625,500 | 6,418,438 9,031,972 30,271,316 5,712,396
Liquid (PHs.) 175,758 1,381,700 172,708 272,042 1,320,829 175,758
Dry Syrup (PHs.) 144,313 1,247,800 139,868 96,403 1,138,276 144,313
Total 24,060,269 [ 118,613,200 | 23,252,491 | 28,478,691 134,989,675 24,060,269
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MZ IsLam & C_D_

Il. Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part Il, Note-5 of Para 3, of the Companies Act, 1994 are given below:

Employee Position of SILVA PHARMACEUTICALS LTD. as at 30 June, 2024

Salarv R Month Total Officer & Staff Worker & Employee

alary Range (Monthly) Employee | Head Office Factory Field Factory
Number of Employees whose salary i i i i
below taka 3,000 or 5,500 p.m.
Number of Employees whose salary
above taka 3,000 or 5,500 p.m. 5% 51 2% 418 101
Total for the year ended 30 June, 596 51 26 418 101
2024
For the year ended 30 June, 2023 587 54 19 412 102

41.04 Disclosure as per requirement of schedule XI, part Il, Para 4 of the Companies Act, 1994 are given below:
. - . . ) 01/07/2023 to | 01/07/2022 to
Payment to directors within the year ending 30 June, 2024 is as follows:. 30/06/2024 30106/2023

(a) Managerial Remuneration paid or payable during the financial year to the directors, 1,200,000 1,200,000
including managing directors, a managing agent or manager;

(b) Expenses reimbursed to the Managing Agent; Nil Nil
©) Commission or Remuneration payable separately to a managing agent or his Nil Nil
associate;

(d) Commission received or receivable by the managing agent or his associate as
selling or buying agent of other concerms in respect of confracts entered into by such Nil Nil
concemns with the company..;

(e) The money value of the contracts for the sale or purchase of goods and materials or

supply of services, entered info by the company with the managing agent or his Nil Nil
associate during the financial year.;

(f) Any other perquisite or benefits in cash or in kind stating, approximate money value

. i 421,875 396,750
where practicable; (Board meeting fees)
(g) Other allowances and commission including guarantee commission. Nil Nil
(h) Pensions etc.
(i) Pensions Nil Nil
(ii) Gratuities Nil Nil
(iiiy Payments from a provident funds, in excess of own subscription and interest Ni Ni
thereon
(iv) Compensation for loss of office Nil Nil
(v) Consideration in connection with retirement from office. Nil Nil
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41.05 Disclosure as per requirement of schedule XI, Part I, Para 7 of the Companies Act, 1994 are given below:

Production Capacity Yearly Production
Capacity Utilization ( % )
Million Pcs/Ph. Million Pcs/Ph.
Name of ltem
01/07/2023 to | 01/07/2022 to 01/0:(/)2023 01/07/2022 to | {01/07/2023 to | 01/07/2022 to
30/06/2024 30/06/2023 30/06/2024 30/06/2023 30/06/2024 30/06/2023
Tablet 200.00 200.00 90.36 102.26 45.18% 51.13%
Capsule 58.00 58.00 25.63 30.27 44.19% 52.19%
Liquid 2.00 2.00 1.38 1.32 69.00% 66.04%
Dry Syrup 1.80 1.80 1.25 1.14 69.44% 63.24%
Total 261.80 261.80 118.62 134.99 45.31% 51.56%
41.06 Disclosure as per requirement of schedule XI, part Il, Para 8 of the Companies Act, 1994 are given below:

Value of imports calculated on C.I.F basis by the company during the year ended 30 June, 2024 in respect of Raw

) materials, Component and Spare parts and Capital Goods were as follows:
Import
St Particulars Unit Quantity | |Amountin BDT
[ Raw Materials KgiLtr. 8,090 17,713,326
ii Packing Materials Pcs/Kg 31,488 13,056,040
i Components of Spare parts Set
iv Capital Goods Set 1 1,859,380
Total 39,579 32,628,746

b) The Company did not have any expenditure in foreign currency during the year on account of Royalty, Know-how,
Professional consultancy fees, Interest and other matters.

) Value ofall imported raw materials, spare parts and components consumed during the financial year and the value of
all indigenous raw materials, spare parts and components similarly consumed and the percentage of each to the total
consumption were as follows:
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Imported in . . .
Particulars Imported percentage Indigenous Indigenous in Total
Value (in BDT) %) Value (in BDT) | percentage(%)
0
Raw Materials 77,151,456 36.08% 136,697,753 63.92%| 213,849,209
Packing Materials 13,175,773 11.21% 104,361,911 88.79%| 117,537,684
Components and Spare parts - 0.00% 24,075,645 100.00% 24,075,645
Total 90,327,229 25.41% 265,135,309 74.59%| 355,462,538

d)  No amount has been remitted during the year in foreign currencies on account of dividend with a specific mention of
the number of non-residents shareholders, the number of shares held by them on which the dividends were due and

the year to which the dividends, related.

e) Eamings in foreign exchange classified under the following heads as follows:
i) No export made during the year,
i) No royalty , know -how, professional and consultation fees were received,;
iii) No Interest and Dividend received;
iv) No Other income received

42.00 Reconciliation of Net income with Cash Flows from Operating Activities

AS per Clause No. 5 (2) (e) of Nofificaton No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/208/Admin/81, Dated: 20 June 2018: the

Reconciliation of Net operating cash flow under Indirect Method is as follows:

Particul 01/07/2023 01/07/2022 to
articutars to 30/06/2024| | 3010612023
Net Profit before Income tax (46,496,645) 50,364,571
Adjustment for:
Depreciation 60,446,614 65,925,254
Amortization 136,071 151,190
Finance Expense for lease 833,331 1,139,330
61,416,016 67,215,774
Change in operating assets
Decrease (Increase) in Advances, deposits and Prepayments. (2,531,443) (10,193,943)
Decrease (Increase) in Trade & Other Receivable 3,188,964 (1,709,019)
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts and Other Payable 173,554 94,131
Increase (Decrease) in Provision and Accruals (1,095,375) (3,958,311)
Decrease (Increase) in Inventories 520,390 (11,427,571)
Income Tax Paid (11,756,646) (20,284,339)
Net Cash Generated From Operating activities (indirect method) 3,418,815 70,101,293
Net Cash Generated From Operating activities (Direct method) 3,418,815 70,101,293

43.00 Disclosures as per IAS 24 Related Party disclosures are as follows:

The company carried out a number of transaction with related parties. The following are the related parties transactions of
Silva pharmaceuticals Limited has been disclosed as required by IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures:
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43.01 Disclosures as per paragraph 17 of IAS 24 are as follows:

(a) Short term employee benefits:

m_“ MZ IsLam & ('_.D_

Value of goods Balance
. Nature of . I Services
Name of the Related Parties Relationship Nature of Transaction received during payable as on
the year 30.06.2024
Managing Remuneration 1,200,000 100,000
Dr. Saira Khan Director & i
Director Board Meeting Fees 37,500 -
Mrs. Silvana Mirza Chairman Board Meeting Fees 37,500 -
Mrs. Samina Mirza Director Board Meeting Fees 75,000 -
Mrs. Farhana Mirza Director Board Meeting Fees 28,125 -
Md. M‘,’”Sl," Rahman  (Representaive - of Director Board Meeting Fees 84,375 -
Adarsha Fisheries & Poultry Farms Ltd.)
Mrs. Mahmuda Akhter (Representative of ICB) Director Board Meeting Fees 37,500 -
A.T.M. Sarrowar Kamal Chowdhury Indelpendent Board Meeting Fees 75,000 -
Director
Muhammad Moniruzzaman, FCA Indelpendent Board Meeting Fees 46,875 -
Director
) Executive Director Salary & Allowances 3,600,000 300,000
Mr. A. R. Hassan Mirza & Sponsor
Shareholder Ofice Rent 1,593,720 132,810
Total 6,815,595 532,810
[01/07/2023 to 30/06/2024 |
(b) Postemployee benefits Nil
© Other long term benefits Nil
(d) Termination benefits and Nil
(e) Share-based payment Nil

44.00 General:

44.01 Capital Expenditure Commitment:
There was no capital expenditure contracted except contract for construction of new factory building using IPO fund as on
30.06.2024. and all material capital expenditure authorized by the board.

44,02 Claim not Acknowledged as Debts:
There is no claim against the company which have been acknowledged as debt as at 30 June, 2024.

44.03 Commission, Brokerage or Discount:

No brokerage or discount other than usual trade discount against sales was paid during the year. As there was no sales
agent, commission therefore was not paid.

44,04 Un-availed Credit Facilities:
There are no credit facilities available to the company under any contract but not availed as on 30.06.2024 other than bank
credit facility and trade credit available in ordinary course of business.

44.05 Contingent Liabilities and Assets

There was no contingent liability other than letters of credit outstanding for importation of raw and packing materials, capital
goods as on 30.06.2024.
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oOCVirtuaI Annual General Meeting (AGM) Logistics';oo

Pursuant to the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s Directive No. BSEC/CMRRC-
D/2009-193/08 dated March 10, 2021; a listed company can arrange virtual Annual General
Meeting, which can be conducted via live webcast by using digital platform. Accordingly, the
23rd AGM Virtual Meeting of the Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited is scheduled to be held on
Monday, 30 December 2024 at 10.30 AM by using digital platform and online shareholders’
tools that enabling the shareholders to participate fully and equally from any location around
the world.

LIVE WEBCAST

DATE TIME

STREAMING
MONDAY http://silvaphlagm2024.
30t DECEMBER, 2024 digitalagmbd.net
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QU Shareholder’s Note oo

Shareholder’s Note:
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Shareholder’s Note:
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& Proxy Form o
- y 4

5 SILVA PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
o

Registered Office: House # 65, Road # 8/A, Dhanmondi, Dhaka-1209.

LW ettt e et et e et ettt ettt et et e te et e eea e aaeraeaaereetaaaaaaeaaaaa L= .
................................................................................................................................... being a
shareholder hold.........cccccvvvvniininnnn. No. of shares of Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited do. hereby appoint Mr./Mrs./
-
.................................... =
....................................................................................................................................... as my/our

proxy to attend and vote in my/our behalf at the 234 Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the company will be held on
Monday, 30" December, 2024 at 10.30 AM. through Hybrid System in combination of both online (virtual / digital
platform link https://silvaphlagm2024.digitalagmbd.net) and physical presence at Suchona Community Center,
Ring Road, near Krishi Market Dhaka-1207 and at any adjournment thereof or any poll that may be taken in
consequence thereof and to vote on my/our behalf as he/she thinks appropriate on all resolutions.

As witness my / our hand this .................. Day of December, 2024.
Affix 20 Taka
Revenue Stamps
Signature of the Shareholder Signature of the proxy

Shareholders BOID No:

Note:
1) The Proxy Form, duly filled and stamped must be deposited at the company’s Registered Office not later than 72
hours before the time fixed for the meeting.

2) Signature of the shareholder should agree with the specimen signature registered with the company of BO
Account/CDBL record.

(Authorized Signature) (Signature Verified)
Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited

r@ SILVA PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
o

Registered Office: House # 65, Road # 8/A, Dhanmondi, Dhaka-1209.

¢ Shareholders’ Attendance Slip o°

I/ We do hereby record my/our attendance at the 234 Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Silva Pharmaceuticals Ltd. To
be held on Monday, 30* December, 2024 at 10.30 A.M. through Hybrid System in combination of both online
(virtual /digital platform link https://silvaphlagm2024.digitalagmbd.net) and physical presence at Suchona
Community Center, Ring Road, near Krishi Market Dhaka-1207.

Name of shareholder / ProxXy «.ve.e.ee e e e et e eneeeeeeeeeereaeeeaeatenaenenanens No. of Share......ccccevvuiinninnnn
Shareholders Folio No:

Shareholders BOID No:

(Signature of shareholder /Proxy

147
ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024



Award DOO

7N

wrdy =10 ey ¢ =1 wem
111

ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024




Award 300

ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024




oO(Our Animal Health Products)oo

Ascorbic Acid

e
®
Silvit-ES
Vitamin-E, Selenium & D-Biotin
@ 9
¥
-
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S
rozith’

A2|thromycm USP
200 mg/5 ml

{1
)
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Granules for Suspension

50 ml

¢ tacrnmth

F e LisP 700 PR

==

Indicated in
| RTis, $8Tis, Typhoid and STD |

New Presentation in
HDPE Bottle

F— Silva ‘
Pharmaceuticals www.silvapharma.com
74 Limited

Antibiotic

Do not use without prescription of registered physician




Cailreef-D Calreef-DX

Calcium (Coral Source) 500 mg and Calcium (Coral Source) 600 mg and
Vitamin D3 200 U Vitamin D3 400 IU

0
i
-
)
2
0

¥ Better absorption compared to non-coral calcium
¥ Meets the extra demand for calcium during pregnancy
and in the elderly

F— Silva
) Pharmaceuticals

www.silvapharma.com
74 Ulimited
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Duet

Paracetamol BP 500 mg &
Caffeine BP 65 mg

Probac Plus’

|
|
|
|
|
Cefuroxime 250 mg & Clavulanic Acid 62.5 mg and |
Cefuroxime 500 mg & Clavulanic Acid 125 mg Tablet |

|

|

|

supraxim Multitonic®

Cefixime 200 m . . .
Capsule E Multivitamin & Multimineral

100 mg/5 ml PFS

rozith®

Azithromycin 500 mg
Tablet

Mu If?go(d'

32 Multivitamin & Multimineral

Calreef

Calcium (Coral Source) and
Vitamin D3 1U

lfranox’

Itraconazole USP
100 mg Capsule & 200 mg Tablet

N o
Neurex-B

Thiamine Mononitrate (B1) BP 100 mg
Pyridoxine Hydrochloride (Bs) BP 200 mg
Cyanocobalamin (B12) BP 200 mcg

Cipronil°500

Ciprofloxacin 500 mg

Esosil 20

Esomeprazole 20 mg

Dextromethorphan Hydrobromide BP,
Levomenthol BP and
Diphenhydramine Hydrochloride BP

Silva Pharmaceuticals Limited

House # 65, Road # 8/A (New) Dhanmondi
Dhaka-1209, Bangladesh
Phone : +880-2-55000692, 8191336, Fax : +880-2-55000693
Email : info@silvapharma.com
Web : www.silvapharma.com
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